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BB RER

{Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(IR EIPR B (5 R 5 SE R &)
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

Expressed in RMB millions HARBBETHE “EECF CTT=F ZTTRF —FFRF —R9AF
Year Ended 31 December BE+-A=+-HLEE
Revenues EEE 13,332 14,470 21,386 27,454 37,489
Other operating income ARl H 63 50 85 245 424
Operating expenses SR (12,350)  (14,454)  (20,239)  (27,685)  (40,905)
Operating profit/(loss) e/ (H8) 1,045 67 1,232 1% (2,991)
Finance costs, net FEEH - B8 (777) (775) (641) {578) (757)
Profit/(loss) before income tax ~ FBAFAIFIE,/ (BifE) 235 (741) 586 (577  (3,616)
Profit/(loss) for the year ARRIEEBEA

attributable to equity REEE

holders of the Company A/ (5E) 64 (1,097) 321 (467)  (3,313)
Earnings/(loss} per share ALRERFAEA

attributable to equity ek

holders of the Company BH/(H8)

(RMB)) (AREr)w 0.01 (0.23) 0.07 (0.10) (0.68)
At 31 December ®+=-BA=+-H
Cash and cash equivalents HeREGERED 1,945 1,583 2,114 1,864 1,987
Net current liabilities ey ox bRt (7,504) (9,982}  (12,491)  (25,572)  (24,792)
Non-cusrent assets kRBEE 28,147 33,039 36,812 52,882 52,152
Long term borrowings, RBER -

including current portion BERBEN (6,495) (11,223} (10,736}  (12,659)  (14,932)
Obligations under RAHRAR

finance leases, including B

current portion piok JE (8,184) (7,101) (8,662)  (10,588)  (11,853)
Total share capital BRA

and reserves BiEH 7,319 6,175 6,481 6,096 2,815

) The calculation of (loss)/earnings per share is based on the o FE () HREEEEFENRE

consolidated (loss)/profit attributable to shareholders and
4,866,950,000 shares in issue.

RS (B8, /BT AT TR
4,866,950,0008% 51 & -

Q06
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{Prepared in accordance with Internationo! Financial Reporting Standords)

(R I SR R R R

Revenues
EER
RME million
ARNFE

(Loss)/earnings per share
attributable to equity
holders of the Company

AR AR ARG
Bk (B8, BA

AMB
AR¥

02 03 04 05 06

{Loss)/profit for the year
attributable to equity
holders of the Company
ERRIERSE AL

FE (SR, #H

RMB million
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulation)}

(BFPHEARADE G ERRER)

LOSSES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006 BE_S8X&+=-B=+—H

LFEEEE
RMB million
AERE AT
Net loss EER (2,880)
Income from Main Qperations FEEBHE 1,820
Income from Other Operations H fth Z 7% 5 4 778
Income from Investments "E K 26.7

Net Income cutside Business LR R (111)

MAJOR ACCOUNTING DATA & FINANCIAL INDICATORS TESTTEBNMBESE
(Expressed in RMB Million) (ARMEET)

2006 2005

“BER¥ Z¥TLT

1. Revenue from Main Operations E# XU A 36,805.73 26,392.03 19,893.14
2. Net {Loss)/Profit BER) S FHE (2,779.98) 60.47 536.34
3. Total Assets REE 60,129.33 57,558.67 41,395.60
4, Shareholders Equity A& A 2 3,035.47 5,814.57 5,798.17
5. ({Loss)/Earnings per Share TR (ER) s

(RMB) (AE®T) (0.5712)  0.0124 0.1102

Notes: K

1. The major accounting data and financial indicators in 2005 1. ZETHEFEFEGHBIEMMEEER
are adjusted pursuant to the same accounting policies in 2006. BEEZZTAFHAEELNER -

2. Calculation of Major Financial Indicators: 2. FEMBEEHEAEOT:
Earning/(Loss) per Share = Net Profit/(Loss) + Tatal Number TR (B518) = BFE (BB
of Ordinary Shares at the end of year + FEREBRRG AR
Net Assets per Share = Shareholders’ Equity at the end of year BRFEE-FEARRESR -FER

+ Total number of Ordinary Shares at the end of year il B

[ AW o W
PRNGMEROERAE —B sy Y /s
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Capacity

ATK (available tonne-kilometers)
{millions)
- Domestic routes
- International routes
- Hong Kong routes

ASK (available seat-kilometers)
{millions)
- Domestic routes
- International routes
- Hong Kong routes

AFTK {available freight
tonne-kilometers) (millions)
- Domestic routes
- International routes
- Hong Kong routes

Hours flown (thousands)

Traffic

RTK (revenue tonne-kilometers)
(millions)
- Domaestic routes
- International routes
- Hong Kong routes

RPK (revenue passenger-kilometers)
(millions)
- Domestic routes
- International routes
- Hong Kong routes

RFTK {revenue freight
tonne-kilometers} (millions)
- Domestic routes
- International routes
- Hong Kong routes

Number of passengers carried
{thousands)
- Domestic routes
- International routes
- Hong Kong routes

Weight of cargo and mail carried
(mitlions of kg)
- Domestic routes
- International routes

- Hong Kong routes
019

BBEN
AL E
(ATK) (B &)
-BARME
-BBEMRR
—-EEHE MR
AAELE (ASK)
(58)
-BHANE
- BB E
— & B AR
THHERBLE
(AFTKY (B &)
-BAfRE
-BERSE
-EFRHEHRE
RITNEE (F)

Eni
WAL E (RTK)
(88)

— B A&
-EEHRE
-HHMEMR
FEHEARE (RPK)
(B &)

— B AR
-EEHS

- EEMERS
EHHEMLE
(RFTK) (G &)
-BEARE
-EBRmE
—-EEEEAR
HEREAR
()
-BERAR
-EERS

- EHEBENEK
EHRER
(o) (B8)
-BEARR
-ERHR

- ERBERR

For the

year ended
31 December
2006

S
ZBERE
+zB=+-8

11,065.57
4,901.45
5,313.14

850.98

70,468.28
42,687.36
22,226.69

5,554.22

4,723.43
1,059.58
3,312.74
351.10
678.28

6,930.97
3,369.67
3,106.23

455.07

50,271.88
31,272.41
15,478.45

3,521.02

2,444.01
574.70
1,728.01
141.30

35,039.74
27,744.49
4,807.75
2,487.51

893.22
438.55
3158.98

95.70

For the
year ended
31 December

8,751.49
3,185.42
4,775.45

790.32

52,427.85
27,467.54
19,672.20

5,288.11

4,032.98
713.34
3,005.25
314.39
467.75

5,395.17
2,220.93
2,746.25

427.99

36,380.58
20,277.57
12,818.98

3,284.03

2,151.52
409.56
1,607.16
134.80

24,290.49
18,206.93
3,762.39
2,321.17

775.52
315.59
341.81

92.12

26.44%
53.87%
11.26%

7.68%

34.41%
55.41%
12.99%

5.03%

17.12%
48.54%
10.23%
11.68%
45.01%

28.47%
51.72%
13.11%

6.33%

38.18%
54.22%
20.75%

7.22%

13.59%
40.32%
7.52%
4.82%

44.,25%
52.38%
27.78%

7.17%

15.18%
38.96%
3.21%
3.89%
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For the For the
year ended  year ended
31 December 31 December
2006
BE
“¥8RE
+ZF=+-B
Load Factor HER
Overall load factor (%) A EEE (%) 62.64 61.65 0.99
- Domestic routes -BHANAR 68.75 69.72 {0.97)
- International routes - BRHS 58.46 57.51 0.95
- Hong Kong routes -FEBERR 53.48 56,15 (0.67)
Passenger load factor (%) B E (%) 71.34 69.39 1.95
- Domestic routes -BEARK 73.26 73.82 (0.56)
- International routes —-BERHMR 69.64 65.16 4,48
- Hong Kong routes -EEHERS 63.39 62.10 1.29
Freight load factor (%) B EEEE (%) 51.74 53.35 (1.61) |
- Domestic routes -BERHR 54,24 57.41 (3.17)
- International routes — BB MR 52.16 53.48 (1.32)
- Hong Kong routes -HAEMENE 40.24 42.88 (2.64)
Break-even load factor (%) BETERHEE) 71.15 65.97 5.18
Yield and Cost Statistics 28 32 A0 B 2 4t 5t
Revenue tonne-kilometers yield PN~ PN L
(RMB) (AERH) 5.20 4.79 8.56% |
- Domestic routes - EAms 5.17 5.31 8.66% |
- International routes —EBRAR 4.31 3.97 8.56%
- Hong Kong routes - EEMENR 7.12 7.32 (2.73%)
Passenger-kilometers yield (RMB) REACBRSZ(ARYE) 0.61 0.57 7.02%
- Domestic routes - B AR 0.61 0.56 8.93%
- International routes -EBR LS 0.58 0.54 7.41%
- Hong Kong routes - EBILE M5 0.71 0.76 (6.58%)
Freight tonne-kilometers yield HEM S E WS
(RMB) (AR%) 2.30 2.31 (0.43%)
- Domestic routes -EAfR 0.87 0.85 2.35%
- International routes -~EBRRR 2.54 2.48 2.42%
- Hong Kong routes - BRBEMRR .24 4.76 10.08%
Available tonne-kilometers unit cost ] AR B B A&
(RMB) (AE®) 3.70 3.16 17.09%
Q1
hRENASHERGHARLAE —FR-FFH 7




Li Fenghua, Chairman

FTHE FEF

Chairman’s Statement
EERBEE

012
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Dear shareholders,

I am pleased to present the report on the
operating results of China Eastern Airlines
Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2006. On behalf of

TR ]

BMEMRR

EAELE2HEARIRE
BoBERL2T (X227 E
HEF¥ AR ((FE@E)EE=
ZEANF+-A=+—H1t
FEERE  WRXRFTEHD

all the staff of the Group, I would like to BETHRUREHE -
extend my sincere thanks to the shareholders
for their support of the Group.

013
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In 2006, the world economy grew continuously. However,
the prices of international crude oil and aviation fuel
experienced lengthy fluctuations at the peak level, which
brought about a substantial increase in costs for the
international air transportation industry. As a result, the

results of the Group have been significantly affected.

The economy of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”,
or China) maintained a rapid pace of growth, resulting in a
steady growth in the air transportation market in the PRC.
However, the transport capacity in the whole industry
increased rapidly and the Government implemented an open
skies policy of allowing more competitors to enter the market,
resulting in a significant increase in the competition in the

air transportation market in the PRC.

In 2006, according to statistics on the flight schedule market
share, the Group’s flights accounted for 38.6% and 31.1% of
all flights at Honggiao Airport and Pudong Airport,
respectively. The daily average utilisation rate reached 9.4
hours, which approximates with that in 2005,

In terms of marketing, the Group in 2006 gradually introduced
passenger traffic routes such as “Shanghai - Frankfurt”,
“Shanghai - New York”, “Beijing - Seoul”, “Hangzhou -
Qingzhou” and “Weihai - Seoul”, thus further improving the
Group’s route network. The transit business is now established
and has special passenger transit arrangements such as "f
HAETEEE" (“Internal Code-sharing”), "B IZE#E - 1TF
EH1#B" (“Single Check-in for Transit Passengers and Luggage”)
and “SER{EM - ITEEHEH" (“Double Check-in for Transit
Passengers and Single Check-in for Luggage”) in place. The
business reinforced the communication and cooperation with
each joint inspection unit, thus reforming the cross-border
lobby in the Pudong Airport so that transit procedures for
passengers were simplified and the transit time was
shortened. As such, the number of passengers using the
transit service exceeded 1,120,000 persons, The “BE F HE

014

—BENE  RIREEFRIER - BE
BRI B R EE RREERUE
EESHOEHE - M R ER RN
FRFEARE P REBREEILRE
BARE -

EpgE ARKME ([ E) BBERES
HEBRESRAT  PENTZESGT S
TG RIETE - BBEXRRENRERR
FHEA B B ER B R A07T SR ABRR
REOFHRBENNA - GBPEREE
B RE BIraR

ZTERE - SRR GE A R
AR E 2 BG4S EUR R 15538.6%
£331.1% « FRIETH AR A REE9.4/
Bf - BT RFRT -

TSEEAE - —ETNFARSMEES
R TI s —EMes - [LF i
#9] - b —d&) - [N —8M]
[BE-ERSTENR  #E—FxE
TAEMMEAS  FEHEERRTA
B BRTASRBAE) - [BEE
®TEEE  [SREHR TTFE
S SFEEER - RSB ER SR
BEfE - duE THRIRBISREE - Bl
THREPEGE  BETERER 2
FHhHRENRFSHEBI2BAR |
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1T (“Eastern Miles”) frequent flyers programme was
expanded, and the number of members of the frequent flyers
programme has now exceeded 5,590,000. The marketing of
the electronic ticketing business has made good progress
and has been well-received in the market, and “ET.CE-
AIR.COM”, the electronic ticketing website of the Group, has
also become increasingly well-known. As a result, the sales
of electronic tickets accounted for over 80% of the Group's
total domestic ticket sales.

In terms of service, in 2006, the Group became one of the
joint venture partners in the passenger air traffic business
of the World Expo 2010 Shanghai. 1t is believed that the
Group can capitalise on this to share the business
opportunities brought to the district’s air transport market
by this World Expo. Accerding to the statistics published by
the Civil Aviation Administration of China (“CAAC"), the flight
on-time rate of the Group has been leading among industrial
players in the PRC, and the Group again won the “customer
satisfaction” award for another year from the CAAC in the “
& ER /" (“Passengers’ Rating of Civil Aviation Award”)
category.

OUTLOOK FOR 2007

The Group would like to caution readers of this report that
the operations of the Group as an air transport enterprise
which performs public service functions, is linked closely to
political and economic situations, both internationally and
locally. As such, the operation of the Group and of the
whole sector is, to a substantial extent, subject to the risks
associated with geopolitics and the outbreak of unexpected
events. The 2006 annual report of the Group contains (but
not limited to) certain forward-looking statements, such as
those on the economies of Asia including the PRC, and the
aviation market. Such forward-looking statements are subject
to many uncertainties and risks.

(RS ERETIBEREHFSEEL B
AR E B S EE =598 A &
FTREREGHERNY TEHERARE
FoAREREFERIH G AL ET.CE-
AIR.CONHIBHEh B RS BTRE
HEECEAEHEBARREHEHEREM
BO%LEA L °

BEIE  —FTRF  AEERA
P-TFELEHBEMERESER
¥ - BERALARES Z e
RERMEESGTISTRAEE - B
BEERMBRLT - 2FAREMIIILE
BARERITRFKT - BT PE
EMABNEEERGIEHIRPAER
EHE -

“ESLERE

REMEMRESMEE  EFA-FE
EABRRBBENMTERTLE 27
PR R RAEEE - BERS
MNERZTYER B EERHER
B - RERHENEBESTIEAZRNSH
REBDERITHEEEREAZE -
AEEA_ETAETERSBEIEETR
B —UIFHAME MR - AN SRR AR B
AT 7 RO ZE T 35 ) FE L R A k. o
EUTEAMEAISRARETEEER
foEBR o
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The Group expects that the global economy will continue to
grow in 2007. The economic growth in the PRC continues,
and at the same time the opening up of the sky for aviation
in Shanghai, will further help to build Shanghai as an aviation
hub. The 2008 Olympic Games and 2010 World Expo are
drawing closer and demand in the domestic air transportation
market is expected to maintain steady growth. The Group
will seize upon the opportunity and make timely adjustments
to its capacity, thereby increasing its turnover volume in
every aspect, hence its revenue in air-transport. The Group
plans to continue to expand its scale in 2007 and to adjust
and optimize its route network, thereby increasing its
competitiveness and its ability to create more attractive
products and services to meet the needs of the market. The
Group has continued to build its fleet and has introduced
two A319 aircraft, two A320 aircraft, four A321 aircraft, one
A330-200 aircraft, five A330-300 aircraft, two B737-700
aircraft, three EMB145 aircraft and one B747F aircraft, which
were delivered to the Group and commissioned into service
this year. It is believed that the Group will benefit from
increasing demand for air transport in the region.

In view of the operating environment and the Group’s actual
position, its overall working objectives in 2007 are: “ensuring
safety, ensuring profit, enhancing services and creating
harmony”. Regarding these objectives, the Group will focus
on the following aspects:

1. The Group shall strengthen safety supervision and
safety education and enhance the standard of safety
management, in order to ensure flight safety.

2. The Group shall improve the service-providing
concepts, innovate servicing ideas, unify service
standards, standardize the procedures of servicing,
establish a swift response mechanism, enhance the
standard of both ground and air traffic services, and
provide diversified and customized air transportation
services to passengers.

Nt

REERE  —TE-FUHRBESE
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A321RUTRME « 132A330-2008) et - 528
A330-300B) A% - 252B737-7008) ik -
IZREMB145 RIS - 128B747FRIRME -
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B A R B 8 T 45 T SR AT B I R 52
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3. In terms of marketing, the Group shall change the
mode of business expansion which was largely focused
on acquiring additional aircraft, updating aircraft
models and penetrating the intensely competitive
markets by investing heavily in transport capacity.
Instead, the Group shall design products in line with
the requirements of passengers and enhance the
profitability of aviation routes through formulating
marketing concepts and innovating marketing
strategies, The Group shall continue to build up
Shanghai as an aviation hub, optimize the strategic
planning of the route network and open up profitable
routes on the basis of a prudent analysis based on
market research, so as to enlarge market share step
by step and to increase total income by enhancing
profitability.

4. The Group shall continue to manage strictly the overall
budget, strengthen cost control, establish a reasonable
capital structure in order to lower financing costs,
step up efforts on risk management, and avoid
financial and operation risks.

5. The Group shall implement standardized management,
strengthen the training of management and front line
staff and increase its ability to execute strategy. The
Group shall step up efforts on IT investment and
integration, so as to enhance information security
and the effectiveness of applications.

6. The Group shall vigorously promote the building of
its corporate culture, create a harmonic corporate
environment and enhance the corporate brand image.

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the
Company, T would like to express my gratitude to all of the

shareholders.

Li Fenghua
Chairman

Shanghai, China
19 April 2007
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Cao Jianxiong, President

R mEE

Review of Operations and
Management’s Discussion
and Analysis
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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In 2006, we operated a total of 423 routes, of which 299
were domestic routes, 19 were Hong Kong routes {including
1 cargo route) and 105 were international routes (including
31 international cargo routes). We operated approximately
5,650 scheduled flights per week, serving a total of 136
foreign and domestic cities. In 2006, the Group added 27
aircraft to its fleet, including the finance lease of three
A319 aircraft, two A321 aircraft, six B737-700 aircraft, one
B747F freighter and four EMB145 aircraft, and the operating
lease of one B737-700 aircraft, three A330-200 aircraft and
seven A330-300 aircraft. As at 31 December 2006, the Group
operated a fleet of 205 aircraft, including 182 passenger
jets each with a seating capacity of over 100 seats and 11
jet freighters.
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The following table sets forth details TRIMETHEZZETA
of our operating fleet as of 31 F+ZA=— EKEI
December 2006: BRI FAER

As of 31 December 2006
HEZ22RE{ZAZT-HERHE
Number of
Aircraft Number of
Owned and  Aircraft

under under Total Planned Additions*
Finance Operating Number of i HEEE3 4

Leases Leases  Aircraft 2007 2008

BRER Eg
BEAKR il Z28LF 88N
A340-600 5 - 5 - -
A340-300 5 - 5 - -
A330-300 - 7 7 5 3
A330-200 - 3 3 1 1
A300-600 9 - 9 - -
A310 - - - - -
A321 6 - 6 4 5
A320 £y, 25 63 i 8
A319 3 10 13 2 2
MD-90 9 - ¢ - -
MD-82 - - - - -
B737NG - - - - -
B737-800 - 7 7 - 1
8737-700 14 15 24 2 1
8737-300 13 10 23 - -
B767-300 3 - 3 - -
8787 - - - - 4
EMB145 7 - 7 3 -
CRJ-200 5 - 5 - -
A300F i 1 2 - -
B747F 1 2 3 1 -
MD-11F 6 - ] - -
Total BE® 124 81 205 20 25
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REVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS

The following discussion and analysis should be read together
with our audited financial statements and the accompanying
notes prepared in accordance with IFRS that are included
elsewhere in this Annual Report. The financial data presented
in this section are derived from our audited financial statements
prepared in accordance with IFRS.

Revenues. Our revenues increased by 36.55% from RMB27,454
million in 2005 to RMB37,489 million in 2006 (net of the
applicable PRC business tax). This increase was primarily
due to an increase in our capacity resulting from our
acquisition of the assets and liabilities relating to the
aviation business of CEA Northwest and CEA Yunnan and our
acquisition of other aircraft,

Traffic revenues increased by 39.68% from RMB25,820 million
in 2005 to RMB36,065 million in 2006. Our average daily
aircraft utilization rate was 9.4 hours in 2006, which was
the same as in 2005.

Passenger revenues, which accounted for 84.40% of our total
traffic revenues in 2006, increased by 45.97% from
RMB20,853 million in 2005 to RMB30,440 miltion in 2006,
primarily due to an increase in the number of passengers
carried and the passenger yield rate.
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Our domestic passenger revenues (excluding Hong Kong
passenger revenues), which accounted for 62.24% of our
total passenger revenues in 2006, increased by 65.64% from
RMB11,439 million in 2005 to RMB18,947 million in 2006.
This increase was primarily driven by our domestic passenger
transportation business. Compared to 2005, our domestic
passenger traffic increased (as measured in revenue
passenger-kilometers, or RPKs) by 54.22% in 2006. Qur
domestic passenger load factor decreased from 73.82% in
2005 to 73.26% in 2006. Our domestic passenger yield
increased from RMBO0.56 in 2005 to RMBO0.61 in 2006 per
passenger-kilometer primarily as a result of the rise in average
air fares.

Hong Kong passenger revenues, which accounted for 8.20%
of our total passenger revenues in 2006, increased by 0.12%
from RMB2,495 million in 2005 to RMB2,498 million in 2006.
Hong Kong passenger traffic {as measured in RPKs) increased
by 7.22% in 2006, compared to 2005. We increased the
passenger capacity on our Hong Kong routes by 7.68% in
2006. Our Hong Kong passenger load factor increased from
62.10% in 2005 to 63.39% in 2006. Our Hong Kong passenger
yield decreased from RMB0.76 in 2005 to RMBO0.71 in 2006
per passenger-kilometer, reflecting decreases in air fares.
International passenger revenues, which accounted for
29.55% of our total passenger revenues in 2006, increased
by 30.00% from RMB6,920 million in 2005 to RMB&,995
million in 2006. This increase was primarily due to an increase
in our international passenger traffic resulting from increases
in our capacity and in our international passenger load factor,
An increase in our international passenger yield also
contributed to the increase of our international passenger
revenues. Our international passenger traffic (as measured
in RPKs) increased by 20.75% in 2006, compared to 2005.
Our international passenger capacity increased by 12.99% in
2006, compared to 2005. Qur international passenger load
factor increased from 65.16% in 2005 to 69.64% in 2006.
Our international passenger yield increased from RMBQ,54 in
2005 to RMBO.58 in 2006 per passenger-kilometer, reflecting
increases in air fares.
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We generate cargo and mail revenues from the transportation
of carge and mail on our designated cargo aircraft as well as
fram the carriage of cargo and mail on our passenger aircraft.
Revenues from cargo and mail operations, which accounted
for 15.60% of our total traffic revenues in 2006, increased
by 13.26% from RMB4,967 million in 2005 to RMB5,625
million in 2006. Qur cargo and mail traffic (as measured in
revenue freight tonne-kilometers, or RFTKs} increased by
13.57% from 2,152 million RFTKs in 2005 to 2,444 million
RFTKs in 2006. Our cargo and mail capacity (as measured in
available freight tonne-kilometers, or AFTKs) increased by
17.11% from 4,033 million AFTKs in 2005 to 4,723 million
AFTKs in 2006. Cargo yield decreased from RMB2.31 in 2005
to RMB2.30 in 2006 per cargo tonne-kilometer primarily due
to fare decreases resulting from intensified market
competition.

Our other operating revenues are primarily generated from
airport ground services and ticket handling services. Airport
ground services include loading and unleading of aircraft,
aircraft cleaning and ground transportation of cargo and
passenger luggage for aircraft flying to or from Henggiao
Airport and Pudong International Airport. We are currently
the principal provider of airport ground services at both
Honggiao Airport and Pudong International Airport. OQur other
operating revenues decreased by 12.85% from RMB1,634
million in 2005 to RMB1,424 million in 2006. The main
reason for the decrease was that in 2005, the Group received
rental income of RMB183 mitlion from operating subleases
of aircraft, while the Group did not receive rental income in
2006.

Operating Expenses. Qur total operating expenses increased
by 47.75% from RMB27,685 million in 2005 to RMB40,905
million in 2006 primarily due to our business expansion and
a sigmificant increase in aviation fuel expenses resulting
from increased fuel prices. Qur total operating expenses as a
percentage of our revenues increased from 100.84% in 2005
to 109.11% in 2006.
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Aviation fuel expenses increased by 53.10% from RMB8,889
million in 2005 to RMB13,609 million in 2006. This increase
was primarily a result of rising fuel prices and our business
expansion in 2006. In 2006, we consumed a total of
2,346,400 tonnes of aviation fuel, representing an increase
of 23.91% compared to 2005. Compared to 2005, the weighted
average fuel prices paid by the Group in 2006 rose to
RMB5,780 per tonne and increased by approximately 33.56%.
Aviation fuel expense accounted for 33.27% of our total
operating expenses in 2006, as compared to 32.11% in 2005.

Aircraft depreciation and operating lease expenses increased
by 32.71% from RMB5,255 million in 2005 to RMB6,974
million in 2006. The increase was mainly due to the
introduction of additional aircraft which were primarily
financed by way of finance or operating leases, resulting in
a larger increase in depreciation and operating lease
expenses. The number of the aircraft operated by us increased
from 180 as of 31 December 2005 to 205 as of 31 December
2006. Other depreciation, amortization and operating lease
expenses increased by 17.42% from RMB666 million in 2005
to RMB782 million in 2006 primarily due to the addition of
operating premises and ancillary facilities resulting from the
expansion of our operations and an increase in the number
of our branches.

Wages, salaries and benefits increased by 47.35% from
RMB2,359 million in 2005 to RMB3,476 million in 2006,
primarily due to a significant increase in the number of our
employees following the expansion of our core business
operations. The total number of our employees increased by
31.03% from 29,301 as of 31 December 31 2005 to 38,392
as of 31 December 2006.

Take-off and landing charges, which accounted for 12.20%
of our total operating expenses in 2006, increased by 34.15%
from RMB3,719 million in 2005 to RMB4,989 millien in 2006
primarily due to the expansion of our business and the
increase in the number of our flights, while partially offset
by a decrease in the average take-off and landing charges
resulting from an increase in the number of domestic flights.
The number of our flights increased from approximately 211
thousand in 2005 to approximately 340 thousand in 2006.
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Aircraft maintenance expenses increased by 91.26% from
RMB1,384 million in 2005 to RMB2,647 million in 2006. The
main reason for the increase was that more aircraft were
delivered for repair as a result of the continuous expansion
in the Group's fleet size.

Commission expenses increased by 35.77% from RMB970
million in 2005 to RMB1,317 million in 2006 primarily due
to the increase in the number of tickets sold by agents as a
result of the Group’s market expansion.

Food and beverage expenses increased by 21.60% from
RMB977 million in 2005 to RMB1,188 million in 2006. This
increase was primarily due to a 44.26% increase in the
number of passengers carried from approximately 24.29
million in 2005 to approximately 35.04 million in 2006.

Office, administration and other expenses increased by
41.12% from RMB2,444 million in 2005 to RMB3,449 million
in 2006 primarily due to the Group's business expansion,
resulting in increases in flight training expenses and branch
office expenses.

SITA ticket reservation system charges increased by 43.15%
from RMB292 million in 2005 to RMB418 million in 2006
primarily due to an increase in the price of overseas
distribution systems and an increase in the number of
passengers the Group carried.

Insurance costs increased by 8.05% from RMB149 mitlion in
2005 to RMB161 million in 2006.

Ground services and other charges increased by 39.66% from
RMB116 million in 2005 to RMB162 million in 2006 primarily
due to an increase in our flights.

Civil aviation infrastructure levies increased by 49.36% from
RMB466 million in 2005 to RMB696 million in 2006.

Valuation deficit represents the deficit of RMB1,035 million
arising on the revaluation relating to certain aircraft and
related equipment. No such valuation deficit arose in 2005.
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Other Operating Income. The Group’s other operating income
was primarily generated from government subsidies and fair
value gains on financial instruments held by us. The net
amount of our other operating income increased from RMB245
million in 2005 to RMB424 million in 2006 primarily due to
an increase in government subsidies from RMB193 millien in
2005 to RMB462 million in 2006. See Note 6 to our audited
consolidated financial statements.

Finance Costs. The Group's finance costs increased by 24.19%
from RMB707 million in 2005 to RMB878 million in 2006
primarily due to increased finance lease obligations from
RMB325 million in 2005 to RMB544 million in 2006,
representing an increase of 67.38%, and interest expenses
of RMB1,646 million on loans from banks and other financial
institutions, representing an increase of 52.83% from
RMB1,077 million in 2005. However, the above amounts were
partly offset by the recognition of a net carrying exchange
gain of RMB&88 million arising on the retranslation of US
dollar liabilities.

Net Loss. As a result of the foregoing operating results, the
net loss attributable to shareholders was RMB3,313 million
in 2006, as compared to a net loss of RMB467 million in
2005,

Property, Plant and Equipment. The Group had approximately
RM840,050 million of fixed assets as of 31 December 2006,
including aircraft, engines and flight equipment with a value
of approximately RMB35,793 million. Property, plant and
equipment are initially recognized at cost and are
subsequently stated at revalued amount, being their fair
value at the date of revaluation less any subseguent
accumulated depreciation.

valuation of property, plant and equipment is affected by
market conditions and global economic factors that are not
within our control.

The determination of fair value requires significant judgment,
including judgment on valuations by our management and/
or by independent professional appraisers. Our Directors have
reviewed the carrying value of our property, plant and
equipment as of 31 December 2006 based on the valuations
conducted by independent valuation. A valuation deficit of
RMB1,035 million for certain aircraft and related equipment
was resulted from the revaluations. Except for the asset
with the valuation deficit, the revalued amounts of the other
assets are not materially different for the carrying amounts.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We typically finance our working capital requirements through
a combination of funds generated from operations and both
short and longer term bank loans. As a result, our liquidity
could be adversely affected to the extent there is a significant
decrease in demand for our services or if there is any delay
in gbtaining bank loans. As of 31 December 2005 and 20086,
we had cash and cash equivalents of RMB1,864 million and
RMB1,987 million, respectively. In 2005 and 2006, our net
cash inflows generated from operating activities were
RMB1,952 million and RMB1,339 million, respectively, while
our net cash outflows used in investment activities were
RMB10,369 million and RMB1,679 million, respectively. In
the past two years, our primary cash requirements for
investment activities were related to our acquisitions and
upgrades of aircraft and flight equipment, and debt
repayments.

In 2005 and 2006, payment of advances on aircraft and
flight equipment were RMB9,073 million and RMB7,669
million, respectively, while additions of aircraft and flight
equipment were RMB7,751 million and RMB4,561 million,
respectively. We financed the additions to our aircraft fleet
and flight equipment primarily through lease arrangements,
bank loans and funds generated from operations. Funds
generated from disposal of older aircraft and flight equipment
and other fixed assets and equipment (including by way of
exchange) totaled RMB33 million and RMB328 million in
2005 and 2006, respectively. Our net cash inflow generated
from financing activities was RMB421 million in 2006,
primarily from proceeds from bank loans.

Pursuant to certain of our finance or operating leases, we
are required to indemnify the lessors against any withholding
or similar taxes that may be imposed on the lessors by
taxing authorities in China with regard to payments made
under such leases. Pursuant to a regulation issued in 2000
by the State Tax Bureau of China, lease payments made by
Chinese airlines to foreign enterprises in respect of lease
arrangements entered into prior to 1 September 1999 are
exempt from the payment of any withholding tax. Withholding
tax payable in respect of the lease arrangements entered
into on or after 1 September 1999 are charged to our income
statement as incurred.
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We generally operate with a working capital deficit. As of 31
December 2006, our current liabilities exceeded our current
assets by RMB24,792 million. In comparison, our current
liabilities exceeded our current assets by RMB25,572 million
as of 31 December 2005. The increase in our current liabilities
in 2006 was primarily due to an increase in borrowings for
payment of advances on aircraft and flight eguipment. Short-
term loans outstanding totaled RMB13,711 million and
RMB13,176 million as of 31 December 2005 and 2006,
respectively. Long-term bank loans outstanding totaling
RMB12,65% million and RMB14,932 million as of 31 December
2005 and 2006, respectively. Long-term loans payable within
two years, from three to five years and beyond five years
were RMB5,894 million, RMB7,560 million and RMB1,478
million, respectively, as of 31 December 2006, as compared
to RMB5,533 million, RMB5,517 million and RMB1,609 million,
respectively, as of 31 December 2005. Total lease obligations
outstanding under our finance leases as of 31 December
2005 and 2006 were RMB10,588 million and RMB11,853
million, respectively. Our lease obligations payable within
two years, from three to five years and beyond five years
were RMB4,745 million, RMB2,602 million and RMB4,506
million, respectively, as of 31 December 2006, as compared
to RMB4,998 million, RMB3,014 million and RMB2,575 million,
respectively, as of 31 December 2005.
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We have, and in the future may continue to have, substantial
debts. As of 31 December 2005 and 2006, our long-term
debt to equity ratio was 3.4 and 7.7, respectively. The interest
expenses associated with these debts might impair our future
profitability. We expect that cash from operations and bank
borrowings will be sufficient to meet our operating cash
flow requirements, although events that materially affect
our operating results can also have a negative impact on
liquidity. We have entered into credit facility agreements
with certain Chinese banks to meet our future working capital
needs. We have arranged, and we believe that we will
continue to be able to arrange, short-term bank loans with
domestic and foreign-funded banks in China as necessary to
meet our working capital requirements. However, our ability
to obtain financing may be affected by cur financial position
and leverage and credit ratings, as well as by prevailing
economic conditions and the cost of financing generally. If
we are unable to obtain financing for a significant portion
of our capital requirements, our ability to acquire new aircraft
and to expand our operations may be adversely affected.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Our aircraft orders as of 31 December 2006 included
commitments to acquire 45 aircraft to be delivered in 2007
and 2008. We expect our capital expenditures for aircraft
and related equipment, including deposits, through 2010 to
be in aggregate approximately RMB61,764 millien, including
RMB14,894 million in 2007 and RMB18,845 million in 2008,
in each case subject to contractually stipulated increases or
any increase relating to inflation. We generally finance our
purchase of aircraft through finance leases and bank loans
secured by our assets. As of 31 December 2006, the total
value of our mortgaged assets increased by 6.13%, from
RMB9,074 million as of 31 December 2005 to RMB9,630
million as of 31 December 2006. Construction of our facilities
at the Pudong International Airport and the purchase of
maintenance equipment and other property and equipment
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will continue to require additional capital expenditures in
2007. We plan to finance our other capital commitments
through a combination of funds generated from operations,
existing credit facilities, bank loans, leasing arrangements
and other external financing arrangements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Critical accounting policies are defined as those that are
reflective of significant judgments and uncertainties and
potentially result in materially different results under
different assumptions and conditions.

Our audited consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with IFRS. Our principal accounting
policies are set forth in Note 2 to our audited consolidated
financial statements. IFRS requires that we adopt the
accounting policies and make estimates that our Directors
believe are most appropriate in the circumstances for the
purposes of giving a true and fair view of our results and
financial position. However, different policies, estimates and
assumptions in critical areas could lead to materially different
results. The critical accounting policies adopted and estimates
made in the preparation of these financial statements are
identified as follows:

Estimated impairment of goodwill - We test annually whether
goodwill has been impaired in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in Note 2(l) to our audited consolidated
financial statements. The recoverable amounts of cash
generating units have been determined based on value-in-
use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates (see Note 14 to our audited consolidated financial
statements). In 2006, after reviewing the business
environment as well as our objectives and past performance,
management concluded that there was no material impairment
of goodwill.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment -
We have made substantial investments in tangible long-lived
assets. We conduct impairment reviews of these assets
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
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Determining whether an asset is impaired requires significant
judgment, including our estimates of the future cash flows
attributable to the asset and the appropriate discount rate.
If different judgments or estimates had been utilized, material
differences could have resulted in the amount and timing of
the impairment charge, if any.

Property, plant and equipment - We had approximately
RMB40,050 million of fixed assets as of 31 December 2006,
including aircraft, engines and flight equipment with a value
of approximately RMB35,793 million. As discussed in Note
2(k) to our audited consolidated financial statements,
property, plant and equipment is initialty recognized at cost
and is subsequently stated at revalued amount less
accumulated depreciation. Independent valuations are
conducted at least every five years or sooner if considered
necessary by our Directors. In the intervening years, our
Directors review the carrying value of property, plant and
equipment from time to time and make adjustments if the
carrying value is materially different from fair value. Their
recorded value is impacted by management judgment,
including valuations performed by the management and/or
independent professional valuers, estimates of useful lives,
residual value and impairment charges. If different judgments
or estimates had been utilized, material differences could
have resulted in carrying values and related depreciation
charges. Our directors reviewed the carrying value of our
Company's fixed assets as of 31 December 2006 and are of
the opinion that, except for the asset with the valuation
deficit, the carrying amount of the fixed assets is not
materially different from the estimated fair value.

Fair value estimation - The carrying amounts of our current
financial assets, including cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, prepayments, other receivables, amounts due
from related companies and current financial liabilities
including trade payables and note payables, other payables
and accrued expenses and amounts due to related companies,
approximate their fair values due to their short maturities.
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Revenue recognition - As discussed in Note 2(e), passenger,
cargo and mail revenues are recognized as traffic revenues
when the transportation services are provided. The value of
unused passenger tickets is included in current Liabilities as
sales in advance of carriage. Unused tickets are recognized
in traffic revenues based on current estimates. Management
periodically evaluates the balance of the sales in advance of
carriage account and records any adjustments, which can be
material, in the period the evaluation is completed. These
adjustments result from differences between the estimates
of certain revenue transactions, the timing of recognizing
revenue for any unused air tickets and the related sales
price, and are impacted by various factors, including a
complex pricing structure and interline agreements
throughout the industry, which affect the timing of revenue
recognition.

Maintenance and overhaul costs - In respect of aircraft under
operating leases, we have the responsibility to fulfill certain
return conditions under relevant teases. In order to fulfill
these return conditions, major overhauls are required to be
conducted on a regular basis. Accordingly, the present value
of estimated costs of major overhauls for aircraft under
operating leases are provided at each balance sheet date.
The provision in each period is estimated using historical
major overhaul costs incurred during each overhaul and the
estimated period between overhauls using the ratios of actual
flying hours/cycles and estimated flying hours/cycles between
overhauls. Differences between the estimated cost and the
actual cost of the overhaul are included in the income
statement in the period of overhaul.

In respect of aircraft and engines owned by our Company or
held under finance leases, costs of overhaul are capitalized
as a component of property, plant and equipment and are
depreciated over the appropriate maintenance cycles. When
each overhaul is performed, its cost is recognized in the
carrying amount of the item of property, plant and equipment
and is depreciated over the estimated period between
overhauls, on a straight-line basis. Upon completion of an
overhaul, any remaining carrying amount of the cost of the
previous overhaul is derecognized and charged to the income
statement.
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Retirement benefits - We participate in defined contribution
retirement schemes organized by the municipal governments
of respective provinces. We also operate and maintain defined
retirement benefit plans which provides retirees with benefits
including transportation subsidies, social activity subsidies
as well as other welfare. As discussed in Note 2(h) to our
audited consolidated financial statements, the cost of
providing the aforementioned benefits in the defined
retirement henefit plans is actuarially determined and
recognized over the employees’ service period by utilizing
various actuarfal assumptions and using the projected unit
credit method. These assumptions include, without limitation,
the selection of discount rate, annual rate of increase of per
capita benefit payment and employee turnover rate. The
discount rate is based on management’s review of local high
quality corporate bonds. The annual rate of increase of benefit
payment is based on the general local economic conditions.
The employee turnover rate is hased on historical trends in
our Company. See Note 32 to our audited consolidated
financial statements for additional information regarding the
retirement benefit plans.

Deferred taxation - While deferred tax liabilities are provided
in full on all taxable temporary differences, deferred tax
assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized. In assessing the
amount of deferred tax assets that need to be recognized,
we consider future taxable income and ongoing prudent and
feasible tax planning strategies. In the event that our
estimates of projected future taxable income and benefits
from available tax strategies are changed, or changes in
current tax regulations are enacted that would impact the
timing or extent of our ability to utilize the tax benefits of
net operating loss carried forward in the future, adjustments
to the recorded amount of net deferred tax assets and
taxation expense are made.

Current tax - We make provision for current tax based on
the estimated income tax liabilities. The estimated income
tax liabilities are primarily computed based on the tax filings
as prepared by our Company and based on management’s
interpretation of relevant tax rulings.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

We have debts denominated in U.S. dollars, Japanese yen or
Euro in addition to our debts denominated in Renminbi. We
generate a significant amount of foreign currency revenues,
including U.S. dollar, Japanese yen, Euro, Korean won, Hong
Kong doltar, Singapore dollar, Australian dollar, and Thai
Baht, from ticket sales made in overseas offices. Pursuant to
current foreign exchange regulations in China, we may retain
our foreign currency earnings subject to the approval of
SAFE. We have also designated certain personnel to manage
the foreign currency risks through derivative financial
products such as forward foreign exchange contracts and
interest rate swaps. We use interest rate swaps to reduce
risks related to changes in market interest rates. As of 31
December 2006, the notional amount of the outstanding
interest rate swap agreements was approximately U5$631
million, compared to US$661 million as of 31 December
2005. These interest rate swap agreements will expire between
2007 and 2016. In addition, we use currency forward
contracts to reduce risks related to changes in currency
exchange rates in respect of ticket sales and expenses
denominated in foreign currencies. As of 31 December 2006,
the notional amount of the outstanding currency forward
contracts was approximately US$33 million, compared to
US$92 million as of 31 December 2005. This decrease in the
notional amount of the outstanding currency forward
contracts was primarily due to the cancetlation or early
termination of certain currency forward contracts in 2006.

Pursuant to IFRS, our monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are required to be
translated into Renminbi at the year end at exchange rates
announced by the People’s Bank of China. The net exchange
gains or losses are recognized and reflected in the income
statement for the relevant year. Any fluctuation of the
exchange rates between Renminbi and foreign currencies
may materially adversely affect our financial condition and
results of operations. Primarily due to an appreciation of
Renminbi against certain foreign currencies including the
U.S. dollar, Japanese yen and Euro following the measures
introduced by the PRC government in July 2005 to reform
the Renminbi exchange rate regime, we recognized a net
exchange gain of RMB888 million in 2006, compared to a
net exchange loss of RMB415 million in 2005.
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TAXATION

We are subject to income tax at the rate of 15%. Our effective
tax rate, however, may be higher than the rate of 15%
hecause some of our subsidiaries were incorporated in
jurisdictions where the applicable income tax rate is 33%
rather than 15%. We had carried forward tax losses of
approximately RMB3,011 million and RMB5,782 million as of
31 December 2005 and 2006, which can be used to set off
against future taxable income before 2010 and 2011,
respectively.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is
pleased to present the audited financial report of the
Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2006.

GROUP ACTIVITIES AND RESULTS

The Company is one of the three largest air carriers in the
PRC based on tonne kilometres and number of passengers
carried in 2006 and is the primary air carrier serving
Shanghai, the largest ecanomic, trading and financial centre
of the PRC. The results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2006 and the financial position of the Company
and the Group as at that date, prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRS"} and PRC
Accounting Regulations, are set out in the financial
statements.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 18 to the financial statements prepared in accordance
with IFRS.

The geographical analysis of the Group's revenue from
principal business is as follows:
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(RMB'000) (RMB'000)

AR T AREFT

Domestic B A 19,698,230 20,803,441
Hong Kong Special Administrative &R AfTHER

Region (“Hong Kong”) (Ig#&L 3,299,823 3,244,846

International B B 13,807,678 13,440,588

Total Bt 36,805,731 37,488,875

DIVIDENDS BE

As at 31 December 2006, according to the financial
statements prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting
Regulations, the operating results of the Company in the
year 2006 declined significantly as compared to those in the
year 2005. Having considered the Company’s cash flow
position in 2007, the Board does not recommend payment
of any dividend for the financial year ended 31 December
2006. The balance of retained profits will be carried forward
to next year. The Company will not convert funds frem the
common reserve to increase its share capital during this
period.
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SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2006, the share capital structure of the
Company remained unchanged as follows:

1. Unlisted shares
(a) A shares {unlisted
State-owned legal
person shares)

2. Listed shares
()  H shares

(b} A shares

3. Total aumber of shases

At the
beginning
of the year
(10,000
shares)
Bk
LR o
(BK)
A ER B
(a) ARGELTMRE
EAR)
100,000
En@Rb
(a) HE& 156,695
() AR 30,000
RiARE 486,695

Approximate

percentage of

total issued
share capital
(%)

L3
Bl
(%)

LN g

RAFIRAEBR _RRANEENET
G2 BE_TTNEFE+—B=+—
Bl - ZLERELEBDT

Increase/
(Decrease) in
shareholding

during the year
{10,000 shares)

Approximate
percentage of
total issued
share capital

)

Aot
(%)

At the end
of the year
(10,000
shares)

B/8
(AR)

HRE
(BR)

fi1.64 0 300,000 b1.64
32.20 0 156,595 32.2¢
b.16 0 30,000 6.15
100 0 436,695 100

The Share Reform Plan of the Company was approved in the
relevant shareholders’ meeting of the holders of A shares of
the Share Reform Plan of the Company held on 18 December
2006, and the trading in the A shares was resumed on 12
January 2007. After the completion of the Share Reform,

the change in the shareholding structure was as follows:

1. Domestic Shares

(a)

Listed Shares with

WA K

trading moratorium

(b) Listed Shares without

trading moratorium

2. H Shares

3. Total number of Shares

H R
e 25

HIR & & ERER

EREGERBAR

For details of the Share Reform, please see the paragraph
headed “Share Reform” below.

DARESENEARCE_BENF
+TATNABRBRNRES EohEARR
TEEERREHREARS - TR _-T
T+ E-ATBREARMSERZ
5 o BERGER AR - AR BINARAEE
BER

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding (%)
45 IR B EE B (%)

Total number

of Shares

IR {7 #85]

2,904,000,000 59.67
396,000,000 8.13
1,566,950,000 32.20
100.00

4,866,950,000

BERRESENEZHE - B TTXIR
HHBERE] -
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PENGMAZRGARLE —FFAFEE VU7




RNCPUVIL Ul UITCLLVIO

ESEREE

SHARE REFORM

Pursuant to the “Guidelines for Promoting the Reform and
Opening-up and Sustained Development of the Capital Market”
promulgated by the State Council of the PRC and the
provisions of relevant regulations promulgated by China
Securities Requlatory Commission (“CSRC”), the Company
published the “Indicative Announcement in Relation to Share
Reform” on 20 November 2006 and the shares of the Company
were suspended from trading for implementation of the Share
Reform; the “Announcement on the Share Reform Proposal
Plan” was published on 22 November 2006; the
“Announcement on the Revised Share Reform Plan” was
published on 1 December 2006; the “Revised Share Reform
Plan approved by the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission” was published on 13 December
2006. On 18 December 2006, the Company convened the
Relevant Shareholders’ Meeting of A Share Market in relation
to the Share Refarm to approve the Revised Share Reform
Plan of the Company, and the “Announcement on the Results
of the Relevant Shareholders’ Meeting in Relation to Share
Reform” was published on the following day; the “Share
Reform Proposal Approved by the Ministry of Commerce” was
published on 5 January 2007. On 9 January 2007, the
Company published the “Announcement on Implementation
of Share Reform Plan”. The trading in shares of the Company
was resumed on 12 January 2007 and its short name was
changed from “S. CEA” to “Eastern Airlines” with effect from
the same day.

Each holder of circulating A shares of the Company whose
name appeared on the register of members on 10 January
2007 was offered 3.2 shares as a consideration by China
Eastern Air Holding Company (“CEA Holding”) for every 10
circulating A shares held by it. The original non-circulating
shares held by CEA Holding were granted the status of listing
fram 12 January 2007. However, there is currently no real
circulation of shares due to the trading moratorium.

Other than statutory undertakings, CEA Holding undertook
that it would not engage in the trading of the non-circulating
shares held by it within 36 months from the day of granting
listing status of non-circulating shares of the Company.

For details, please refer to the related announcements
published by the Company.
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NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2006, the total number of registered
sharehotders of the Company was 88,648, of which 86,866
are holders of A shares (including untisted State-owned legal
person shares and listed A shares), and 1,782 are holders of
H shares.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are
aware, each of the following persons, not being a Director,
chief executive, supervisor of the Company (“Supervisor”) or
member of the Company's senior management, had, as at 31
December 2006, an interest and/or short position in the
Company's shares or underlying shares (as the case may be)
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”) under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFG"}, or
was otherwise, as at 31 December 2006, interested in 5% or
more of any class of the then issued share capital of the
Company, or was otherwise, as at 31 December 2006, a
substantial shareholder (as defined in the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”}} of the Company:

Approximate

fe R AE By
NIZBEXNE+-_R=+—8 ' &AF
BiaMaaR i@ e A8s,6485 - HFA
B (EEIEETEAEARMS F#EA
B%) A% TR 86,866 - HARRRH1,782F -

FTERR

BALRESE(TEF)) A LT B
JEEATHE - THEE  EFERER
TRAE MR-BEAE+_A=+
— B EAL TR AR (8 15
AME) P ERBES SR BEED
([FBEHREAEMED]) EXvERE2 3D E
BRIALFT RERBERSMERE QA
((&BEBFT]) AR R RRERS
RASKBENALT  SEMR-TEN
F+ A= +—BHEXRDBERFAR
BB BHITIRAISA5%a L LEEAA
+  HARDNERZBERE+_-A=+
—HHEMmTERHE(CHEREEHS
%ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁtﬁﬂ%ﬁiﬁﬁ
1 .

Interest
As at 31 December 2006
B
RIZZAETZRAZ+-HAMKELT

Approximate

Approximate
percentage
shareholding in
the Company’s

percentage
shareholding in
the Company's

percentage
shareholding in

the Company's

Name of Nature of Number of total issued total issued total issued
shareholder shares held shares held share capital A shares H shares  Short position
2R84 BEEBTAR ERTHR
REmEE BENERE BmENBRE
BRRER it &5 FisRe i A t B
{hina Eastern Air A shares 3,000,000,000 $1.64% 90.91% - -
Holding Company (unlisted State-
FEEARET owned legal
EELE person shares)
AR kTR A
EAR)
HKSCC Nominees H shares 1,494,139,799 30.70% - 95.35% -
Limited (Note) ~ HRR
BETRAEH
(REA)ARAR
(&8)
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Note:

Based on the information available to the Directors (including
such information as was available on the website of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange) and so far as they are aware and understand, as
at 31 December 2006:

1. Among the 1,494,139,799 H shares held by HKSCC Nominees
Limited, Halbis Capital Management (Hong Kang) Limited had
an interest in an aggregate of 111,556,000 H shares of the
Company (representing approximately 7.11% of its then total
issued H shares).

2. Among the 1,494,139,799 H shares held by HKSCC Nominees
Limited, Everest Capital Limited had an interest in an aggregate
of 82,864,000 H shares of the Company (representing
approximately 5.30% of its then total issued H shares).

Save as disclosed above and so far as the Directors are aware, as at
31 December 2006, among the 1,494,139,799 H shares held by
HKSCC Nominees Limited, no other person had any interest or short
position in the Company’s shares or underlying shares (as the case
may be) which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the 5F0.

[a W Alla)

2

BEEER - PENET A=+ —BFE
e B (9154 BB RS2 FABN LA NS
tEH) RIBEFA - RZFEAF T
A=+—8

1. EEETRET (REA)ERAGMNE
E/1,494,139,79905HAEF « Halbis
Capital Management (Hong Kong) Limited
#545111,556,000AR HA% (E A1 A% B
B TTHRR M S A7.11%) HE2E -

2. EBHBTRBH(RBEA)ARLARME
E91,494,139,799 B8 HAE A - Everest
Capital Limited {54 82,864,0008% HAR ({5
QB EREHITHIR B E05.30%) #
2o

B FULFFIEESN  MIFEFHENEER LM
BERY KRR F+-A=+—8"
HEEEPRAEH (REBEA)AERARFAEN
1,494,139,799 fRHEEH - BiE A LR T
Bt et ERRA S GRIG I MIE) R B
WA MARBERERRESEHEENE
XVERE 2 B3 M A LT REEB T
§‘§ o
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According to the relevant disclosure requirements laid down
by the CSRC, as at the end of the reporting period, the 10
largest registered shareholders and the 10 largest registered
listed stock shareholders on the register of members and
their respective shareholdings are as follaws:

The 10 largest registered shareholders of the Company
and their respective shareholdings

RETFHEARANBREHEEEREZER
SNAMBEERE - ®REHER - Rnal
FrRiRREEMAnoELBRE KA
ArBmERmREBRERRT

ERBRANMOREERRERIER

Increasef
I {Decrease) Shareholding (harged or
| Name of in shareholding at the end Percentage locked-up  Nature of
| sharehotders in the year of year (%)  Type of shares shares  shares held
b’ ER9RE
Lt FERRE  FAEREA %) REGEN PREOHE KEHE
1 CHINA EASTERN AIR 0 3,000,000,000 61.6402 unlisted 0 Ashares
HOLDING COMPANY ot {unlisted State-
DEHEARTEERT owned legal
person shares)
ARELS
EREAR)
2 KKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED 6,208,636 1,494,139,799 30.6957 isted Unknown  H shases
BEDAREREA)ERAT et AR KR
3 (BOC-JTASHL THEME SELECTION MIX 11,796,255 11,796,255 0.2424 fisted Unknown A shares
SECURITIES INVESTMENT FUND) B 8 AR
PERT-RREERE
RRUISRARS
4 (ICBC-JLANXIN EXCELLENCE SELECTION 10,903,620 10,503,620 0.2240  listed Unknown A shares
GROWTH SHARE SECURITIES BRE AR AR
INVESTMENT FUND)
q’@l 7l ] E{*E}g
RERFRERRELS
5 (HAITONG-BOCOM-RIXING ASSET 9,999,985 9,999,585 0.2055  listed Unknown A shares
MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED- 2R A AR
RIKING AM CHINA RMB A SHARE
PARENT FUND)
SR-XT-ERRAEEERRAA
-BEMGEARYAREES
HERSHEROARLE 8T xsen U b
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Increasef
{Decrease) Shareholding Charged or
Name of in shareholding at the end Percentage locked-up  Nature of
shareholders in the year of year (%) Type of shares shares  shares held
i HAARE
BRAEE FEARE  ERERER % RGEH MEGRE ROME
b (HUABAD TRUST INVESTMENT 5,043,874 5,943,874 01221 listed Unknown A shares
(OMPANY LIMITED - SINGLE ERB & AR
CAPITAL TRUST YEAR 2006 N0. 7)
ERERRARRALLR
~E-MALER006F 218
7 HSBL NOMINEES {HONG KONG) LIWITED 675,000 4,780,000 0.0982  listed Unknown  H shares
ERE B HR
8 (HAUBAG TRUST INVESTMENT COMPANY 3,341,700 3,341,700 0.0687 listed Unknown A shares
LIMITED - SINGLE CAPTTAL TRUST B AR
YEAR 2005 HO. 8)
EREHRARRALLT
~E-RALER006F 8T
9 HSBC NOMINEES (HONG KONG) LIMITED ] 3,000,000 0.0616  Gisted Unknown  H shares
<AfL BR-9> Sy ) 0 OHR
10 (MATIONAL SOCTAL SECURITY 2,489,430 2,489,439 0.0511 listed Unknown A shares
FUND (GROUP 106)) EAl F AR

PEERES-S/ M8

Description of any related party or concert party relationship A0 B AR FE B R o — BT B ey i

among the 10 largest sharehotders: The Company is not aware B ARBIRE LR R 2 EITF e R
of any related party or concert party relationship among the AR —RITEI IR -

above shareholders.
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The 10 largest registered listed stock shareholders of
the Company and their respective shareholdings

A+ B BREBERERERER

Shareholding of

listed stocks at Nature of
Name of shareholders the end of year shares held
FRER
R EHE REROHA BHE
HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED ERTREH(REA)BRAT 1,494,139,79 H shares %
(BOC-JIASHI THEME SELECTION MiX SECURITIES PEER-BRTARERGNAARERS

INVESTMENT FUND) 1,796,255 A shares %
(1CBC-JIANXIN EXCELLENCE SELECTION GROWTH PEIERT-BERRRRRENESRAEE

SHARE SECURITIES INVESTMENT FUND) 10,903,620 A shares B
(HATTONG-BOCOM-RIXING ASSET MANAGEMENT Bl -2 -BAEERER DT

COMPANY LIMITED-RIXING AM CHINA RMB -BEMRBARBARGES

A SHARE PARENT FUND) 9,999,985 A shares it
{HUABAO TRUST TNVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED ENEERAARALAR)

- SINGLE CAPITAL TRUST YEAR 2006 NO. 7) -E-RESERN06FETR 5,943,874 A shares i}
HSBC NOMINEES (HONG KONG) LIMITED HSBC NOMINEES (HONG KONG) LIMITED 4,780,000 H shares %
(HAUBAD TRUST INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED ENERBAERALAR

- SINGLE CAPTTAL TRUST YEAR 2006 HO. 8) -E-FASRRN06FA8Y 3,341,700 A shares B
HSBC NOMINEES (HONG KONG) LIMITED HSBC NOMINEES (HONG KONG) LIMITED

<A/C BR-G> <AfC BR-0> 3,000,000 K shares %
(NATIONAL SOCIAL SECURITY FUND (GROUP 106)) PEMRES-BRE4 2,489,439 A shares f
HSBC NOMINEES (HONG KONG) LIMITED HSBL NOMINEES (HONG KONG) LIMITED

<hfC BR-43> <A/C BR-43> 2,256,000 H shares &

Description of any related party or concert party relationship
among the 10 largest listed stock shareholders: The Company
is not aware of any related party or concert party relationship
among the above listed stock shareholders.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

There has been no change in the Company’s controlling
shareholder in the year.

CEA Holding is the parent company of the Company and its
registered capital amounts to RMB2,558,441,000. Mr. Li
Fenghua is the legal representative of CEA Holding. CEA
Holding’s scope of business includes manage all State-owned
assets and State-owned equity of its group and its investment
enterprises which are formed by State investment. As at 31
December 2006, no share of the Company held by CEA Holding
was pledged,

AI108 B AR A SR BRIRRE (R MR AR « &
DR A L R AR AR B 2 T s R
BRR R —BITEIAAR -

ERERRIEANE

N B R B R AN R P A
Ea

EMEERERARNEG AR - FHESR
AARY?2,558,441,0007T " SEERERA
AFEQELs  REHE SEEERQ
FIRERECEPHRARGERKNE
HMESEENBEGRRE - B#E_FETX
F+ZA=+—H  ZRREEALT)
MNEZLFEEER -

TREFHMERHFELE —SRAFFH
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Save as otherwise disclosed, during the year ended 31
December 2006, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of its issued securities
{as defined under Appendix 16(1) of the Listing Rules).

SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES OF THE
COMPANY AND THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES REQUIRED TO BE FOLLOWED BY U.S.
COMPANIES UNDER THE NEW YORK STOCK
EXCHANGE's LISTING STANDARDS

As a company incorporated in the PRC and listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE"), the Company
is subject to not only applicable PRC laws and regulations,
including the PRC Company Law, the PRC Securities Law, the
Corporate Governance Standards for Listed Companies and
Guidance QOpinions regarding the Establishment of the
Independent Director System in Listed Companies (the
“Independent Director Guidance”), but also Hong Kong laws
and regulations, including the Listing Rules, the Companies
Ordinance and the SFO, as well as applicable U.S. Federal
securities laws and regulations, including the U.S. Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 including amendments and the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. The Company is also subject to
the listing standards of the NYSE to the extent they apply
to non-U.S. issuers. The Company is not required to
completely comply with all of the corporate governance listing
standards of the NYSE.

In accordance with the requirements of Section 303A.11 of
the NYSE Listed Company Manual, the following is a summary
of the significant differences between the Company's
corporate governance practices and those required to be
followed by U.S. companies under the NYSE's listing standards.
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Section 303A.01 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual provides
that listed companies must have a majority of independent
Directors. As a company listed in the PRC, the Company is
subject to the requirement under the Independent Director
Guidance that at least one-third of its Board be independent
as determined thereunder. As a company listed in Hong
Kong, the Company is also subject to the requirement under
the Listing Rules that at least three members of its Board be
independent, and at least one of whom must have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Company currently has five
independent Directors out of a total of eleven Directors. The
standards for establishing independence set forth under either
the Independent Director Guidance or the Listing Rules differ
from those set forth in the NYSE Listed Company Manual.

Section 303A.03 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual provides
that listed companies must schedule regular executive
sessions in which non-management directors meet without
management participation. The Company is not required,
under either the applicable PRC law or the applicable Hong
Kong law, ta hold such executive sessions.

Section 303A.04 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual provides
that listed companies must have a nominating/corporate
governance committee composed entirely of independent
directors. Currently, the Company does not have a
nominating/corporate governance committee. The Company
can choose to have one but is not required to have such a
committee under either the applicable PRC law or Hong Kong
law. Section 303A.04 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual
also provides that the nominating/corporate governance
committee of a listed company must have a written charter
that addresses the committee’s purpose and responsibilities,
which include, among others, the development and
recommendation of corporate governance guidelines to the
listed company’s board of directors. The Board is directly
responsible for developing the Company’'s corporate
governance guidelines.

CREZ B LA F ) FE303A.015K
BRIMRAREEGAHBOKRRLEAR
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EeARA BN+ —REETRELER
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{HEZ BT ET R M) 53034035
BRI ARIAEBREHEIEMTES
SINMEE - Btk - HRNFBRERN
EELRETEAESEK -
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Section 303A.05 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual provides
that listed companies must have a compensation committee
composed entirely of independent directors. The remuneration
and appraisal committee of the Company is composed of
three independent Directors.

Section 303A.10 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual provides
that listed companies must adopt and disclose a code of
business conduct and ethics for directors, officers and
employees. As required under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
the Company has adopted a code of ethics that is applicable
to the Company’s Directors, Supervisors, President, Chief
Financial Officer and other senior managers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Under the articles of association of the Company and the
PRC laws, no pre-emptive rights exist which require the
Company to offer new shares to existing shareholders on a
pro rata basis.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this Annual
Report, the Directors believe that the Company has at all
times during the year ended 31 December 2006 maintained
the relevant applicable minimum percentage of listed
securities as prescribed by Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDINGS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS EE - EERERERABRER
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 15

AR EERBE-BEAEF_F
=+ HEE EERSHTEASH

Names, relevant information of and shares held by the
Directors, the Supervisors and members of senior management

of the Company during the year and as at 31 December 2006

are as follows:

Position

2

Number of listed
A shares of the
Company held -

personal interest

FRERE
nEAR
R¥-EARR

Capacity in
which the
A shares were held

FHAR S 7

£ AMESEERERNT

Effective date and
expiry date of
appointment

EHELRH

Li Fenghua Chairman of the Board 57 5,000 (Note 1) Beneficial Qwner June 2004-June 2007
F0% BER 5,000(5f51) REAEFA 2004.6-2007.6
(ac Jianxiong* Director, President 48 5,800 (Note 2) Beneficial Qwnes June 2004-June 2067
B ES pag 5,800 (&£ f§2) THEARA 2004.6-2007.6
Luo Chaogeng* Directars 57 5,000 (Note 1) Beneficial Qwner June 2005-
Bog- 8 5,000(zH 1) RaEfEaA June 2007

2(04.9-2007.6
Wan Mingwu** Director 60 5,000 (Note 1) Beneficial Owner June 2004-June 2007
ERR % 5,000(i 1) REAEA 2004.6-2007.6
Zhong Xiong Director 61 2,800 (Note 3} Beneficial Owner June 2004-June 2007
B W it 2,800{;1 3) REFHA 2004.6-2007.6
Luo Zhuping Director, Secretary of the Board 54 8,800 (Note 4) Beneficial Owner June 2004-June 2007
BHF ES-EFauA 8,800 (it f%4) HEEAA 2004.6-2007.6
Hu Honggao Independent Hon-executive Director 53 0 - June 2004-June 2007
HAER RUEZ 2004.6-2007.6
Pater Lok Independent Non-executive Director 70 0 - June 2004-June 2007
BER BUER 2004.6-2007.6

QL9
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Position

BH
Wu Baiwang Independent Nen-executive Director
RAH BYER
Zhou Ruijin Independent Nen-executive Director
Ag TR
¥iz Rong Independent Non-executive Director
G BUEE®
Li Wenxin Chairman of the Supervisory Committee
E3 ¢ EREIR
Ba Shengji Supervisar
By %
Yang Xingen Supervisor
BHRR E¥
Yang Jie Supervisor
h R EZ
Liu Jiashun Supervisor
PN %

Wu Jiuhong** -
Shie -

Zhou Liguo** -

E]?ﬁn —

059

b4

68

55

58

48

54

37

50

55

58

Number of listed
A shares of the
Company held -

personal interest

REALT
RBAR
Re-BAfE

6,000 {Note 5)
6,000{ 1 55)

8,800 (Note 4)
8,800 (FE FEs)

3,600 {Nate 5)
3,600{ B6)

5,000 (Note 1)
5,000 (1)

3,000 (Note 7}
3,000{ B7)

5,000 {Note 1)
5,000(E1)

3,000 {Note 7)
3,000{E &7)

Capacity in
which the
A shares were held

FiTAR 2 &

Beneficial Owner

RaffA

Beneficial Owner

FEEAA

Beneficial Owner

BEEAFA

Beneficial Quner

BEAAA

Beneficial Qwner

EHEARA

Beneficial Owner

RHAFA

Beneficial Qwner

RaARA

Effective date and
expiry date of
appointment

ERELAA

June 2004-June 2007
2004.6-2007.6

June 2004-June 2807
2004.6-2007.6

June 2004-June 2007
2004.6-2007.5

June 2004-June 2007
2004.6-2007.6

June 2004-June 2007
2004.6-2007.6

June 2004-June 2007
2004.6-2007.5

June 2004-June 2007
2004.6-2007.6

June 2004-June 2007
2004.6-2007.6

June 2004-October 2006
2004.6-2006.10

June 2004-December 2006
2004.6-2006.12
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Company held -
Position personal interest
FlFLR
WEAR
BE BE-BAER
Thang Janzhong  Vice President 52 0
Kgqg AliEge
Li Yangmin Vice President &4 3,000 (Note 7)
FRE BlEER 3,000 (F§7)
Tong Guozhap™™ - 48 5,000 {Note 1)
REE - 5,000 (it f# 1)
Fan Ru** Vice Prasident 58 2,800 {Note 3)
BE BlaEe 2,800 (F B3)
Luo Weide (hief Financial Officer 51 3,000 {Note 7)
BRe MkEz 3,000 f&7)
Note 1:representing approximately 0.001667% of the Company’s L
total issued listed A shares as at 31 December 2006
Note 2:representing approximately 0.001933% of the Company's g
total issued listed A shares as at 31 December 2006
Note 3:representing approximately 0.000933% of the Company’s i LI
total issued listed A shares as at 31 December 2006
Note 4:representing approximately 0.002667% of the Company's TERES
total issued listed A shares as at 31 December 2006
Note 5:representing approximately 0.002% of the Company's total s
issued listed A shares as at 31 December 2006
Note 6:representing approximately 0.001091% of the Company's 6 -
total issued listed A shares as at 31 December 2006
Note 7:representing approximately 0.001% of the Company’s total gy

Number of listed
A shares of the

issued listed A shares as at 31 December 2006

Mr. Luo Chacgeng was no longer the President of the
Company with effect from 12 October 2006 and Mr. Cao
Jianxiong was appointed as the President of the Company
with a term of office in line with that of the current session
of the Board.

A shares were held

Effective date and
expiry date of
appointment

Capacity in
which the

figAR g &

EHELES

- June 2004-June 2007
2004.6-2007.6

October 2005-June 2007
2005.10-2007.6

Beneficial Owner

REHEA

Beneficial Owner

ig:3: 2PN

April 2005-October 2006
2005.4-2006.10

November 2006-June 2007
2006.11-2007.6

Beneficial Owner

REBAA

June 2004-June 2007
2004.6-2007.6

Beneficial Owner

BEHEAA

MAEDTN-BERF+ZA=1
—RE#ITRAARGELYN
0.001667%

EALFIR-FFNFT_A=T
—AERTRBARAEEN
0.001933%

ERREIR -ERRFE+_A=+
—HBEBITRBAREEY
0.000933%

HERAR-FRAET_A=+
—BEETRBAREEN
0.002667%

HARATR _BENET A=+
— BRI HARR B B H90.002%

EARRRZFRANF A=~
—HERTABARAHA
0.001091%

HERTR - BEANET_A=+
—BEB{TBALR BB £70.001%

BHRREE -FTRE+A+=
BTAHTaRfegRmg - m
TREEEREEIAL QAL
B rHEAREEg B -
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e Mr. Wan Mingwu was no longer the Vice President of the
Company with effect from 12 October 2006.

Each of Mr. Wu Jiuhong and Mr. Tong Guozhou was no
longer the Vice President of the Company with effect from
25 October 2006.

Mr. Fan Ru was appointed as the Vice President of the
Company with effect from 21 November 2006, with a term
of office in line with that of the current session of the
Board.

Mr. Zhou Liguo was no longer the Vice President of the
Company with effect from 19 December 2006.

As at the date of this report, brief biographical details in
respect of each of the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management officers of the Company are as follows:

Mr. Li Fenghua is the incumbent chairman of the Board,
president and deputy party secretary of CEA Holding. Mr. Li
joined the civil aviation industry in 1968 and was deputy
head, and subsequently became head, of the 26th Fleet of
the CAAC from 1987 to 1992. From 1992 to 1996, Mr. Li
served as vice president, and then became president, of the
Hubei branch of China Southern Airlines (Group). Since 1996,
he became vice president of China Southern Airlines Company
Limited and vice president of China Southern Airlines (Group).
In 2000, Mr. Li became party secretary and vice president of
China Southern Airlines Company Limited. From October 2002
to September 2004, he served as the president of the Company
and vice president of CEA Holding. In September 2004, he
became president and deputy party secretary of CEA Holding.
Mr, Li graduated from the China Civil Aviation Senior Aviation
School and holds the title of First Class Pilot.

Mr. Cao Jianxiong is the Company’s president and is currently
an executive Director. Mr. Cao jained the civil aviation
industry in 1982. From 1992, he served as president of
Shanghai Eastern Airlines Development Company and in 1994
he became president of Eastern Airlines Futures Brokerage
Company. In early 1996 he served as assistant president of
the Company. From 1997, he served as vice president and
chief financial officer of the Company. Since December 1999,
he has served as vice president of CEA Group. Since October
2002, he served as vice president of CEA Holding, and he
also was the party secretary of China Eastern Air Northwest
Company from December 2002 to September 2004. Since
October 2006, he has served as president of the Company.
Mr. Caoc graduated from the Civil Aviation Management
Institute with a major in labour economics. Mr. Cao also
received a master degree in global economics from Eastern
China Normal University’s Department of International
Finance. Mr. Cao holds the title of Economist.
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Mr. Luo Chaogeng is currently an Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Luo joined the civil aviation industry in 1970.
Mr. Luo was a flight mechanic of the instructing team of the
Lanzhou Civil Aviation Administration Bureau from August
1970 to August 1972. From August 1972 to March 1989, he
was the flight mechanic of the 8th Civil Aviation Flight
Team. From March 1989 to August 1994, he was the deputy
commissar, commissar and party secretary of the Xi'an Flight
Team of China Northwest Airlines. From August 1994 to
October 1996, he was the party secretary of the aircraft
maintenance plant of China Northwest Airlines, From Qctober
1996 to March 1997, he was the party secretary and deputy
general manager of the aircraft maintenance base of China
Northwest Airlines. From March 1997 to December 2000, he
was the deputy director of the Civil Aviation Administration
Bureau of China Northwest Airlines. From December 2000 to
November 2001, Mr. Luo was the general manager of Yunnan
Airlines and the director and deputy party secretary of Civil
Aviation Administration Bureau of Yunan. From November
2001 to September 2002, he was the general manager and
deputy party secretary of Yunnan Airlines. From September
2002 to present, he has been the party constitution member
and vice president of CEA Holding. From September 2002 to
September 2004, he has alse been serving concurrently as
the general manager of Yunan Airlines. From September 2004
to the present, he has been the party constitution member
and vice president of China Airlines Group Company, and
from September 2004 to October 2006 was President and
deputy party secretary of China Airlines Corporation Limited.
From September 1998 to June 2001, Mr. Luo studied a post-
graduate course for incumbent leading cadres in professional
economics and management at the Central Party School of
Shaanxi. Mr. Luo has first class competency in flight
mechanics.

Mr. Wan Mingwu is currently an Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Wan joined the civil aviation industry in 1968.
From 1983 to 1990 he was the deputy section chief and
section chief of the cadre section of the political department
of the CAAC Shenyang Bureau. From 1990 to 1992 he was
the section chief of the personnel section of China Northern
Airlines. From 1992 to 1995 he was the deputy party secretary
of China Northern Airlines and from 1995 to 2000 he was
the party secretary of China Northern Airlines. From December
2000 to October 2006 he was the party secretary and vice
president of the Company. Mr. Wan graduated from Civil
Aviation Mechanics Vocational School. Mr. Wan is a college
graduate and holds the title of Senior Political Work
Instructor.
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Mr. Zhang Xiong is currently a Non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Zhong joined the civil aviation industry in
1970. From 1986 to 1988, he was vice president of
Transportation Services Company of the CAAC Shanghai Bureau
and was president of the sales and transportation department
of China Eastern Airlines from 1988 to 1992. From 1992 to
April 1995, he was vice president of China Eastern Airlines.
From May 1995 to April 2002, Mr. Zhong has been vice
president of the Company, and was the Chairman of the
workers’ union of CEA Holding from April 2002 to March
2006. He graduated in 1970 from the Enalish Department of
Liaoning Teacher’s College and holds the title of Economist.

Mr. Luo Zhuping is an Executive Director of the Company, the
secretary of the Board and the head of the secretariat of the
Board. Mr. Luo joined CEA in 1988. He was deputy chief and
then chief of the enterprise management department of China
Eastern Airlines from 1992 to 1997. He was deputy head of
the share system office from 1993 to 1996. In 1997, he
became the secretary of the Board and the head of the
secretariat of the Board. He became a Director of the Company
in June 2004. Mr. Luo graduated from the Faculty of Philosophy
and the Faculty of Law of Anhui University in 1979 and 1985,
respectively. In 1994, Mr. Luo received a Master degree from
the Economics Department of Eastern China Normal University,
majoring in global economics. In 1998, he participated in the
training programme for senior managers of large state-owned
enterprises organised in the U.5.A. by the State Economic
and Trade Commission and Morgan Stanley.

Mr. Hu Honggao was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company in 1996. He is the vice
dean and professor of the School of Law at Fudan University
as well as the head of the Civil and Commercial Law Research
Centre of Fu Dan University, supervising doctoral students
majoring in civil and commercial law at Fu Dan University.
He is also a senior lawyer at the Shanghai Shen Yang Law
Office. Mr. Hu is a managing director of China Commercial
Law Research Society, a managing director of China Economic
Law Research Society (P REELIH RS ERKIEE), a
member of the Legislative Consultation Committee of the
Shanghai Municipal Gevernment, a member of the Legislative
Profession Consultation Committee of the Shanghai Standing
Committee of the People's Congress ( LT AABRE G Y
FEHRHBEBZEE) vice chairman of the Shanghai Economic
Law Research Society and an arbitrator of the Shanghai
Arbitration Committee.
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Mr. Peter Lok was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company in 1998. Mr. Lok went to the College
of Air Traffic Control in England for further studies after
joining the Hong Kong Civil Aviation Department in December
1956. He studied air transport, air accident investigation
and administration and management of civil aviation in
England from 1968 to 1973, In 1982, he became assistant
director of the Hong Kong Civil Aviation Department. From
1985, during his time in office at the air services division of
the Hong Kong Civil Aviation Department, he participated in
negotiations with various countries regarding air traffic
rights. He became deputy director in 1988, and subsequently
became director in 1990 of the Hong Kong Civil Aviation
Department. Mr. Lok retired in 1996 and has served as a
consultant at the Flights Standards Department of the CAAC,
Mr. Lok is the first Chinese director of the Hong Kong Civil
Aviation Department and was at one time an instructor at
the College of Air Traffic Control of Hong Kong.

Mr. Wu Baiwang was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company in 1998, Mr, Wu joined
the civil aviation industry in 1959 and was deputy fleet
leader and subsequently became fleet leader of the 12th
Fleet of the CAAC from 1976 to 1984. From 1984 to 1992,
Mr. Wu was deputy head and subsequently became head of
the CAAC Jilin Bureau. From 1992 to 1995, Mr. Wu was the
head and party secretary of the CAAC Northeastern Bureau.
From September 1995 to 1998, he became president of China
General Aviation Corporation. He was the party secretary
and vice president of Guangzhou Baiyun International Airport
Group Company and the Chairman of the Board of Directors
of Guangzhou Baiyun International Airport Company Limited
from 1998 to September 2003. Mr. Wu graduated from Chinese
Civil Aviation School in 1965 and holds the title of First
Class Pilot.

Mr. Zhou Ruijin was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in 2000. Mr. Zhou was
deputy editor-in-chief and the East China regional director
of the People’s Daily. From 1988 to 1993 Mr. Zhou was the
party secretary and deputy editor-in-chief of the Liberation
Daily. From April 1993 to 1996 he was deputy editor-in-
chief of the People’s Daily and from 1996 to 2000 he was
deputy editor-in-chief and the East China regional director
of the People’s Daily. After retired, he became Vice chairman
of the China Productivity Council and Chairman of the
Shanghai Productivity Council. Mr. Zhou graduated from the
journalism department of Fudan University in 1962.
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Mr. Xie Rong was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company in 2003. Mr. Xie is a certified
accountant in the PRC. He is the deputy head of Shanghai
National Accounting Institute. He taught at the faculty of
accounting of Shanghai University of Finance and Economics
from December 1985 to March 1997, and had been an
assistant professor, a professor, a doctorate-tutor and the
deputy dean of the faculty. Mr. Xie was a partner of KPMG
Huazhen from December 1997 to October 2002, and has,
since October 2002, been the deputy head of Shanghai
National Accounting Institute. Mr. Xie graduated from
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics and has a
doctorate degree in Economics.

Mr. Li Wenxin is currently chairman of the Company’s
supervisory committee (“Supervisory Committee”). Mr. Li
joined the civil aviation industry in 1970. From 1992 to
1995 he was the secretary of the disciplinary committee of
China General Aviation Company. From 1995 to 1996 he was
deputy party secretary of China General Aviation Corporation.
From 1996 to 1998 he was deputy president of China General
Aviation Corporation and from February 1998 to June 2000,
he assumed the post of party secretary and executive deputy
president of the Shanxi branch of the Company. From June
2000 to September 2002, he served as deputy party secretary
and secretary of the disciplinary committee of CEA Group.
From October 2002 to August 2006, he served as party
secretary and vice president of CEA Holding. He has been
the Chairman of the Supervisory Committee since June 2000.
Mr. Li received university education and is a qualified Senior
Political Work Instructor.
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Mr. Ba Shengji is currently a Supervisor. Mr. Ba joined the
civil aviation industry in 1978. From 1980, Mr. Ba was an
accountant at the Department of Finance of the CAAC
Shanghai Bureau. From 1988, he served as the section head
of the Department of Finance of China Eastern Airlines. In
1993, Mr. Ba became the deputy head of the Department of
Finance of China Eastern Airlines. In March 1997, Mr. Ba
became the chief officer of the auditing office of the
Company. From December 1997 to September 2002, he served
as the head of CEA Group’s auditing department, From October
2002 to November 2006, he served as the head of CEA
Holding’s auditing departiment, and from January 2003 to
November 2006, he concurrently served as the chief of CEA
Holding's disciplinary committee’s administrative office. Since
November 2006, Mr. Ba has served as the secretary of the
disciplinary committee of the Company. Mr. Ba received
university education and is a qualified auditor.

Mr. Yang Xingen is currently a Supervisor. Mr. Yang was the
deputy political committee member of the 1st flying battalion
and political committee member of the 2nd battalion of
105th Regiment, 35th Division from July 1980 to July 1986,
From July 1986 to Qctober 1997, he was the party branch
secretary and manager of China Eastern Airlines Advertisement
Service Company, respectively. From October 1997 to April
2000, he was the party deputy secretary, secretary for the
disciplinary committee and political director of the Shanghai
flying squadron of the Company. From April 2000 to August
2002, he was the deputy secretary of the disciplinary
committee cum director of the office of discipline committee
and director of the supervision office. From August 2002 to
October 2005, he has been the deputy secretary for the
disciplinary committee of the Company. Since October 2005,
he has been the party secretary and vice president of Jiangxi
branch of the Company. Mr. Yang has been educated to the
tertiary level. He was graduated from the faculty of mechanics
of the Air Force Second Aviation Mechanics School.
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Ms. Yang Jie is currently a Supervisor. Ms. Yang joined the
civil aviation industry in 1992. From 1996 to 1998 she was
the electronic technology supervisor of the technology office
and Communist Youth League secretary of the overhaul
department at the aircraft maintenance base of the Company.
From 1998 to September 2000 she was Communist Youth
League deputy secretary of the aircraft maintenance base of
the Company. She was the deputy secretary of the Company’s
Communist Youth League from September 2000 to July 2002,
and the secretary of the Company's Communist Youth League
from August 2002 to January 2003, Since January 2003, she
has been the secretary of the Communist Youth League of
CEA Holding, as well as the secretary of the Communist
Youth League of the Company. Ms. Yang graduated with a
major in aviation electronics from the China Civil Aviation
Academy and a major in Business Administration from Sunny
Management Academy (B B & 12 82 8% T 7 F 12 ) at Donghua
University and she received a master degree in Business
Administration. She is also a qualified engineer.

Mr. Liu Jiashun has been a Supervisor of the Company since
2000. From 1993 to 1999 Mr. Liu was party secretary, deputy
president and secretary of the disciplinary committee
secretary of China Aviation Fuel Hainan Company, as well as
chairman of the board and president of Hainan Nanyang Air
Transport Co., Ltd. From 1997 to 1999 he was also in charge
of fuel supply engineering at Haikou's Meilan Airport and
served as director of Meilan Airport Co., Ltd. and vice
chairman of the board and president of Meilan Industrial
Co., Ltd. From 1999 to 2000 he was deputy party secretary
of China Aviation Fuel East China Company and he is currently
deputy party secretary and secretary of the disciplinary
committee of the East China branch of China Aviation Fuel
Company. Mr. Liu received post-graduate education and is
qualified as a political work instructor.
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Mr. Wu Jiuhong was a vice president of the Company. Mr.
Wu joined the civil aviation industry in 1971. From 1968 to
1971 he served in the 60th divisien under the 20th army.
From 1971 to 1973 he studied aviation machinery at the
Civil Aviation College. From 1973 to 1981 he was with the
18th Fleet of the CAAC's 2nd General Fleet. From 1985 to
1988 he served as Communist Youth League secretary and
deputy head of the political department of the CAAC Jiangxi
Bureau. From 1988 to 1995 he concurrently served as deputy
party secretary and disciplinary committee secretary of the
Cabin Service Department of China Eastern Airlines, From
1995 to 1997 he served as head of the Company’s publicity
department. From 1997 to 2002, he served as party secretary
and executive vice president of the Company's Jiangxi branch.
From April 2002 to October 2006 he was vice president of
the Company. He also served as the party secretary of China
Eastern Air Northwest Company from September 2004 to
November 2005. Mr. Wu received post-graduate education
and is a qualified senior political wark instructor.

Mr. Zhou Ligue was a vice president of the Company. He
joined the civil aviation industry in 1981, and attended the
Air Force Changchun First Reserve Flight School from 1966
to 1967 and the Air Force Harbin First Navigation School
from 1967 to 1969. Mr. Zhou performed his military service
with the 34th Division of the Air Force from 1969 to 1981,
and served as squadron leader in the 5th Fleet of the Civil
Aviation from 1984 to 1988. Mr. Zhou was deputy fleet
leader of China Eastern Airlines” Shanghai Fleet from 1988
to 1992, and leader of the said fleet from 1992 to 1997,
From 1997 to 2000, he served as general manager and deputy
party secretary of the Company's General Flight Department.
In 2000 he became assistant president of the Company, and
from 2000 to 2003 he served as president and deputy party
secretary of China Cargo Airlines Limited. Mr. Zhou was the
Company’s chief economic official from December 2003 to
April 2004. He served as a vice president of the Company
from April 2004 to December 2006. Mr. Zhou received
university education and holds the title of First Class Pilot.
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Mr. Zhang Jianzhong is a vice president of the Company. Mr.
Zhang joined the civil aviation industry in 1982. From April
1982 to December 1987, he was an assistant of the CAAC
Shanghai Planning Bureau. From December 1987 to April
1990, he was the deputy director of the ptanning department
of Shanghai Honggiao International Airport. From April 1990
to January 1996, he was the director of the planning
department of China Eastern Airlines. From January 1996 to
April 1999, he was the manager of the sales and marketing
department of the Company. From April 1999 to April 2003,
he was the assistant to the president of the Company. From
September 2000 to December 2001, he served concurrently
as the director of the office of strategic study of the
Company. From December 2001 to May 2003, he served
concurrently as the general manager of the computer
information centre of the Company. From April 2003 to June
2004, he was the chief economic official of the Company.
From May 2003 to June 2004, he served concurrently as the
general manager of the sales and marketing department of
the Company. From June 2004 to the present, he has been a
vice president of the Company. Mr. Zhang graduated from
the Faculty of Mechanical Engineering of Zhejiang University
and also Economics and Management at Fudan University
from which he obtained a master degree.
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Mr. Tong Guozhao was a vice president of the Company. Mr.
Tong joined the civil aviation industry in 1980. From January
1980 to May 1992, Mr. Tong had been the deputy pilot,
chief pilot and captain of the flight team of Urumgi Civil
Aviation Bureau. From May 1992 to April 1997, he had been
the captain, sub-team leader, deputy squadron leader and
squadron leader of the Shanghai Flight Team of China Eastern
Airlines. From April 1997 to May 1998, he was a vice president
of the Shanghai Flight Team of the Company. From May 1998
to March 2001, he was the president of the Safety Monitoring
Department of the Company. From March 2001 to January
2004, he was the president of the Anhui branch company of
the Company. From January 2004 to September 2004, he was
the president and deputy party secretary of the China Cargo
Airlines Corporation Limited. From September 2004 to April
2005, he was the assistant to the president of the Company
cum president of the Operation Control Centre. From April
2005 to October 2006, he served as the vice president of
the Company. Mr. Tong graduated from the Civil Aviation
School and Anhui School of Business and Administration
(EBIEEERP). He received a master degree in
business administration and holds the title of Second Class
Pilot.

Mr. Li Yangmin is a vice president of the Company. Mr. Li
joined the civil aviation industry in 1985. From July 1985 to
October 1996, he was the Deputy Head of the aircraft
maintenance workshop (RSB ER), Head of
technology office and secretary of the workshop branch of
Northwest Company (Z51iLfiZE 42 5]) . From October 1996
to June 2002, he was the deputy general manager of the
aircraft maintenance base and the manager of air route
department (f1#4% #0) of Northwest Company (LM ZE &
dl). From June 2002 to March 2004, he was the general
manager of the aircraft maintenance base of China Eastern
Air Northwest Company. From March 2004 to October 2005,
he was the Vice President and a member of the standing
committee to the party committee of China Eastern Air
Northwest Company. Since October 2005, he has been Deputy
General Manager of the Company. Mr. Li is a university
graduate from China Civil Aviation Academy. He is a qualified
senior engineer.
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Mr. Fan Ru is the Company's vice president. Mr. Fan started
his civil aviation career in 1966. He was a deputy fleet
leader of China Eastern Airlines” Shanghai Fleet since 1988
and was the head of aviation technology management office
of China Eastern Airlines since 1995. He was appointed as
the deputy chief pilot and the head of aviation technology
management office of the Company since 1997, He was the
chief pilot of the Company from 1999 to November 2006,
and was appointed as the vice president of the Company
since November 2006. Mr. Fan graduated from Advanced
Aviation School for professional flying. He has received
tertiary education and has obtained first class technical
qualifications for pilots.

Mr. Luo Weide is the Company's chief financial officer. In
1976 Mr. Luo began his military service at the Air Force in
Livan Airport. From 1979 to 1991 he successively served as
department head and deputy head of the Putuo branch of
the Shanghai Municipal Tax Bureau. From 1991 to 1993 he
concurrently served as head of the finance bureau and the
state asset bureau of Putuo District, Shanghai. From 1993 to
1998 he successively served as deputy chief accountant,
chief accountant and executive deputy president of Shanghai
Jingiao (Group) Co., Ltd. From 1998 to 2000, he was vice
president of Shanghai Pudong Development (Group) Co., Ltd.
and chairman of the board and president of Pudong Finance
Company. Since 2000 he has been chief financial officer of
the Company. Mr. Luo graduated from the Sino-European
International Business School in 1999 with a Master's degree
in business administration. He holds the titles of Senior
Accountant and Senior Economist.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has issued
a confirmation in respect of the factors set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules concerning his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.15 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.
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CHANGES IN THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

On 12 October 2006, the fourth session of the Board held
the twenty-fourth meeting for 2006 to resolve by written
resolution that Mr. Cao Jianxiong be appeinted as President
of the Company with a term of office in line with that of
the current session of the Board, and that Mr. Luo Chaogeng
would cease to be President of the Company and Mr.Wan
Mingwu would cease to be Vice President of the Company.
Mr. Cao Jianxiong would be redesignated as Executive Director
of the Company, and both Mr. Luo Chaogeng and Mr. Wan
Mingwu would remain as Directors of the Company.

On 25 October 2006, the fourth session of the Board held
the twenty-fifth meeting for 2006 to resolve by written
resolution that Mr. Wu Jiuhong and Mr. Tong Guozhao be
removed as Vice President of the Company.

On 21 November 2006, the fourth session of the Board held
the twenty-sixth meeting for 2006 to resolve by written
resolution that, based on the nomination by Mr. Cao
Jianxiong, President of the Company, Mr. Fan Ru be appointed
as the Vice President of the Company to be in charge of
aviation operatiens, with a term of office in line with that
of the current session of the Board.

On 19 December 2006, the fourth session of the Board held
the twenty-seventh meeting for 2006 to resolve by written
resolution that Mr. Zhou Liguo would cease to be Vice
President of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDINGS OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2006, none of
the Directors, chief executives, Supervisors or members of
the Company’s senior management and their respective
associates had any other interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares and/or debentures {as the case
may be) of the Company and/or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFQ)
which was required to be notified to the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any
interest or short position which any of such Directors, chief
executives, Supervisors or members of the Company's senior
management and their respective associates were taken ar
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFQ, or which was otherwise
required to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers {the “Model Code™)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (which shall
be deemed to apply to the Supervisors to the same extent as
it applied to the Directors).

In 2006 and as at 31 December 2006, none of the Directors,
chief executives, Supervisors, senior management of the
Company and/or any of their spouses or children under the
age of eighteen were granted any right, and the Company
had not made any arrangement enabling any of them, to
subscribe for share capital or debt securities of the Company.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

No Director or Supervisor has entered into any service contract
with the Company which is not terminable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS IN
CONTRACTS

None of the Directors or Supervisors had a material interest
directly or indirectly in any contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during
the year {the term ‘contract of significance’ having the
meaning ascribed thereto in paragraph 15 of Appendix 16 to
the Listing Rules).
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Details of the remuneration of Directors and Supervisors are
set out in note 8 to the financial statements prepared in
accordance with IFRS.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2006, the Group had 38,392 employees, a
majority of whom worked in the PRC. Employee compensation
is primarily composed of basic salary and performance-based
bonus.

MEDICAL INSURANCE

In January 2001, the Group joined the medical insurance
scheme promulgated by the Shanghai Municipal Government.
The Group and its employees contribute approximately 12%
and 2% respectively of the employees’ basic salaries to the
scheme. The Group has no other significant obligation for
the payment of medical expenses other than the above-
mentioned contributions. The Group believes that its
contributions to such scheme will not have significant impact
on the operations or financial position of the Group. For the
year ended 31 December 2006, the Group’s medical insurance
contributions charged to the income statement amounted to
RMB60 million {2005: RMB52 million).

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company
and the Group as at 31 December 2006 are set out in note
28 to the financial statements prepared in accordance with
IFRS.

INTEREST CAPITALIZED

Interest capitalized by the Group as calculated in accordance
with IFRS for the year ended 31 December 2006 was RMB424
million,

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Company
and the Group during the year are summarized in note 15 to
the financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the
Group, and profit appropriation by the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2006 are set out in note 36 to the
financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS.
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STATUTORY COMMON WELFARE FUND

Details in relation to the statutory common welfare fund,
such as the nature and application of and movements in the
fund, and the basis of its calculation, including the
percentage used for calculating the amounts, are set out in
note 36 to the financial statements prepared in accordance
with IFRS.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations for charitable
purposes amounting to RMB410 thousand.

EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the Company’s employee retirement scheme and
post retirement benefits are set out in note 32 to the
financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

As at 31 December 2006, the cost of aircraft and related
materials from the Group's largest and five largest suppliers
combined accounted for approximately 16.25% and 35%,
respectively, of the total purchases of the Group. The
aggregate percentage of sales attributable to the Group's
five largest customers combined accounted for 9.4% of the
Group’s total sales in 2006.

CEA Holding is interested in 55% of Shanghai Dongmei
Aviation Travel Company Limited, one of the top five
customers, since May 2003, whereas the Company is interested
in 45%. In 2006, the air ticket sales for which the Group
delegated Dongmei Air Travel Company Limited as its agent
accounted for approximately 1.5% of the total sales of the
Group.

Except as disclosed above, none of the Directors, Supervisors
or any of their respective associates nor any shareholder to
the knowledge of the Directors holding 5% or more of the
Company's share capital had any interest in any of the above
mentioned suppliers and customers.
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MATERIAL CONTRACTS

(1) On 10 April 2006, the Company entered into an aircraft
purchase agreement in Shanghai with Boeing Company
to purchase sixteen Boeing 737 NG series aircraft. Details
are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 11
April 2006 and 26 April 2006 and the circular dated 30
May 2006;

{2) On 26 June 2006, the Company entered into an aircraft
purchase agreement in Beijing with Airbus SAS to
purchase thirty Airbus A320 series aircraft. Details are
set out in the Company’s announcements dated 26 June
2006 and 18 July 2006 and the circular dated 31 July
2006.

AGM AND BOARD MEETINGS
AGM

The 2005 Annual General Meeting of the Company was held
on 28 June 2006 at Meeting Centre, Shanghai Home You
Hotel, 2550 Honggiao Road, Shanghai to consider the
resolutions proposed by the Board, and approved by way of
ordinary resolutions: the working report of the Board for
2005; the working report of the Supervisory Committee for
2005; the audited financial report for 2005; the appointment
of PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian CPAs Limited Company
as the Company's PRC domestic auditors for 2006 and the
appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company's
international auditors for 2006, and to authorize the Board
to determine their remuneration.
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Extraordinary General Meeting

The Company held the first extraordinary general meeting of
2006 on 9 November 2006 at Meeting Centre, Shanghai Home
You Hotel, 2550 Honggiao Road, Shanghai, during which the
resolution regarding the Company’s purchase of thirty Airbus
A320 series aircraft was considered and passed.

The Company held the relevant shareholders’ meeting of the
A share market in relation to the share reform plan on 18
December 2006 at Meeting Centre, Shanghai Home You Hotel,
2550 Honggiaoe Road, Shanghai, during which the Company’s
share reform plan was passed.

Board Meetings

During 2006 the Company's Board held nineteen reqular
meetings and passed, among other resolutions, the following
resolutions:

1) On 2 March 2006, the fourth session of the Board of
the Company convened its sixteenth meeting, during
which it was resolved that two B737-300 aircraft be
sold and the president was authorized to determine the
selling price.

2) 0On 10 March 2006, the fourth session of the Board of
the Company convened its seventeenth meeting, during
which it was resolved that the Joint Venture Agreement
of Aviation Passenger Traffic for World Expo 2010
Shanghai to be signed with the Shanghai World Expo
Bureau and the president was authorized to determine
the specific details.

3) On 10 April 2006, the fourth session of the Board of
the Company convened its eighteenth meeting, during
which the resolution regarding the construction plan of
the base in Hangzhou was approved in principal; the
reforming plan of the maintenance engineering system
was approved in principal, and the president was
authorized to take charge of the overall implementation;
it was resolved that an information technology
management department to be established; and it was
resolved that a passenger traffic marketing committee
to be established.
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On 25 April 2006, the fourth session of the Board of
the Company convened its nineteenth meeting, during
which the resolution regarding the selection and
appointment of the Company’s PRC domestic auditors
and international auditors for 2006 from the four major
international accounting firms by way of tender was
approved in principal, and the result of the tender would
be reported to the Board for approval and then be
proposed to the 2005 AGM of the Company for
consideration; and the resolution to be proposed to the
2005 AGM of the Company for consideration was approved
and the secretary of the Board was authorized to
dispatch the notice of the 2005 AGM before 15 May
2006.

On 12 May 2006, the fourth session of the Board of the
Company convened its twentieth meeting, during which
it was resolved to select and appoint the Company's
PRC domestic auditors and international auditors for
2006 by way of tender and propose to convene the
2005 AGM of the Company.

On 28 June 2006, the fourth session of the Board of
the Company convened its twenty-first meeting, during
which it was resolved to enter into negotiations
regarding the purchase of land lots W6 and W7 in the
area of maintenance in Pudong Airport, and would report
to the Board of Directors for approval after the overall
price was confirmed.

On 28 August 2006, the fourth session of the Board of
the Company convened its twenty-secand meeting, during
which it was resolved to sell three A310 aircraft and
their spare parts and accessories, and the president was
authorized to take charge of the specific matters
regarding the selling and report the selling price to the
Board of Directors for filing; the reselution regarding
the removal and reconstruction project of Hefei Base,
the Anhui Branch office, was in principal passed; to use
a capital of approximately RMB% million to purchase
Shanghai Eastern Air Industrial Corparation an the basis
of an asset valuation; to adjust the investment
proportion on Air Logistics Information Platferm
Company (a provisional name); and to complete the
Sarbanes project according to the original plan.
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10)

11)

12)

On 25 September 2006, the fourth session of the Board
of the Company convened its twenty-third meeting,
during which it was resolved to convene the Company's
first extraordinary general meeting of 2006 on 9
November 2006, Thursday, at Meeting Centre, Shanghai
Home You Hotel, 2550 Honggiao Road, Shanghai
(situated at the South-Eastern side of Honggiao
International Airport), during which the resolution
regarding the Company's purchase of thirty Airbus A320
series aircraft from Airbus SAS would be considered.

{n 12 October 2006, the fourth session of the Board of
the Company convened its twenty-fourth meeting, during
which it was resolved that Mr. Luo Chaogeng would
cease to act as the president of the Company, Mr. Wan
Mingwu would cease to act as the vice president of the
Company, and that Mr. Cao Jianxiong would be appointed
as the president of the Company.

On 24 October 2006, the fourth session of the Board of
the Company convened its twenty-fifth meeting, during
which it was resolved that each of Mr. Wu Jiuhong and
Mr. Tong Guozhao to be removed as vice president of
the Company due to investigation by the Communist
Party in connection with allegations of their personal
unlawful conduct, and other personnel designated by
the president was authorized to be respeonsible for the
job duties of Mr. Wu Jiuhong and Mr. TJong Guozhao.

On 21 November 2006, the fourth session of the Board
of the Company convened its twenty-sixth meeting,
during which it was resolved that Mr. Fan Ru be
appointed as vice president upon the nomination of Mr.
Cao Jianxiong, president.

On 6 December 2006, the fourth session of the Board of
the Company convened its twenty-seventh meeting,
during which it was resolved that Mr. Zhou Liguo would
cease to act as the vice president of the Company.
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13)
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On 18 December 2006, the fourth session of the Board
of the Company convened its twenty-eighth meeting,
during which it was resolved to approve, authorize and
ratify Mr. Luo Zhuping, a Director and company secretary,
to sign the forms, acceptance letter and other related
dacuments which were required to be submitted in
relation with the registration of the Company in the
electronic submission system; to approve and authorize
Mr. Luo Zhuping, a Director and Company Secretary, to
make all necessary amendments on the above documents;
and to approve the forms and acceptance letters which
were required to be submitted in relation with the
registration of the Company in the electronic submission
system.

On 27 December 2006, the fourth session of the Board
of the Company convened its twenty-ninth meeting,
during which the Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions by Employees of the Company (Provisional)
was approved; the Accounting System of CEA was
approved; it was agreed that the "high value turnover
parts” will be treated as fixed assets, the depreciation
is calculated over the useful lives of 10 years and the
residual value rate is 0% in accordance with the new
Accounting Standards for Enterprises; and it was agreed
that the requlated price is used for the calculation of
the initial price which meets the requirement of the
materials management,

On 5 January 2006, the Board of the Company convened
its first regular meeting for 2006, during which the
following were considered and adopted: the financial
statement for 2006; the investment plan for 2006; the
report of the president; the selling and leaseback of
five A330 standby engines was approved and the
president was authorized to determine the selling and
leasing prices.
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16) On 10 April 2006, the Board of the Company convened
its second regular meeting for 2006, during which the
following were considered and passed: the Company's
audit report for 2005; the Company’s capital settlement
plan; the Company’s profit appropriation proposal for
2005; the Company's draft results announcement for
2005 {(H/A shares); the Interim Provisions on the
Administration of Intermediary Agencies; and the Interim
Provisions on the Treatment Procedures of Misconduct
of the Employees.

17) On 25 April 2006, the Board of the Company convened
its third regular meeting for 2006, during which the
financial statements of the Company for the first quarter
of 2006 were considered and passed.

18) On 28 August 2006, the Board of the Company convened
its fourth regular meeting for 2006, during which the
interim financial report of the Company for 2005 and
the announcement draft of the interim financial report
of the Company for 2006 were considered and passed.

19) On 26 October 2006, the Board of the Company convened
its fifth regular meeting for 2006, during which the
financial statements of the Company for the third quarter
of 2006 were considered and passed.

Resolution No. 3 of the twenty-secand meeting of the fourth
sessign of the Board were resolutions on connected
transactions, and directors involved in the connected
transactions abstained from the vote.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between the Company and its connected persons
or their respective associates {as defined in the Listing Rules)
are governed by and have to comply with the requirements
for disclosure under the Listing Rules. The following table
sets out the annual limits for the continuing connected
transactions between the Group and members of CEA Helding
for 2006:

BEXS

ARFHABEATRAESBBREA
(ERELHRRA) 2Bz HEETR
e EHRAZATEERR o T&RMA
PRLAEEERHEMETRBOFR
HEBEZ S TN BT REERE
RHIRE

Annual cap

for the year ended

Transactions 31 December 2006

2006 £

X5 BEXZZIRA

(RMB'000)

(AR¥F )

Property leasing WEESE 60,000

Financial services Bt 75 AR 7%

Deposit and other TFRRAEM

financial services B 75 RR % 1,100,000

3. Import/export agency services HEEORERS 55,000

4. Maintenance services HERG 36,000

5. Catering services MERERK 417,000

6. Sales agency services HMEHERERE 88,683

7. Advertising services SRS 16,000

Details of the Group’s continuing connected transactions
with the Company’s connected persons (as defined in the
Listing Rules) during the year ended 31 December 2006 are
set out in note 41 to the financial statements prepared in
accordance with IFRS.

For further details regarding the above continuing connected
transactions, please refer to the Company’s 2005 annual
report.
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The Company’'s independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed such continuing connected transactions during the
year 2006 and confirmed that:

{a) the transactions have been entered into by the Group
in the ordinary and usual course of its business;

{b) the transactions have been entered into either (i} on
normal commercial terms (by reference to transactions
of a similar nature made by similar entities within China)
or (ii) (where there is no available comparison) on
terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the
shareholders of the Company are concerned; and

(c)} the transactions have been entered into either (i) in
accordance with the terms of the agreement governing
each such connected transaction or (ii) {where there is
no such agreement) on terms no less favorable than
terms available to third parties.

In respect of each continuing connected transaction disclosed
in note 41 to the financial statements prepared in accordance
with IFRS, the Company confirms that it has complied with
the relevant requirements under the Listing Rules.

Details of the other related party transactions entered by
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2006 are set
out in note 41 to the financial statements prepared in
accordance with IFRS. These transactions do not constitute
connected transactions under the Listing Rules.
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In relation to future deliveries of aircraft, as at 31 December
2006, the following are details of aircraft on order which
are scheduled to be delivered:

Type of aircraft

TEER

WG R TE TS - R BTAET
ZA=+—B - KRFRAN BOT
SHEmMT

Number of aircraft Year to be delivered

A FTEF®H

A319
A320
A321
A330-300
A330-200
B737-700
EMB-145
B747F
A330-200
A330-300
A319
A321
A320
B737-700
B737-800
B787

As at the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of
any aircraft which are subject to options exercisable during
a period of not less than 12 months from 31 December
2006.

STAFF QUARTERS

Details of the Group’s staff quarters are set out in note 33
to the financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

In 2005, the family members of certain victims in the aircraft
accident {the aircraft was then owned and operated by China
Eastern Air Yunnan Company), which occurred in Baotou on
21 November 2004, sued the Company in a U.S. court for
compensation, the amount of which is yet to be determined.
As at 31 December 2006, the Group had filed a motion to
contest against the claim in the U.5. court, but the U.S.
court has not yet rendered judgment. Save as the
above-mentioned, the Company was not involved in any other
new material litigation during the year 2006.

2007
2007
2007
2007
2007
2007
2007
2007
2008
2008
2008
2008
2008
2008
2008
2008
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

1.

On 12 May 2006, the Board decided that £ R ZE B R
€ BT B IE AT (Shanghai Zhonghua Certified Public
Accountants), the Company’s PRC domestic auditers for
the financial year ended 31 December 2005, would not
be re-appointed as its PRC domestic auditors for the
financial year ending 31 December 2006, and that & £
K B R ORE G E BB AMAER QA
{PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian CPAs Limited
Company)} was selected based on the result of a tender
and was proposed to be appointed as the Company's
PRC domestic auditors. Such appointment was approved
by sharehglders of the Company at its 2005 Annual
General Meeting held on 28 June 2006.

On 29 December 2006, the Board approved the
Provisional Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions
by Employees of the Company.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ OPINION

Independent Directors of the Company have performed
auditing work and issued an independent opinion on the
guarantees the Company has provided, as required by the
relevant requirements of the CSRC. The Company has strictly
observed relevant laws and requlations as well as its articles
of association while it has also imposed strict control on
the guarantees provided. As at 31 December 2006, none of
the Company and its subsidiaries included in the consolidated
financial statements has provided any guarantee to the
Company's contralling shareholder and other related parties,
other non-legal person entity units and individuals.
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AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public Accountants, Hong
Kong and PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian CPAs Limited
Company (registered accountants in the PRC) were the
Company’s international and domestic auditors in 2006,
respectively.

On behalf of the Board

Li Fenghua
Chairman of the Board

Shanghai, China
19 April 2007
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has established a formal and appropriate
corporate governance structure, The Company has also placed
emphasis on the corporate governance principle of having
transparency, accountability and safequarding the interests
of all shareholders.

The Directors believe that sound corporate governance is
essential to the development of the Company’s operations.
The Board regularly reviews our corporate governance
practices to ensure that the Company operates in accordance
with the laws, regulations and requirements of the listing
jurisdictions, and that the Company continuously implements
corporate governance of a high quality.

The Company’s corporate governance practices includes but
are not limited to the following:

Articles of association and working rules of the Board
{(including rules of meeting of the Board, procedures of
meetings of the Board, constitutional document of the audit
committee, constitutional documents of the planning and
development committee, constitutional documents of the
remuneration and appraisal committee, working reporting
rules of the senior management, notices regarding the
purchasing of shares of the Company by Directors, Supervisors
and senior management, information disclosure and
management regulations, and the Code of Conduct for
Securities Transactions by Employees of the Company).

As at 31 December 2006 (the “Reporting Period”} and as at
the date of the announcement of the Annual Report, the
Board has reviewed the relevant provisions and corporate
governance practices under the codes of corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company, and tock the view that
the Company's corporate governance practices during the
financial year ended 31 December 2006 met the requirements
under the code provisions in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules (the “Code”). In certain aspects, the code of corporate
governance adopted by the Company is more stringent than
the provisions set out in the Code. The following sets out
aspects which are more stringent than the Code.
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Major aspects which are more stringent than provisions set
out in the Code:

- all members of the audit committee and the
remuneration and appraisat committee are independent
non-executive directors.

- 19 meetings of the Board were held during the financial
year of 2006.

- other than the audit committee and the remuneration
and appraisal committee, the Company has also
established a governance committee, which is known as
the planning and development committee.

In addition to the review performed according to the Code,
the Group is finalizing an assessment of the effectiveness of
its internal controls over financial reporting required under
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Although the
assessment is, at this stage, still in progress, the Group has
discovered a number of deficiencies in the internal controls
over financial reporting, some of which upon completion of
management’s assessment may be determined to be significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses. Due to the existence of
the deficiencies in the internal control over financial
reporting, the Group does not rule out the possibility that
the Group's internal control over financial reporting will be
concluded as not fully effective for the purpose of Section
404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. The Group is currently
implementing procedures to correct the deficiencies in the
internal control over financial reporting.

In light of the deficiencies identified to date, a number of
which were not remediated before 31 December 2006,
management has implemented certain additional procedures
it deemed necessary under the circumstances to assure itself
that the financial data contained in the financial statements,
prepared in accordance with IFRS and PRC Accounting
Regulations, are free of material misstatement.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is managed by the Board. The Board is
responsible for the leadership and control of the Campany.
The Directors are jointly responsible for implementing
businesses of the Company by directing and supervising the
affairs of the Company.
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DIRECTORS

At present, the Board consists of 11 Directors, including a
Chairman (also an executive Director} and four other executive
Directors, one non-executive Directors and five independent
non-executive Directors. Other than Mr Luo Chaogeng, who
joined the Board as an executive Directer in June 2005, all
other Directors have been in office throughout the whole
year of the Reporting Period.

All Directors shall retire in the third annual general meeting
following their appointment, but are eligible for reelection.

Newly appointed Directors shall be re-elected in the first
general meeting following their appointment to the Board.

Names, personal particulars and effective date of appointment
are set out in page 45 to page 48 of this report.

Independent non-executive Directors of the Company shall
possess extensive skills and experience. They shall be able
to play their roles of supervising the checks and balances to
the fullest extent to protect the interests of shareholders
and the Company as a whole. Five out of six non-executive
Directors (over one third) are independent non-executive
Directors. The Board considers that they shall be able to
exercise independent judgment effectively, which complies
with guidelines on their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
received the annual confirmation letters from each of the
independent non-executive Directors on their independence.

All the non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) are appointed for a term of 3 years. The
formal appointment letters and the articles of association of
the Company have set out the terms and conditions of their
appointment.

The Company is making an active effort to study insurance
arrangements for directors and senior management in relation
to their potential legal Liabilities.

Other than working relationships, Directors, Supervisors and
senior management of the Company do not have any financial,
business or family connection with one another.
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POWERS OF THE BOARD

On a periodic basis, the Board reviews the relevant
performance against proposed budgets and business objectives
of each operating unit. It also exercises a number of powers
retained by the Board, including but not limited to the
following:

- respensibility for convening general meetings and
reporting to shareholders on its work;

- implementing resolutions passed in general meetings;

- deciding on the operating plan and investment proposals
of the Company;

- formulating the annual preliminary and final budget
proposals;

- formulating the Company’s profit distribution proposal
and the proposal to offset losses;

- formulating the Company's proposals to increase or
reduce the registered capitat and proposals to issue
debt securities;

- drawing up proposals for the Company’s merger, demerger
and dissolution;

- deciding on the Company's internal management
structure;

- employing or dismissing the Company's President and
secretary to the Board; appointment or dismissal of the
Vice President and chief financial officer of the Company
on the nomination of the President, and the
determination of their remuneration;

~  formulating the management systems of the Company;

- formulating proposals to amend the articles of
association of the Company;

- discharging any other powers and functions granted in
general meetings.
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The Board is also responsible for the completeness of financial
information of the Company and is responsible for maintaining
an effective internal control system and for risk management,
as well as preparing the financial statements. Setting the
business objectives and overseeing the daily operations are
the responsibilities of the chief executive officer. The
Company’s articles of association specify the duties and
functions of the Board and management. The Board
periodically reviews the duties and functions of the chief
executive officer and the powers delegated to him to ensure
that such arrangements are appropriate.

In order to ensure the balance of powers and authorization,
the roles of the Chairman and the chief executive officer
have been clearly defined. The Chairman of the Company is
Mr Li Fenghua, and the chief executive officer is Mr Cao
Jianxiong, an executive Director. There are also other senior
officers who are responsible for the daily management within
their scope of duties.

MEETING OF THE BOARD

The Chairman leads the Board to ensure that the Board
performs its various duties effectively and he is responsible
for drawing up the agenda of the meeting of the Board and
considering other matters other Directors propose to be
included in the agenda. The agenda together with documents
of the Board should be, as far as practicable, circulated at
least 3 days prior to the meeting of the Board or its
committees, The Chairman is also obliged to ensure that all
the Directors are suitably briefed on matters to be raised in
the meeting of the Board. The Chairman ensures that the
Directors receive information that is accurate, timely and
clear. Through on-the-job training of Directors and continued
participation in meetings of the Board and of committees of
the Board and interviews with key persons in headquarters
and other departments, the Directors are encouraged to
update their knowledge of technology and their understanding
of the Group.

The Company has established a special unit to work for the
Board. All the Directors can access the service of the secretary
to the Board. The secretary to the Board shall periodically
update the Directors of the latest information on governance
and regulation. The Directors may seek independent
professional advice through the Chairman for the purpose of
performing their duties, with the cost to the Company. Both
the audit committee and the remuneration and appraisal
committee may also seek professional advice.
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The company secretary is responsible for the records of
meetings of the Board. These minutes of meetings together
with ather documents for meetings of the Board shall be
made available to all the Directors. Meetings of the Board
are meant to enable the Directors to have open and frank
discussions and to ensure that non-executive Directors are
able to make effective enquiries of each of the executive
Directors.

In order to ensure sound corporate governance, the Board
has established 3 committees : an audit committee,
remuneration and appraisal committee, and planning and
development committee with their terms of reference drawn
up in accordance with the principles set out in the Code.
The company secretary drafts the minutes of meetings for
these committees, and the committees report to the Directors.

The Board has held 19 meetings during the Reporting Period
which the chief financial officer, the financial manager and
the manager of the planning and development department
attended, and has given its views on matters such as
corporate gavernance, risk management, compliance with laws
and regulations, acquisitions and takeovers, accounting and
finance. The following tables show the attendance rate of
each Director at shareholders’ general meetings, board
meetings and meetings of these specialized committees:

Directors

i

Executive Director Li Fenghua BITESFUE
Executive Director Cao Jianxiong PITESHRE
Executive Director Luo Zhuping BITHESERY
Executive Director Luo Chaogeng MITEBRENR
Executive Director Wan Mingwu MITEESHAR

Non-Executive Director Zhong Xiong JEITH B 4Eif
Independent Non-Executive Director FHM IFMITHE

Hu Honggao BB
Independent Non-Executive Director BN IEHITHE S
Peter Lok &£EFm
Independent Non-Executive Director T FEHITEHE
Wu Baiwang RAMH
Independent Non-Executive Director B FEHITHEHS
Zhou Ruijin BiE
Independent Non-Executive Director BM IEHITEHE
Xie Rong HE

HRgERR RN ARCE B
SRSERETARNESEEEEX
- EmAEREXRBRE] - HEY
BENRY  SEFHESELHRE
W e - BRIEMITEE M EHR
THEBERDAMNER -

ABRRREFNEEESL  EFEENY
3EMAZERE - ERERE - HME
ZRERARREHBREE T - WIKR
TR ETETeIR Bl B AE R E -
SIMEAELEZERERSESRGE M
ZREEMEBEERTF -

BEANABSHANDH T190EH
IsAEE - M EEIE - BB R AR
BhETHAEFSEE  LHMEE
8- RRERE - 8 ESR - SO0
BB ETIREER - TRELRE
BRERARSHALFERRRS  #S
EREBEFEETHEAEEXLZESSERY
B3

Board Meetings General Meetings

Attendance/ Attendance/
No. of meetings  No. of meetings
nEe REXE
HERES HERE,
SHERY SHAH
19/19 3/3

15/19 0/3

19/19 3/3

16/19 2/3

18/19 1/3

10/19 0/3

11/19 1/3

12/19 0/3

17/19 1/3

12/19 0/3

18/19 1/3
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Audit Committee:

Members

8

Xie Rong N
Hu Honggao HsaE
Wu Baiwang SEEH

Remuneration and Appraisal Committee:

Members

%8

Zhou Ruijin A
Hu Honggao HES
Peter Lok ®=EE

Planning and Development Committee:

Members

£B

Wu Baiwang RAEH
Zhang Xiong S
Cao Jianxiong [ =471

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS

All the Directors shall declare to the Board upon their first
appointment their capacities as Directors and any other
positions held in other institutions, the declaration of which
shall be renewed once a year. When the Board discusses any
motion or transaction and considers any Director has any
conflict of interest, the Director shall declare his interest
and abstain from voting, and will excuse himself as
appropriate. The Company shall, pursuant te the guidelines,
request from Directors their confirmation if they or their
associates are connected with any transactions entered into
by the Company or its subsidiaries during the Reporting
Period. Material transactions which have been confirmed as
having been entered into with any connected person have
been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements
prepared in accordance with IFRS of the Annual Report,

ERERE

Attendance/No. of meetings

HERAB /SRR

5/5
0/5
0/5

FHEZEREE

Attendance/No. of meetings

WA BERE

1/1
1/1
0/1

REAERE8E

Attendance/No. of meetings

HERH BRI

3/3
0/3
0/3
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code of Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as the securities transactions code. Each
of the Directors and Supervisors of the Company has been
issued with a copy of the Model Code upon their appointment.

All the Directors and Supervisors of the Company have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code in
2006.

The Company has also adopted the related provisions set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, and has established its
Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Employees of
the Company according to its own situation and with
reference to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules. The aforesaid Code of Conduct shall apply
to the conduct of dealings in the securities of the Company
by the Supervisors and senior management of the Company.

In addition, pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules for Shares of the Shanghai Stock Exchange, the shares
of the Company transferred by each of the Directors,
Supervisors and senior management of the Company every
year are not allowed to exceed 25% of the total number of
shares held by each of them, and they are not allowed to
purchase the shares of the Company within 6 months after
they have sold their shares. They are also not allowed to
sell the shares of the Company within 6 months after they
have bought shares. Additionally, within 6 months after they
have left their appointment, they are not allowed to transfer
their shares of the Company held by them.

All the employees who may have unpublished price-sensitive
information related to the Group are also required to comply
with the Model Code. During the Reporting Period, the
Directors are not aware of any breach of laws and regulations,

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors confirm that they are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group.

The responsibility statement made by the Company's auditors
in respect of the financial statements is set out on page 91
to page 92 of the Annual Report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL
Internal control system

The Board shall be responsible for the overall internal control
system of the Company/Group and periodically reviews the
effectiveness of the internal control system. The internal
control system is essential to risk management which, in
turn, is important in ensuring that operational objectives
can be achieved. Internal control procedures are designed
to prevent assets from unauthorized use or disposal, to ensure
the maintenance of appropriate accounting records and to
provide reliable financial information either for internal use
or for dissemination externally. However, the control
procedures aim at reasonably (but not absolutely) assuring
that there will not be material misrepresentation, loss or
unlawful conduct. The internal control system is designed to
comply with the relevant laws, supplementary regulations
and constitutional documents,

The Company reviews the effectiveness of its internal control
annualtly, which includes control over finance, operations,
compliance with laws and regulations as well as the
monitoring of risk management. The results of the review
have been reported to the audit committee and the Board.

The Board confirms that the Company has systems and
procedures in place to identify, manage and report material
risks in the course of achieving its strategic objectives. The
Directors cantinue to monitor risks with the support of the
committees and senior management. The Company has
conducted a review to identify areas for improvement, and
is taking measures to implement them. The effectiveness of
the measures taken will be reported in the next meeting of
the audit committee.

Internal audit

The Company's internal audit department is responsible for
conducting an independent audit of whether or not the
internal control system is sufficient and effective. The
auditing plan is prepared using a risk based approach and is
discussed and finalized by the audit committee. Other than
the pre-determined scope of work, the department is also
reguired to conduct other specific audits.

R

NS ESIE I EE

EREEHRDND,/ ERNABEITSE
BERET  WRAEEKESSTHIR
SZSIERT AN o ARBRABET
I HEREREERRNER - ME
MEBHN T ENEEEZIERTS
B o ET v NERES R IE R A IRIE R E A
ARG EEGFEAEERE - BREE
IS CEEURT L ER#AA &
MBS E R S R s AN E AL » B
BT SRS IR (BB (REYE
BRAERM - HENER - AORA
EpECIiR P R IRAARD AR GG - HEE
PFRERS °

ARRBFHHABEIRRAETNG
BE - ABRREMT - BE - BTER
DERERZET - ARERDREX
LZEGREFERE -

HEEHEILADTEAGHR  FEE
REHEREERYBEHAMHENER
EMEGMIEF EESHHEER
B DESRESELZEERABEIEA
EEoh-#= R NI IRk P Aart R o e
By WEIRERRIBEER - 5L
AR MIEET —AFZEERER
MIFLHRE °

R ERE &

ADRHABELIR R HNEE R
PETEMBEARBETELER - &
Rt B AR SHE T A R R Y § F AL
HEZEREEN AT - BRERTHT
BIIESN  ZAPINEEETAMER
HBEE LR -

82

086
China

Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited Annual Report 2006




ARV | PUI(ALC ACAT R BVE R RLE LR LWL W

RER

The Group's internal audit department reports to the chief
executive officer; it may also report directly to the chairman
of the audit committee. AU internal audit reports are
delivered to the Chairman of the Board, chief executive
officer, chief financial officer, the management of the audit
department and related departments. The outcome of each
audit, in summary, will also be discussed with the audit
committee. The Board and audit committee actively maonitor
the number and seriousness of any weaknesses or issues
identified, and the relevant corrective measures taken by
the department.

Risk management

Risk management involves identifying and managing business
risk effectively, including safety and security, law,
environment and reputational risk.

Risk management committee

The Board has not established a risk management committee,
but the internal audit department has undertaken related
risk management duties and reports to the audit committee
periodically. It is responsible for coordinating the
implementation of appropriate measures to manage
operational risks including:

establishing risk trends and risk management strategy
of the Graup and reviewing the risk profile of the Group;

- identifying, assessing and managing material risks the
various operations are exposed to;

- examining and assessing the suitability of the Group's
risk management procedures, systems and internal
controls;

- examining compliance with the Group’s risk management
procedures, systems and internal controls, including
whether the Group meets legal and regulatery
requirements.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee is responsible for reviewing audit
reports, Teviewing internal control and corporate governance,
and is responsible for making recommendations to the Board.
All members of the committee are independent non-executive
Directors and Mr Xie Rong, one of its members, has been
appointed as the chairman of the committee. The chairman
of the committee possesses professional qualifications in
accounting.

Constitutional documents of the audit committee are posted
on the website of the Company.

The audit committee held 5 meetings in 2006. In each
meeting, senior management and external as well as internal
auditors were invited to attend. Based on the reports of the
external and internal auditors, the audit committee conducted
reviews of accounting policies and principles, and internal
controls procedures adopted by the Group with a view to
continuing compliance with the Listing Rules. The committee
also conducted reviews of internal and external audits,
internal control, risk management and financial statements.
The audited results of the first half and the final results for
2006 had been discussed in meetings before they were
submitted to the Board for approval.

Attendance of members of the audit committee is as follows:
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Attendance/
Directors No. of meetings Attendance
ES HERE S RERE i E®
Xie Rong i e 5/5 100%
Hu Honggao s 0/5 0%
Wu Baiwang REH 0/5 0%
NRK
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The audit committee has alse conducted other compliance
work to comply with US reporting requirements in 20086,
including review of compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act;
and specifically to consider the work undertaken in
connection with managements’ assessment of the
effectiveness of internal controls to ensure compliance with
Sectian 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxtey Act.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

In the Reporting Period, the remuneration of the externat
auditors is estimated to be approximately RMB20.12 million,
of which approximately RMB20 million was for the reqular
annual fee for audit of the Group’s 2006 financial statements
prepared under IFRS and PRC Accounting Regulations and
the other relevant documents applicable for the purpose of
20-F filing, the remaining RMB0.12 million was for approved
services not directly connected with annual audit. Audit
fees are determined by the audit committee and approved
by the Board.

In 2006, the Company was required to pay approximately
RMB0.12 millian to external auditors for providing approved
non-audit services. The audit committee obtained an overall
understanding of the non-audit services and its scope and
was satisfied that the non-audit services (in respect of the
nature of service and the total cost) had not affected the
independence of the accounting firm. The non-audit services
primarily comprise tax compliance services.

The partner appointed by the external auditor to take
responsibility for the annual audit has been responsible for
the service since 2006. Pursuant to applicable U.S. securities
laws, the partner responsible for the annual audit may not
undertake the service for more than 5 consecutive years.
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REMUNERATION AND APPRAISAL COMMITTEE

The remuneration and appraisal committee is chaired by Mr
Zhou Ruijin. Its members include 2 independent non-executive
directors, Hu Honggao and Peter Lok. After each internal
meeting, the remuneration and appraisal committee reported
to the Board. Constitutional documents of the remuneration
and appraisal committee are posted an the Company’s website.

The remuneration and appraisal committee held 1 meeting
in 2006.

Members and attendance of the remuneration and appraisal
committee are as follows:

Directors

i}

Zhou Ruijin Bim &
Hu Honggao HEE
Peter Lok S2EE

REMUNERATION POLICY OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Remuneration packages of executive Directors are aimed
primarily at linking the remuneration of executive Directors
to their performance and providing appropriate incentives.
Pursuant to the policy, Directors are not allowed to approve
their own remuneration.

The remuneration of executive Directors mainly comprises
basic salary and bonus.

BASIC SALARY

Executive Directors review and approve the basic salary of
each executive Director every year pursuant to the
remuneration policy of the Company. Pursuant to the service
contracts entered into between the Company and each of
the executive Director, executive Directors are entitled to
receive a fixed annual salary.

BONUS

Bonuses are calculated based on the measurable performance
of the operating units for which the executive Directors are
responsible.
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No. of meetings Attendance
HEREEBAE R
1/1 100%
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REMUNERATION POLICY OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Non-executive Directors do not receive remuneration from
the Group.

Allowances received by the 5 independent non-executive
Directors in 2006 were as follows:

Hu Honggao RMB50,000
Peter Lok HK$50,000
Wu Baiwang RMB50,000
Zhou Ruijin RMB50,000
Xie Rong RMB50,000

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has not established a nomination committee
and the Board is directly responsible for nominating Directors.
Pursuant to the articles of association, candidates for Director
shall be nominated by the Board or shareholders, and
nominations shall be submitted to the general meeting as
motions for consideration.

INVESTOR RELATIONSHIP

The Company undertakes that the disclosure it makes is fair,
comprehensive and transparent. The ultimate priority is to
ensure effective communication with investors and to ensure
that the Board is aware of the views of major shareholders.
The Chairman meets major shareholders on a regular basis
and the Board's routine communication with the major
shareholders is conducted through the company's secretary.

The Company has drawn up and implemented an Information
Disclosure and Management System and has further improved
the information disclosure system in order to ensure the
accuracy, completeness and timeliness of information
disclosure; the Company has also established an information
disclosure office for which the company secretary is
responsible. The information disclosure office is mainly
responsible for the collection, collation and compilation of
basic information for disclosure, and is also responsible for
drawing up the internal control and procedural guidelines.
It is responsible for monitoring the correct implementation
of the various control measures.
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EXRER

The Company has released information in relation to its
quarterly results. In the latest shareholders” general meeting
held on 28 June 2006 in Shanghai, the meeting was open to
all the shareholders and the media. A total of 55 sharehotders
attended in person or by proxy.

In the Annual General Meeting, each matter was proposed as
a resolution and voted by poll.

Investors and the public may access our website and download
coverage on such briefings. The website also sets out details
of each of the Group’s operations. Announcements of the
interim and final results may also be downloaded from the
website.

The company secretary and principal officer of the capital
investment market held 55 investors’ meetings with Hong
Kong investment analysts and investors, and also held 3
press conferences with media in the PRC.

Based on publicly available informatien and to the best of
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the total
issued share capital is held by the public. As at 31 December
2006, there were a total of 88,648 shareholders on the
Company’s register of members.

For any enquiries of the Board, shareholders may use the
shareholders’ hotline 8621-62686268, e-mail at ir@ce-air.com
to contact the company secretary, or they may put ferward
their questions in the Annual General Meeting or extraordinary
general meetings. In respect of the procedures for
shareholders to convene the Annual General Meeting or
extraordinary general meetings, they may make enquiries of
the company secretary through the aforesaid channels.

On behalf of the Board

Li Fenghua
Chairman of the Board

Shanghai, China
19 April 2007
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Dear Shareholders,

In 2006, the members of the Supervisory Committee, hasing
themselves on the powers bestowed upon them by the
Company Law and the Company’s articles of association and
their sense of responsibility toward all the shareholders,
actively carried out their tasks, faithfully performed their
supervisory duties and protected the legitimate rights and
interests of the Company and of all the shareholders.

The Supervisory Committee held a meeting on 10 April 2006,
during which it adopted the Supervisory Committee's 2005
Wark Report, and resolved that it would be put forward to
the 2005 Annual General Meeting of the Company for
consideration; the Supervisory Committee was of the view
that the financial report of the Company for the year 2005
truly reflected the financial position and operating results
of the Campany, and resolved that it would be put forward
to the 2005 Annual General Meeting of the Company for
consideration; and agreed with the resolution of non-
distribution of profits passed by the Board of Directors. The
Supervisory Committee held a meeting on 28 August 2006,
during which it confirmed that the interim report of the
Company for the year 2006 truly reflected the financial
position and operating results of the Company and that it
was objective and fair. The Supervisory Committee held a
meeting on 26 October 2006, during which it reviewed the
full text and summary of the Company’s report for the third
quarter of 2006.

The Supervisory Committee has carefully reviewed financial
information such as the financial report and the profit
distribution scheme to be submitted to the 2006 Annual
General Meeting for deliberation, and found no problems
with these submissions. After examination, the Supervisory
Committee did not discover any acts of insider trading in
the Company’s purchase or sale of assets, or any actions of
the directors, presidents or other senior executives in carrying
out their duties that in any way violated laws, regulations,
or the articles of association of the Company or were
prejudicial to the interests of the Company.
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ESgREE

In the new year, the Supervisory Committee will, as in the
past, conscientiously exercise and perform the powers
bestowed upon it by the Company's articles of association,
further strengthen its supervision of the Company’s financial
affairs and ensure compliant business practices. While
stressing efficiency, it will continue to explore monitering
and control mechanisms which are of benefit in protecting
and promoting the Company's development.

The Supervisory Committee is extremely grateful for the
continuous strong support far its work offered by all the
shareholders, directors, staff and workers.

On behalf of
the Supervisory Committee

Li Wenxin
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

Shanghai, China
19 April 2007
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA EASTERN
AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED

(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with (imited
liabitity)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries {together, the “Group™) set out on pages
93 to 227, which comprise the consolidated and Company
balance sheets as at 31 December 2006, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consclidated financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes: designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable
in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement,
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B B ARBANHRE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or errar. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
and the Group as at 31 December 2006, and of the Group's
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

OTHER MATTERS

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for
and only for you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We

do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to

any other person for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Keng, 19 April 2007
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{Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(1B R R 5 R R)

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FEAFE+-F=+—Hi4FE

2006 2005
g 3 3183 Z2ERE
Note RMB'0Q0 RMB'000
giE ARM TR ABBTT
Revenues e A 5 37,488,875 27,454,443
Other operating income, net Higax i AR 6 424,265 245,279
Operating expenses BRI
{ommissions ez (1,316,620} (969,587)
Aircraft fuel RBAR (13,608,793) (8,888,873)
Take-off and landing charges RALESE (4,989,382) (3,718,846)
Ground services and other charges WERBERECER (162,104) (115,516)
Civil aviation infrastructure levies EMARAGERES (696,428) (466,191)
Food and beverages MEERME {1,188,016) (976,787)
Wages, salaries and benefits TE 5o REA 8 (3.476,096) (2,359,467)
Aircraft maintenance RAREER (2,647,340) (1,383,989)
Aircraft depreciation and operating lease rentals REWERSE4AEAS (6,973,863) {5,254,716)
Other depreciation, amertisation and HtE T EERE -
operating lease rentals BERGEEHER: (782,044) (666,287)
Ticket reservation fees BERER (418,367) (292,412)
Insurance costs rEE (161,469) (148,862)
Deficits on revaluation of property, plant and g BEREEETRH
equipment RERX 15 (1,035,343) -
Office, administrative and other expenses WL EBERALER (3,448,715) (2,443,941)
Total operating expenses BEXLBH (40,904,580) (27,685,474}
Operating (loss}/profit BE(5R) /ER 9 (2,991,440) 14,248
Interest income FUESR N 120,161 128,700
Finance costs M8 % 10 (877,579) (707,050}
Share of results of associates BRRE L RIR 19 103,566 {9,030)
Share of results of jointly controlled entities BEAREHERESE 20 29,595 (4,300)
Loss before income tax GRLEE (3.615,697) (577,432)
Income tax B 11 162,932 138,704
Loss for the year FEER (3.452,765) (438,728)
Attributable to: BN
Equity holders of the Company FRAESBEA (3.313,425) (467,307)
Minority interests LEREER {139,340) 28,579
(3,452,765) (438,728)
Loss per share for loss attributable to the equity ERRRFERFAEA
holders of the Company during the year FiEER
- basic and diluted - EXR#RHE 13 RMB(0.68) RMB{0.10)
The notes on pages 101 to 227 are an integral part of these financial statements.
101 R £ 2278 AU BRRBEH S -
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(IR iR &L RRE)
As gt 31 December 2006
RIBENEF-_/A=+—R

2006 2005
TEBRKE —E2nF
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
i AR%TR AERETR
Non-current assets knBDEE
Intangible assets BREE 14 1,337,554 751,843
Property, plant and equipment WE - BERER 15 40,050,466 38,524,868
lease prepayments BREER 16 1,054,362 972,771
Advanced payments on acquisition of aircraft R ENF 17 7,668,708 9,072,673
Investments in associates HEREBE LT 19 623,390 629,746
Investments in jointly controtled entities BRERAEEHITE 20 115,540 100,520
Available-for-sale financial assets MLENEEE 47,554 40,802
Other long-term assets HttRHAEE 21 1,099,265 2,705,558
Deferred tax assets EEHEBEAE 3 82,146 12,324
Derivative assets fiege 3 73,269 70,886
52,152,254 52,881,991
Current assets RBBRE
Flight equipment spare parts RERETH 1,198,642 478,922
Trade receivables and notes receivable RUEREEKER 22 2,002,855 1,918,409
Amounts due from related companies EUEBBAARE 41 352,719 205,712
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AR FRRAvCEKZ 23 2,475,992 997,271
Cash and cash equivalents REeRHEERY 2 1,987,486 1,864,001
Derivative assets TTEEE 34 113,532 53,036
Non-current assets held for sale FEXRDEE 37 882,426 -
9,013,652 6,017,351
Current liabilities i iB=i:]
Sales in advance of carriage REHL 891,659 823,140
Trade payables and notes payable EAEARENRE 25 5,090,210 3,113,898
Amounts due to related companies B EMEERRZE 41 348,477 576,030
Other payables and accrued expenses HhBEAZEERER 26 7,986,351 5,995,751
Current portion of obligatians BEEEAEAMN
under finance leases mEED 27 2,803,956 2,428,037
Current portion of borrowings ERNFEEES 28 16,016,327 18,554,630
Income tax payable B HE 80,483 47,259
Current portion of pravision for aircraft MEAEREREESD
overhaul expenses ik IR 30) 29 20,900 15,589
Derivative liabilities tiERE 34 124,722 34,844
Liabilities directly associated with HEEFNDREER
non-current assets held for sale HEMARA 37 442,935 -
33,806,020 31,589,187
Net current liabilities RRBAM (24,792,368) (25,571,836)
Total assets less current liabilities SHERNDAR 27,359,886 21,310,155
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(Prepored in gccordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(RS ERIER
As at 31 December 2006
R-FF NFf=—A=+—H

2006 2005
i+ 3 ¢ “TERE
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
iR AE® TR AR® T
Non-current liabilities *¥LEDAR
Obligations under finance leases REAHERR 27 9,048,642 8,159,517
Borrowings E® 28 12,091,413 9,790,116
Provision for aircraft overhaul expenses REAERBER 29 489,721 388,410
Other long-term liabilities EttRHAR 30 438,461 201,902
Deferred tax liabilities ERHARAE 31 68,459 178,825
Post-retirement benefit obligations RiFEBHER 32(h} 1,292,960 1,202,877
Long-term portion of staff housing allowances B THEREHRBBH 3300 439,491 444,196
Derivative {iabilities ERR 34 14,096 25,770
23,883,243 20,391,613
Net assets FRE 3,476,643 6,918,542
Equity  §43
Capital and reserves attributable to ERABAFAA
the equity holders of the Company RiGAARER
Share capital (LN 35 4,866,950 4,866,950
Reserves & 36 (2,052,053} 1,229,115
2,814,897 6,096,065
Minority interests SEBEER 661,746 822,477
Total equity ¥ i 3,476,643 6,918,542

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 April 2007.

FERBERRERE_FFLFUATNEHESRFRIBI TR L -

Li Fenghua
Director
FoE

HE

Cao Jianxiong
Director

i
-

The notes on pages 101 to 227 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(1ZEORR BT R PR &5 ER R B
As at 31 December 2006
BoEFNFFZH=F—F

2006 2005
ZReRF Z_TEFhF
Note RMB'000 RMB'0CO
R¥ES AR®TR AR¥Tn
Non-current assets FRBERE
Intangible assets BLEE 14 1,032,679 751,591
Property, plant and equipment mE - BEREE 15 31,606,868 32,162,125
Lease prepayments REHER 16 497,668 481,600
Advanced payments on acquisition of aircraft RBREAR 17 7,006,853 8,157,515
Investments in subsidiaries RERHBLA 18 3,882,670 2,512,490
Investments in associates BERBELR 19 377,872 620,659
Investments in jointly controlled entities RERAREHER 20 59,552 59,552
Available-for-sale financial assets THEHBEE 31,306 35,282
Other long-term assets HeREEE 21 994,729 2,596,521
Derivative assets fEBE 34 73,269 70,886
45,563,966 47,448,221
Current assets RBEE
Flight equipment spare parts REEHESH 931,415 906,605
Trade receivagles and notes receivable YRR N ERES 22 1,260,572 1,260,283
Amounts due from related companies EREHEEARTE 4] 351,209 203,113
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AR -HFRRETEBR 23 2,173,904 688,543
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY 24 1,109,834 940,609
Derivative assets T Y3 34 113,532 53,036
Non-current assets held for sale HEFERYDEE 37 882,426 -
6,822,892 4,052,189
Current liabilities nBAR
Sales in advance of carriage BEMAE 891,659 808,231
Trade payables and notes payable ENERERERRE 25 4,674,301 2,975,827
Amounts due to related companies AL L AN E e 41 246,362 205,189
Other payables and accrued expenses EmEARLRRER 26 6,683,039 5,132,878
Current portion of obligations REBAREM
under finance leases B 27 2,636,057 2,361,974
Current portion of borrowings = ook oEa) 28 13,004,878 15,375,864
Current portion of provision for REAEBAEESN
aircraft overhaul expenses ok X 29 20,900 15,589
Income tax payable EHRE - 2,210
Derivative liabilities freaf 34 124,722 34,844
Liabilities directly associated with non-current ERFEHERHER
assets held for sale HEEHEMAR 37 442,935 -
28,724,853 26,912,606
Net current liabilities RBEAR (21,901,961) (22,860,417)
Total assets tess current liabilities BEEENRBAR 23,662,005 24,587,804
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{Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(IF O B RS SR &5 SRR B)

As at 31 December 2006

R-FERET=—_R=+—8

2006 2004
ZBeRE SETIE
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
g ARM TR AEMTR
Non-current liabilities ¥RBAR
Qbligations under finance leases REHEAR b 1,511,373 7,363,308
Barrowings B 28 10,841,915 9,457,436
Provision for aircraft overhaul expenses REKERRBER 29 408,690 333,246
Other long-term liabilities EtRfAMR 30 438,461 201,902
Deferred tax liabilities EERERR 31 - 160,067
Post-retirement benefit obtigations BRERTER 32(b) 1,144,653 1,085,637
Long-term portion of staff housing allowances BI(FERUNREHEH  33(b) 413,386 415,735
Derivative abilities TEE M 34 14,096 25,770
20,772,574 19,043,101
Net assets BRE 2,889,431 5,544,703
Equity b §i
(apital and reserves attributable to AREERREA
the equity holders of the Company EEERRER
Share capital BA 35 4,866,950 4,866,950
Reserves i 1 36 (1,977,519} 677,753
Total equity aRR 2,889,431 5,544,703

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 April 2007.

AR EHRCEE—BELFMAHNBMESERBWHARL -

Li Fenghua Cao Jianxiong
Director Director
FHE B

ZF HE

The notes on pages 101 to 227 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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REBEERER

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

1

(IR & R &)
for the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FEAFI—A=+—A4FE

2006 2005
ZREAE —§25E
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
itE ARMER ARETR
Cash flows from operating activities ERIBNGEETR
{ash generated from operations BEELTMHS 18 3,458,510 3,369,783
Interest paid ERHE (2,097,077) (1,357,402)
Income tax paid Bt (22,740) (59,932)
Net cash inflow from operating activities EEERELABRGE 1,338,603 1,952,449
Cash flows from investing activities REZDNRERA
Additions of property, plant and equipment BADE BEREE (879,756) (2,676,050)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE  EER
plant and equipment REHER 328,419 32,923
Acquisition of land use rights BATHEMRE {37,158) (31,780)
Acquisition of available-for-sale BATRKEEM
financial assets BMBEE {6,751) (1,256)
Advanced payments on acquisition ®E - ERERRO
of aircraft RENEHR (4,560,694) {1,751,197)
Refund of advanced payments upon delivery BERERMAR 3,744,513 -
of aircraft
Repayment of other payables BEEfLENT
(instalment payment for acquisition BA-RTEH
of an airline busiress) #a AR (30,000 (30,000}
Decrease/(increase) RTEREE
in bank deposits ®o(Em - 210
Interest received BIRHME 120,161 128,700
Dividend received DR s 8,617 -
Acquisitions of controlling interests BRBRERANHEH
in associates, net cash outflow BEIRgRL 40 (366,529) (40,704)
Net cash outflow from investing activities REZBEENIRE (1,679,178) (10,369,094)

)
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(1 EIRR AT 3530 & RMB Y

for the year ended 31 December 2006

HE—FF \FI+-_A=+—HUFE

2006 2005
IReRE g3 2
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
g3 ARMTR ARETR
Lash flows from financing activities RETONALHE
Proceeds from draw down of short-term REBETRIMEN
bank loans 14,748,954 14,307,315
Repayments of short-term bank loans BEEHEAER (15,133,553) (8,872,754)
Proceeds from draw down of long-term REROERAEX
bank loans 6,909,927 5,135,286
Repayments of long-term hank loans EEEHRTER (4,179,412) (3,843,483)
Principal repayments of Finance BERAHARE
lease obligations 0¥ ¥ {2,539,995) (1,157,334)
Praceeds from issuance of notes payable BEARAREMER 7,696,014 4,228,783
Repayments of notes payable EBERAZES (6,014,279) (3,376,072)
Proceeds from issuance of debentures BOTRERER - 1,951,600
Repayment of debentures BER#% (2,000,000) -
Placement of finance lease deposits TRBARARERS (803) -
Refund of depasits for finance leases upon maturities WEHHAREEERBES 1,047,534 -
Lapital injection from a minority shareholder FHELAPERRGINEE
on subsidiaries 1 -
2004 dividend paid EESNGE F:322- W
2004 E BT {60,000) (97,339)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders ARBLEMLERE
of subsidiaries AR (53,550} (90,000)
Net cash inflow from financing activities REZDELEFIRG 420,838 8,186,002
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRRESM
cash equivalents nEam/ (@) 80,353 (230,643)
Cash and cash equivaleats at 1 January —R-B0E4RELEED 1,864,001 2,114,447
Exchange adjustments ExHE 43,132 (19,803)
Cash and cash equivalents tZB=t-BHEZE
at 31 December REEAN 1,987,486 1,864,001
The notes on pages 101 to 227 are an integral part of these financial statements.
HEINAER7TEAMBRROBEED -
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{Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Stondords)

(HEERBR R B 3R &R BB )

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE_BFANFT _F=+—HUFEF

\oIIUIIHCJ i L\.iUILy

Attributable to equity
holders of the Company
AiERRAR

Share
Capital Reserves  Sub-total
k% H&
RMB'000 RME'000 RME'000
ARBTR AR¥TR ARMTR

Minority Total
interests equity

aif YRRRAR - J

RMB'000 RNB'000
ARMTR  ARMTR

Balance at 1 January 2005

Cash flow hedges, net of tax

Dividend relating to 2004

Dividend paid to minority interest in
subsidiaries

{ontribution from minority interest in
subsidiaries

Less for the year

“$Th%-f-HEH
RERBES HEHA
ZREBEHRH
TS ERERH

HELASEREREER

N

LS66950 L6514 652412
- 16SET 136597
N (TR E) N 1A+

- (6130 (467,307)

B20.835 7,344,959
- 136,587
- {97,339)

(90,000)  {90,000)

63,063 53,063
B (438.728)

Balance at 31 December 2005

ZERRETCoACT-AER

4,866,950 1,229,115 8,096,065

822.4M 6,918,542

Balance at 1 January 2006

Cash flow hedges, net of tax

Revaluation reserve, net of tax, anising
from the acquisition of a controlling
interest in an associate

Dividend paid to minority interests in
subsidiaries

Logs for the year

Additions through acquisitions
of subsidiaries (Note 40)

ZRAE-A-2EH
BERAER HRRE
hRE-SRABEATGEHAS .
ERAAREL M BN
BB KBS
IAHALAIBREREA

ERER
BRURRRLARN
({E/40)

4,866,950 1,229,115 4,096,065
- 8,441 8.441

- 23,816 23,816

- BA4) (3313425)

822,417 6,918,542
- 8,441
- 23,816

(62,802} {42.892)
(139,340)  (3,452,765)

21,50 21,501

Balance at 31 December 2006

ZRYRETIACY-ALR

4,866,950  (2,052,053) 2,814,897

661,746 3,476,643

The notes on pages 101 to 227 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(Prepared in accordance with Internationel Financial Reporting Standards)
(BB B iR & R R

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE-_FEFF+-A=1+—BUFE

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited (the
“Company”), a joint stock company limited by shares
was incorporated in the People’s Republic of China
{the “PRC") on 14 April 1995. The address of its
registered office is 66 Airport Street, Pudong
International Airport, Shanghai, the PRC. The Company
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the operation of civil aviation,
including the provision of passenger, cargo, and mail
delivery and other extended transportation services.

The Company is majority owned by China Eastern Air
Holding Company (“CEA Holding”), a state-owned
enterprise incorporated in the PRC.

The Company's shares are traded on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, The New York Stock Exchange
and The Shanghai Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31 December 2006, the Company
acquired additional equity interests of 56% in China
Eastern Airlines Wuhan Co., Ltd. (“CEA Wuhan").
Further details of the acquisition are set out in Note
40 to the financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied
to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards
{“IFRS") and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Qrdinance. The
consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of property, plant
and equipment, available-for-sale financial
assets, financial assets and financial liabilities
{including derivative instruments) at fair value
through profit or loss.

tiialividl JLdiLuiliiclivo

2R EHR
PERARERHHRAE (AR
A RR-ANEFMA+-mEa%E
mpAE ARIFE (TR ) Rz 89—
PR AR 7 o AR ARt
APE LS ERERBS 566
% ARAREMBRE ([RE
EDEEEERNES  OEF
- HIE - BERAME R
B1 o

ARRAE AR IR — KA
B RrERITAEREQR ([F
ERMEMDNREEERS -

ARRMBRhEEERS XA
BaE - HNEFZ SR LEE
HR BT LT -

RIBERF+A=+RHLF
B ARRE-SWEFRRIR
VR o A ([RAEE ) 56%ATR
# - AREUEMNFRENCSRAY
s TR0 5 -

ERETTHERRE

BHAGEENBRREBNEIES
STEEREN T » BRAFEHEAS -
HERREMZENFEFEANER
A -

(a) RBEE

FEANGESIERTERE
BIRR Bt 75 v 5 2 B (T84 5528
A1) B & 2w R 5 78 1R
Erb - FEMBEHRADRE
B SRR AE RS - W -
WEENEE  THLEMBEE
E - BT EERES RN
HBEEMMBAE(BED
ST R)mEKmEREET -

GENSHEROTRLE —SBAEER

9 M
W

O

01




ITvied LW Wil

MR

{Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(IR BB A1 PR ¥R 5 R RYAR )
For the yeor ended 31 December 2006
HBE-FEANFF-_A=1—HIFHF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(a)

100

Basis of preparation {Cont'd)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying the Company's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to
the financial statements, are disclosed in Note
4 to the financial statements. These estimates
and assumptions affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclesure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the
year. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge of current events
and actions, actual results ultimately may differ
from those estimates.

The Group incurred a net loss attributable to
equity holders of the Company of approximately
RMB3.313 million far the current financial year
and as at 31 December 2006 the Group’s
accumulated losses were approximately
RMB3,335 mitlion and its current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB24,792 million. Based on the Group’s history
of obtaining finance, its relationships with its
bankers, banking facilities available and net
operating cash inflow, the Board of Directors
consider that the Group will be able to obtain
sufficient financing to enable it to operate and
meet its liabilities as and when they fall due.
Accordingly, it is appropriate that these
financial statements should be prepared on a
going concern basis and they do not include
any adjustments that would be required should
the Company and the Group fail to continue as
a going concern.
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{Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(B B R R & SRR )

For the year ended 31 December 2006
HE-FFNFL+-_A=+—H1+tFF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

In 2006, the Group adopted the following
amendments and interpretations to existing
standards which are relevant to its operations.
The adoption of these amendments and
interpretations did not have any significant
impact on its results of operations and financial
position. In summary:

. International Accounting Standard
(“IAS") No. 39 and IFRS 4 {Amendment)
- Financial Guarantee Contracts

. IAS 19 {Amendment} - Employee
Benefits: Actuarial Gains and Losses,
Group Plans and Disclosures

. IAS 39 (Amendment) - The Fair Value
option

. International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC")
Interpretation 4 - Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease

The following new/revised standards and
interpretations to existing standards have been
published which are relevant to the Group’s
operations that are mandatory for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 March 2006 or
later periods. The Group is assessing the impact
of these new/revised standards and
interpretations but management do not believe
these new/revised standards and interpretations
will have a significant impact on its results of
operations or financial position.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Fingncial Reporting Standards)
(R B3R & R EY)

For the yeor ended 31 December 2006
BE_FEAFF-A=+—HUFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

{a) Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

. IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments:
Disclosures (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 March 2006)

. IFRS 8 - Operating segments {effective
for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2009)

. IAS 1 {Amendment) - Presentation of
Financial Statements: Capital disclosures
(effective for annual periods heginning
on or after 1 January 2007)

. IFRIC Interpretation 8 - Scope of IFRS 2
{effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 May 2006)

. IFRIC Interpretation 9 - Reassessment
of Embedded Derivatives (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1
June 2006)

. IFRIC Interpretation 10 - Interim
Financial Reporting and Impairment
(effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 November 2006)

. IFRIC Interpretation 11 - IFRS 2 - Group
and Treasury Share Transactions
(effective for annual pericds beginning
on or after 1 March 2007)

. IFRIC Interpretation 12 - Service
Concession Arrangements {effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2008)
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{Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(H R S 2R & R 2

For the year ended 31 December 2006

BE _FENFfRA=+—HIEFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(b)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and
all of its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(i)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
special purpose entities} over which the
Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies,
generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than ane half of the voting
rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are de-consolidated

2. EEETTREAR (H)

(b) EEEH
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(Prepared in accordance with Internatione! Financial Reporting Standards)

(LR B IR & R )
For the year ended 31 December 2006
HE—FENF+r-A=+HIr£E

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(b) Consolidation (Cont'd)
(i}  Subsidiaries {Cont'd)

The purchase method of accounting is
used to account for the acquisition of
subsidiaries by the Group, including
those acquired from holding companies.
The cost of an acquisition is measured
as the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of
exchange, plus costs directly attributable
to the acquisition. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date,
irrespective of the extent of any minority
interest. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the cost of acquisition is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in the income
statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(B R 2R 5 L RliR )

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FEANFI—A=+—FRIUITF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(b) Consolidation (Cont’d)

(7)

(i)

Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Minority interests represents the
interests of outside members in the
operating results and net assets of
subsidiaries. The Group applies a policy
of treating transactions with minority
interests as transactions with parties
external to the Group. Disposals to
minority interests result in gains and
losses for the Group that are recorded in
the income statement. Purchases from
minority interests result in goodwill,
being the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary.

In the Company's balance sheet, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less provision for impairment losses,
if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not
control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting and are
initially recognised at cost. The Group’s
investments in associates includes
goodwill (net of any accumulated
impairment identified on
acquisition.

loss)

ittt iidLl wh At Ll il Wil v

2. EEGTBRAEE @

{b) REEEH (H)
(i) BE2a (H)

DB R i 2 I SRR
REHBARRIEEER
AREESANER - A
SERIBERERZERA
BRISEIB =TT HH
BE - AEERDBARE
HERENPRRAIRER
RERPIIR - REEYE
BELBRRESHAES
MR RBREEERNE
MBLaFEERENES
3 o

ERDRIZEERMBR
W REEARZRER
RAENBRERRER
SRR - 1F - BLQEZ
RERARDAIRERRIE
BE B AR

(i) & QA
kN s )
HAEEKRE MBS
EHNTTER - BYHES
20%-50%3% SEAE R ARAE -
BB N RRELERE
SENEE 0 ¥R BARK AN B
2o FEBRBELE Y
HEBRERBEREEEESN
8 (R E R 25 EE
EiR) -

111

TERNSEERBABRLE —2FAEER

107




W e W Wl W T FRAT T Wit w bt e 1T W

BMIFHRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Stondords)
(Z R B R e 2 AR 8Y)

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE_FFNFFAZA+—-BULFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

{b) Consolidation (Cont'd)
(ii)  Associates (Cont'd)

The Group's share of its associates’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised
in the income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements
are adjusted against the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other wunsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the associates. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(FETR B 8B & 2B iR &)

for the year ended 31 December 2006
BEE—FENFF A=+ —Gi+FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(b) Consolidation {Cont'd)

(i)

(iii)

Associates (Cont'd)

In the Company’s balance sheet, the
investments in associates are stated at
cost less provision for impairment losses,
if any. The results of associates are
accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Jointly controtled entities

A jointly controlled entity is an entity
in which the Group has joint control over
its economic activity established under
a contractual arrangement. The Group's
investments in jointly controlled entities
includes goodwill {net of any
accumulated impairment loss) identified
on acquisition.

The Group's interests in jointly controlled
entities are accounted for by the equity
method of accounting based on the
audited financial statements or
management accounts of the jointly
controlled entities. The Group’s share of
its jointly controlled entities’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised
in the income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements is
adjusted against the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group's share
of losses in a jointly controlled entity
equals or exceeds its interest in that
entity, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf
of the jointly controlled entity.
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{Prepared in accordance with International financial Reporting Standards)

(BRI B & AR &)
for the year ended 31 December 2006
HE _—_FENNEFE+_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEGTTHERE (@)
POLICIES (Cont'd)
(b) Consalidation (Cont'd) (b) EEE (H)

(iii) Jointly controlled entities (Cont’d) (iii) REZEHE B ()
Unrealised gains en transactions between AR M EEFRTH TR
the Group and its jointly controlled M3 B A TR FBIRE
entities are eliminated to the extent of AEMG RIS TR a
the Group’s interest in the jointly kb FHETTIESE - RITIR
controlled entities. Unrealised losses are ER MR AR 2 A HETT
also eliminated unless the transaction By BREEBENAED
provides evidence of an impairment of HABETR - AR E
the asset transferred. Accounting policies B - WAL EIFE I E LA
of jointly controlled entities have been e BREMAETE
changed where necessary to ensure o LA RHE EAEME
consistency with the policies adopted by FAREETRE—H -
the Group.

In the Company's balance sheet, the TEATEEREBERLAT
investments in jointly controlled entities B IR E R R PR TR R
are stated at cost less provision for MR AN AENRRRE
impairment losses. The results of jointly EHBYIR - ZARGHRRE
controlled entities are accounted for by EHI TN EEAC E,
the Company on the basis of dividends FEULAR BAER -

received and receivable.

(c) Segmental reporting (c) ZEBFHRE

A business segment is a group of assets and o et EEHE TR
operations engaged in providing products or BR—HEEMER  ME®
services that are subject to risks and returns % R A% &1 20 Bk 0 (00 i B2 L fth 3
that are different from those of other business %o EETRE o #E 5 BB ETE
segments. A geographical segment is engaged FESSFEHEREHDESEMR
in providing products or services within a EmaRY - HELSAREM
particular economic environment that is subject jaR\ Bz A [0 3t S 1 HL b 4R BRI
to risks and returns that are different from P LIER S ERE TR ©

those of segments operating in other economic

environments.

In accordance with the Group's internal financial IR AEE Y AT SRS

reporting, the Group has determined that FEBCATHESSTER

business segments be presented as the primary ERTES RS  mitko
reporting format and geographical as the MERSERIE T HBERZE

secondary reporting format. 5l o

Y &
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(Prepared in accordance with Internotional Financial Reporting Standards)
(IREIR R B R G2 RIGE)

for the year ended 31 December 2006

HE_FENF _A=+—-HiILtEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

{c) Segmental reporting (Cont'd)

The Group has two business segments, namely
passenger (including carge carried by passenger
flights) and cargo and logistics, which are
structured and managed separately, according
to the nature of their operations and the
services they provide,

In respect of the geographical segment, the
analysis of turnover and operating profit is
based on the following criteria:

(1)

Traffic revenue from services within the
PRC (excluding the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“Hong Kong™}) is
classified as domestic operations. Traffic
revenue from inbound and outbound
services between the PRC and Hong Kong
or overseas markets is classified under
Hong Kong or the relevant overseas
locations.

Revenue from ticket handling services,
airport ground services and other
miscellaneous services are classified on
the basis of where the services are
performed.

(d) Foreign currency translation

(1)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial
statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in
Chinese Renminbi ("RMB"), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation
currency.
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(FPrepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(I BB AT BE 3 & L Bl &)

for the year ended 31 December 2008
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(d) Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)
(i)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Fareign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income
statement, except when deferred in
equity as qualifying cash flow hedges.

Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign
currency classified as available for sale
are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the
security. Translation differences related
to changes in the amartised cost are
recognised in profit or loss, and other
changes in the carrying amount are
recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities are
reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss, When a gain or loss on a non-
monetary item is recognised directly in
equity, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised directly in
equity. Conversely, when a gain or loss
on a non-monetary item is recognised in
the income statement, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is
recognised in the income statement.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(FEEIRRT B 5 B &)

For the year ended 31 December 2006
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(e)

Revenue recognition and sales in advance
of carriage

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods and the provision of services in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities.
Revenue is shown net of business and value-
added taxes, returns, rebates and discounts and
after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity and specific criteria have been
met for each of the Group’s activities as
described below. The amount of revenue is not
considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to the sale have been
resolved. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transaction and
the specifics of each arrangement.

(i)  Traffic revenues

Passenger, cargo and mail revenues are
recognised as traffic revenues when the
transportation services are provided. The
value of sold but unused tickets is
recognised as sales in advance of carriage
(“SIACT).

(ii) Commission income

Commission income represents amounts
earned from other carriers in respect of
sales made by the Group’s agents on their
behalf, and is recognised in the income
statement upon ticket sales.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(BN A TS B & AN 2
For the year ended 31 December 2006
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(e)

(f)

(o)

Revenue recognition and sales in advance
of carriage (Cont'd)

(iii}  Qther operating income

Revenues from other operating
businesses, including income derived
from the provision of ground services
and cargo handliing services, are
recognised when the services are
rendered.

{(iv) Rental income

Rental income from subleases of aircraft
is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the terms of the respective leases.
Rental income from leasing office
premises and cargo warehouses is
recognised on a stratght-line basis over
the lease term.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at
their fair vatlue where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are
deducted from the related cost in the income
statement.

Government grants relating to property, plant
and equipment are recognised as a reduction
of the carrying amount of the asset. The grant
is recognised as income over the life of a
depreciable asset by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.
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{Prepared in occordance with International Finencial Reporting Standards)
(IRIEERB 3R & S BN &)

for the year ended 31 December 2006
BE_FEANFfF A=+ —HUFEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(9}

(h)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method. When a receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future
cash flow discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income,
Interest income on impaired loans is recognised
using the original effective interest rate.

Retirement benefits

The Group participates in defined contribution
retirement schemes regarding pension and
medical benefits for employees organised by
the municipal governments of the relevant
provinces, The contributions to the schemes
are charged to the income statement as and
when incurred.

In addition, the Group provides retirees with
post-retirement benefits including retirement
subsidies, transportation subsidies, social
function activity subsidies as well as other
welfare. The liability recognised in the balance
sheet in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the balance sheet date less the
fair value of plan assets, together with
adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gains
or losses and past service costs. The defined
benefit obligatien is calculated annually using
the projected unit credit method. The present
value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using interest rates of government
bonds that are denominated in the currency in
which the benefits will be paid, and that have
terms to maturity approximating to the terms
of the related pension liability. Actuarial gains
and losses arising from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions in excess
of the greater of 10% of the value of plan
assets or 10% of the defined benefit obligation
are charged or credited to income aver the
employees’ expected average remaining working
lives.
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(Prepared in accordance with Internationel Financial Reporting Standards)

(IR R &R E)
For the year ended 31 December 2006
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2.

120

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)

(h)

(i)

Retirement benefits (Cont’d)

Past-service costs are recognised immediately
in income, unless the changes to the pension
plan are conditional on the employees
remaining in service for a specified period of
time (the vesting period). In this case, the
past-service costs are amortised on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period.

Maintenance and overhaul costs

In respect of aircraft under operating leases,
the Group has the responsibility to fulfill certain
return conditions under relevant leases. In order
to fulfiil these return conditions, major
overhauls are required to be conducted on a
regular basis. Accordingly, the present value of
estimated costs of major overhauls for aircraft
under operating leases are provided at each
balance sheet date. The provision in each period
is estimated using historical major overhaul
costs incurred during each overhaul and the
estimated period between overhauls using the
ratios of actual flying hours and estimated
flying hours between overhauls. Differences
between the estimated cost and the actual cost
of the overhaul are included in the income
statement in the period of overhaul.

In respect of aircraft owned by the Group or
held under finance leases, costs of overhauls
are capitalised as a component of property,
plant and equipment and are depreciated over
the appropriate maintenance cycles. When each
overhaul is performed, its cost is recognised in
the carrying amount of the item of property,
plant and equipment and is depreciated over
the estimated period between overhauls, on a
straight-line basis. Upon completion of an
overhaul, any remaining carrying amount of the
cost of the previous overhaul is derecognised
and charged to the income statement.
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(Prepared in accordance with International fimancial Reporting Standards)
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(i)

§)

Maintenance and overhaul costs (Cont’d)

All other routine repairs and maintenance costs
incurred in restoring such assets to their normal
working condition are charged to the income
statement as and when incurred.

Improvements are capitalised and depreciated
over their expected useful lives to the Group.

Income tax

The Group provides for current income tax based
on the results for the year as adjusted for items
which are not assessable or deductible for
current income tax purposes. Current income
tax of the Group is determined in accordance
with the relevant tax rules and regulations
applicable in the jurisdictions where the Group
operates.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. However, deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settied.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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{Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

§)

(k)

Income tax (Cont'd}

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temperary difference is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Property, plant and equipment

Praperty, plant and equipment is recognised
initially at cost which comprises purchase price,
advance payments on acquisition and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the assets
to the condition for their intended use.

Subsequent to initial recognition, property,
plant and equipment is stated at revalued
amount less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Independent valuations are performed at least
ance every five years, or sooner if considered
necessary by the Directors. In the intervening
years, the Directors review the carrying values
of property, plant and equipment and
adjustment is made where they are materially
different from fair value. Increases in the
carrying amount arising on revaluation are
credited to the revaluation reserve. Decreases
in valuation of property, plant and equipment
are first offset against increases from earlier
valuations of the same asset and are thereafter
charged to the income statement. All other
decreases in valuation are charged to the
income statement. Any subsequent increases are
credited to the income statement up to the
amount previgusly charged. Any accumulated
depreciation at the date of revaluation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount
of the asset, and the net amount is restated to
the revalued amount of the asset.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(TZER G R B RIR )

for the year ended 31 December 2006
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(k) Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

Costs of overhaul for aircraft owned by the
Group or held under finance leases are
capitalised as a component of property, plant
and equipment and are depreciated over the
appropriate maintenance cycles (Note 2(i}}.

All other repairs and maintenance is charged
in the income statement during the financial
period in which it is incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
write down their costs or revalued amounts to
their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Aircraft, engines and flight equipment

- Components related to 2 to 8 years
overhaul costs
- Others 20 years
Buildings 15 to 35 years
Other property, plant and 5 to 20 years
equipment

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(k)

(V)

124

Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the assets’
carrying amount and are recognised within
office, administrative and other expenses, in
the income statements. When revalued assets
are sold, the amounts included in the
revaluation reserve are transferred to retained
profits.

Construction in progress represents buildings
under construction and plant and equipment,
being mainly flight simulators, pending
installation. This includes the costs of
construction or acquisition and interest
capitalised. No depreciation is provided on
construction in progress until the asset is
completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets
(i)  Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the
cost of an acquisition over the fair value
of the Group’s share of the net
identifiable assets of the acquired
subsidiary, associate, jointly controlled
entity or business at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill on acquisition of
subsidiaries and businesses is included
in ‘intangible assets’. Goodwill on
acquisition of associates and jointly
controtled entities is included in
‘investments in associates’ and
‘investments in jointly controlled
entities’. Recognised goodwill is tested
annually for impairment and carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Impairment losses on goodwill
are not reversed. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to
the entity sold.
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(Prepared in accordonce with International Financial Reporting Standards)
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

() Intangible assets (Cont'd)

(1)

(1i)

(i)

Goodwill (Cont'd)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units for the purpose of impairment
testing. The allocation is made to those
cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination
in which the goodwill arose.

Sponsorship fees

Sponsorship fees paid in relation to the
2010 Shanghai Expo have been
capitalised and are being amortised on
a straight-line basis over the pericd of
the sponsorship program. The cost of the
intangible asset is calculated based on
the expected cash payment and the fair
value of the services to be provided.

Computer software costs

Expenditure on computer software costs
is capitalisd and amortised using the
straight-line method over the expected
useful lives of the software, which vary
from 5 to 6 years.
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{Prepared in accordonce with International Firancial Reporting Standards}

(ZEBR R B & R )
For the year ended 31 December 2006
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEGTTEHERE (E)

POLICIES (Cont'd)

{m) Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,

(m) HEAT - BEAT -« $tF

126

associates, jointly controlled entities and REBEHRRIFVEEEDN
non-financial assets A
Assets that have an indefinite useful life or SREETEFAER M AT

which are not yet available for use are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment
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whenever events or changes in circumstances W - mEEREEEZRE
indicate that the carrying amount may not be EBRLE R EEE s ZEHE
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised R AKNESHENEEZ AT
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying ENREERTEBEER

amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Assets other than goodwill
that have suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each
balance sheet date.

EoRESE LY - B ER
B - AEZASHESERES
mB REeELEN)MREE
KRG o BRERIN - BRFH
EHEONEEEGEEERAERA
ARt ER S r] AR EETT
fREd e

(n) Lease prepayments (n) MAHEER
Lease prepayments represent acquisition costs FERTHE R T L M6 AR
of land use rights less accumulated AR R Rt iy o FANH
amortisation. Amortisation is provided over the ERETiniBENERFRE
lease period of the land use rights on a straight- LABSUREITER -
line basis.

(o) Advanced payments on acquisition of (o) MBS
aircraft
Advanced payments on acquisition of aircraft AR BEEERBN NS

represent payments to aircraft manufacturers
to secure deliveries of aircraft in future years
and the related interest capitalised. The balance
is transferred to property, plant and equipment
upen delivery of the aircraft.

RERIERNERITENK - 13
ERAEMN R E LR AE
E YRREBCGERBEZYD
B BBRERE -
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{Prepared in accordonce with International financial Reporting Standards)
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For the year ended 31 December 2006

BE —FPAFFIAZA+—OUFEE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(p) Borrowing costs

Interest attributable to loans for advance
payments used to finance the acquisition of
aircraft and other qualifying assets is capitalised
as an additional cost of the related asset.
Interest is capitalised at the Group's weighted
average interest rate on borrowings or, where
applicable, the interest rate related to specific
borrowings during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the
income statement in the period in which they
are incurred.

(g) Long-term bank deposits

Held-to-maturity long-term bank depesits placed
to secure future lease obligations are classified
as held-to-maturity financial assets and
included under other long-term assets in the
balance sheet. Held-to-maturity financial assets
are initially recognised in the balance sheet at
fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently,
they are stated at amortised cost less
impairment losses.

(r) Flight equipment spare parts

Flight equipment spare parts are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted average method.
The cost of flight equipment spare parts
comprises the purchase price (net of discounts),
freight charges, duty and value added tax and
other miscellaneous charges. Net realisable
value is the estimated replacement cost of the
flight equipment spare parts.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE_FFNEF A= —HULEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(s)

(t)

128

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of trade receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of
the debtor, probability that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or financial recrganisation,
and default or delinquency in payments are
considered indicators that the trade receivable
is impaired. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets
is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the income statement. When a
trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for trade
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited in the income
statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in
hand, deposits held at call with banks and other
short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

2. EREHREBE (H)
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{Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
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for the year ended 31 December 2006
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(u)

(v)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initiatly at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred, Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
differences between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and the amount can be reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

{w)} Leases

(i)

139

A Group company is the lessee
Finance leases

The Group leases certain property, plant
and equipment. Leases of property, plant
and equipment where the Group has
acguired substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. Finance leases are
capitalised at the lease’s commencement
at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property and the present value of
the minimum lease payments,

Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance charges so as
to achieve a constant rate on the finance
balance outstanding. The carresponding
rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in other short-term
and other long-term payables. The
interest element of the finance cost is
charged to the income statement over
the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for
each period. Leased assets are
depreciated using a straight-line basis
over their expected useful lives to
residual values.

For sale and leaseback transactions
resulting in a finance lease, differences
between sales proceeds and net beok
values are deferred and amortised over
the minimum lease terms.

F 11 1WAl T it e W vt % T 1§ el
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(w) Leases (Cont'd)

(i)

(i)

A Group company is the lessee
(Cont’d)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of
the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to
the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

For sale and leaseback transactions
resulting in an operating lease,
differences between sales proceeds and
net book values are recognised
immediately in the income statement,
except to the extent that any profit or
loss is compensated for by future lease
payments at above or below market
value.

A Group company is the lessor

When assets are leased out under a
finance lease, the present value of the
lease payments is recognised as a
receivable. The difference between the
gross receivable and the present value
of the receivable is recognised as
unearned finance income. Lease income
is recognised over the term of the lease
using the net investment method, which
reflects a constant periodic rate of
return.

Assets leased out under operating leases
are included in property, plant and
equipment in the balance sheet. They
are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on a basis consistent with
similar property, plant and eguipment.
Rental income is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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{Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE-FEAFf-A=1—HILFEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(x)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised in the balance sheet at fair value
and are subsequently remeasured at their fair
value. The accounting for subsequent changes
in fair value depends on whether the derivative
is designated as a hedging instrument, and if
so, the nature of the item being hedged.

The Group documents at the inception of the
transaction the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its
risk management objectives and strategy for
undertaking various hedge transactions. The
Group also documents its assessment, both at
hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of
whether the derivatives that are used in hedging
transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged
items.

Derivative financial instruments that do not
qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for
as trading instruments and any unrealised gains
or losses, being changes in fair value of the
derivatives, are recognised in the income
statement immediately.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualify as fair value hedges
and that are highly effective, are recorded in
the income statement, along with any changes
in the fair value of the hedged assets or
liabilities that are attributable to the hedged
risk.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(x)

Derivative financial instruments (Cont’d)

Derivative financial instruments that gualify for
hedge accounting and which are designated as
a specific hedge of the variability in cashflows
of a highly probable forecast transaction, are
accounted for as follows:

(i) the effective portion of any change in
fair value of the derivative financial
instrument is recognised directly in
equity. Where the forecast transaction
or firm commitment results in the
recognition of an asset or a Liability,
the gains and lesses previously deferred
in equity are included in the initial
measurement of the cost of the asset or
liability. Otherwise, the cumulative gain
or loss on the derivative financial
instrument is removed from equity and
recognised in the income statement in
the same period during which the hedged
forecast transaction affects net profit or
loss.

{ii)  the ineffective portion of any change in
fair value is recognised in the income
statement immediately.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold,
or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria
for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or
loss existing in equity at that time remains in
equity and is recognised in the income
statement when the committed or forecast
transaction ultimately occurs. When a
committed or forecast transaction is no tonger
expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss
that was recorded in equity is immediately
transferred to the income statement.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(LRI R R & B RIAR L)
for the year ended 31 December 2006
BE-—FEAFF+-AZ—HiIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHEERE (&)
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(v) Dividend (y) BF
Dividend distribution to the Company's ST AL AR 2 IRFIR R
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the 7 E AR LA RZ AR B HARERR
financial statements in the period in which the AEEECBE-
dividends are approved by the Company's
shareholders.

(z) Available-for-sale financial assets (z) AIREEMBEE

Investments in securities other than REREHIEF EEEMSE - B
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled Mg aa) - BE AR kKRN
entities, being held for non-trading purposes, HER  SHARHLEMSE
are classified as available-for-sale financial BE - L ERBEE ¥
assets and are initially recognised at fair value FHRARENR SR F R -
plus transaction costs. At each balance sheet AEBEEENATERH
date, the fair value is remeasured, with any BEMNDAME  BEERE
resulting gain or loss being recognised directly o ME BB EEEHEPR
in equity, except for impairment losses. When R - EEMITED L
these investments are derecognised, the R ERERAEE il
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised HEER - BERABER -
directly in equity is recognised in the income
statement.
The Group assesses at each halance sheet date FEEETHREEBTEES
whether there is objective evidence that a BEBEREHEEMBEEE
financial asset is impaired. In the case of equity RFEVBERERRE - ¥
securities classified as available for sale, a RoBRBRAHEENRES
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value & AEEREFLLTDERE
of the securities below its cost is considered B 8EZBBHFLAEREK
an indicator that the securities are impaired. B RABREENERANE -
If any such evidence exists for available-for- HAHEENREETELS
sale financial assets, the cumulative loss, B REEE - RWEER AR
measured as the difference between the HEROAEMNERE - B
acquisition cost and the current fair value less BEEZ HMEBRRERNE
any impairment loss on that financial asset REHETE - axPs
previously recognised in the income statement, BRI LR RACHR - TEIEMER
is removed from equity and recognised in the WRNRETARESESE
income statement. Impairment losses recognised FHREERERE -

in the income statement on equity instruments
are not reversed through the income statement,

(aa) Comparatives (aa) L B E ¥
Where necessary, prior year amounts have been MBERE LT EHIEER
reclassified to conform with changes in EXRFHRFGENNEMEN
presentation in the current year. ok I
1 p, (l;
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financiel Reporting Standards)
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For the year ended 31 December 2006

BE_FO NF+-A=1—EitFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(a) Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: business risk, market risk
(including currency risk, fair value interest rate
risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk),
credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance. The Group uses
derivative financial instruments to hedge certain
risk expasures.

(i}  Business risk

The operations of the air transportation
industry are substantially influenced by
global political and economic
development. Accidents, wars, natural
disasters, etc. may have a material
impact on the Group's operations or the
industry as a whole. In addition, the
Group conducts its principal operations
in the PRC and accordingly is subject to
special considerations and significant
risks not typically associated with
companies in ‘Western’ countries, These
include risks associated with, among
others, the political, economic and legal
environment, competition and the
influence of the C(ivil Aviation
Administration of China (“CAAC”) in the
PRC civil aviation industry.

(ii)  Foreign currency risk

The Group’s finance lease obligations as
well as certain bank and other loans are
denominated in US dollars, Japanese Yen
and Euros, and certain expenses of the
Group are denominated in currencies
other than RMB. The Group generates
foreign currency revenues from ticket
sales made in overseas offices and would
normally generate sufficient foreign
currencies after payment of foreign
currency expenses, to meet its foreign
currency liabilities repayable within one
year. The Group also enters into certain
foreign currency forward contracts to
hedge against foreign currency risk.
Details of foreignm currency forward
contracts are disclosed in Note 34(b) to
the financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

(a)

Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(iii} Interest rate risk

(iv)

(v)

The Group has significant bank
borrowings at floating variable rates and
is exposed to risk arising from changes
in market interest rates. To hedge
against the variability in the cash flows
arising from a change in market interest
rates, the Group has entered into certain
interest rate swaps to swap variable rates
into fixed rates. The interest rates and
terms of repayment of berrowings made
to the Group and interest rate swaps are
disclosed in Notes 28 and 34(a) to the
financial statements.

Price risk

The Group’s results of eperations may be
significantly affected by fluctuations in
fuel prices which is a significant expense
for the Group. While international fuel
prices are determined by worldwide
market demand and supply, domestic fuel
prices are regulated by CAAC. The Group
has entered into certain financial
derivatives to hedge against fuel price
risk. Details of fuel option contracts are
disclosed in Note 34(c) to the financial
statements.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk. The Group
has policies in place to ensure that blank
tickets are made to sales agents with an
appropriate credit history. A major
portion of sales are conducted through
sales agents and the majority of these
agents are connected to wvarious
settlement plans and/or clearing systems
which have tight requirements on the
credit standing of these agents.
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for the year ended 31 December 2006
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3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

(a) Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(v)

(vi)

Credit risk (Cont’'d)

Transactions in relation to derivative
financial instruments are only carried out
with financial institutions of high
reputation. The Group has policies that
limit the amount of credit exposure to
any one financial institution.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s primary cash requirements
have been for additions of and upgrades
to aircraft, engines and flight equipment
and payments on related borrowings/
debts. The Group finances its working
capital requirements through a
combination of funds generated from
operations and both short and long term
bank loans. The Group generally finances
the acquisition of aircraft through long-
term finance leases and bank loans.

The Group operates with a working
capital deficit. As at 31 December 2006,
the Group’s net current liabilities
amounted to RMB24,792 million (2005:
RMB25,572 million). For the year ended
31 December 2006, the Group recorded
a net cash inflow from operating
activities of RMB1,338 million (2005:
RMB1,952 million), a net cash outflow
from investing activities and financing
activities of RMB1,258 million (2005:
RMB2,183 million), and an increase in
cash and cash equivalents of RMB8O
million (2005: decrease of RMB231
million).
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
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3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3. EEEREE (§

134

(a) Financial risk factors (Cont'd) (a) & fe R 3 (5
(vi) Liquidity risk (Cont'd) (vi) it B & B B¢ (48)
The Directors of Company believe that AREEERAREEE
cash from operations and short-term bank ALREEE RTINS
borrowings will be sufficient to meet the FHRRHNEEES -
Group's operating cashflow. Due to the HRITEMNMEZE K
dynamic nature of the underlying RHEEBEBERECAFENGE
businesses, the Group's treasury policy FER ARG S B e
aims at maintaining flexibility in funding BFRE - RRATRESIESE
by keeping credit lines available. The FEMEE R ERART
Directors of the Company believe that BERXETMNEESRE A
the Group has obtained sufficient general UERRRERERAZ R
credit facilities from PRC banks for AREEMTES -
financing future capital commitments and
for working capital purposes.
(b) Fair value estimation of financial assets (b) TREENERBENAR
and liabilities EEAnT
The fair value of financial instruments traded EEETHEENERTA
in active markets (such as publicly traded (Bl AFAERNETETA -
derivatives, and trading and available-for-sale BEEZFMAHHESER) 2 |
securities) is based on quoted market prices at DREREEEONTIZEE |
the balance sheet date. The quoted market price S8R - REMSENMBEE |
used for financial assets held by the Group is WHIEREAERERE W |
the current bid price; the quoted market price HMREABMNEETIERERE |
used for financial liabilities is the current RERE - |
asking price.
The fair value of financial instruments that are RAEEENGEBNSRT
not traded in an active market is determined B/ Q8RN A& A e
by using valuation techniques. The Group uses Ee AEMMAZESE I
a variety of methods and makes assumptions BESESE A EHNHTISE
that are based on market conditions existing AR - REVEEFIAR
at each balance sheet date. Quoted market L AMMIGHRENZSER
prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments {BEEE - B - flandhat
are used for long-term debt. Other techniques, BMRIREIRE - FAAETHRS
such as estimated discounted cash flows, are TERTAMRRE - F=in
used to determine fair value for the remaining AR EREERKIRERE
financial instruments. The fair value of interest- MIREETHE - BAIMNE S 49R)
rate swaps is calculated as the present value LR EVREEAERMIGE
of the estimated future cash flows. The fair RETE - fuBBES MO R
value of forward foreign exchange contracts is EHIATHEREET -
determined using forward exchange market rates
at the balance sheet date. The fair value of
fuel option contracts is determined using quoted
market values.
990
3
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for the year ended 31 December 2006
HE_REEF-A=+—HRILFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
(b) Fair value estimation {Cont’d)

The carrying value less impairment provision
for trade receivables and payables are assumed
to approximate their fair values. The fair values
of other long-term receivables are based on
cash flows discounted using a rate based on
the borrowing rate. The fair value of financial
liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated
by discounting the future centractual cash flows
at the current market interest rate that is
available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments used in preparing the
financial statements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Estimated impairment of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets

The Group tests annually whether property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets have
been impaired in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 2(m) to the
financial statements. The recoverable amounts
of cash generating units have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates which
are disclosed in Note 14 to the financial
statements.

3. EEEREE (8
(b) BABEFEE
J& W SR FE A5 SR BRI {E R
BRRERBREEARDA
B - REEUEESTNAAHE
DEORRREERE RERFH
EAURE - EAREER - M
BRARAABNMEFTERRS
HWRERBUREERLUSR
TAAIBRREMIZN R
itHE-

4. BEETHEERAE

YRS RRE TR AN ER A
BEiiE AT EBRIHARES
BTG - RREESMERTE
EHAREHNSEEE - KEE
YRR EHGEERER - FISNE
STIEEMEES - ROSHEETE
EERAAR) o RAM & 8T B K
FREMNEENAENRAEELE
ARBNEENBRBFROT -

(a) FERTIR - HBRRHNR
FEERE
WRES SRR (m) AT LAY
FHEBR AREEEASEHA
W BELRBREREE
EEHBRRE - REELEMN
AT W O & BRI S B B ER
BmEE - WEAEFEFH
HH(REEE14) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2006

HBE_FENFF _A=+—RILFE

4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Valuation of property, plant and equipment

The Group's property, plant and equipment is
subsequently stated at revalued amounts less
accumulated depreciation in accerdance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 2(k) to
the financial statements. Revaluations of
property, plant and equipment will be performed
at sufficiently regular intervals, at least every
five years, by independent professional valuers.
In each of the intervening years valuations will
be undertaken by the Directors of the Company.
If the subsequent revalued amounts differ
materially from carrying amounts, the carrying
amounts will be adjusted to the revalued
amounts. Their recorded value is impacted by
management judgment, including valuations
performed by the management and/or
independent professional valuers, estimates of
useful lives, residual value and impairment
charges. If different judgments or estimates
had been utilized, material differences could
have resulted in the amount of revaluation and
related depreciation charges.

{¢) Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current
financial assets, including cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, prepayments,
other receivables, amounts due from related
companies and current financial Liabilities
including trade payables and note payables,
other payables and accrued expenses and
amounts due to related companies, approximate
their fair values due to their short maturities.

oy o

4. RESTHYERHE (@)

(b)

(c)

- BERRE

BigEE (k) & ETIR
8] ALENME  BBERR
EREFEERERHTES
fR - BIE - BEERRIRNEE
AERRIMNIE L G EM & &
hFE—REHETHHE
AR o PMETTRURBI AT 2 ]
MEE  RREFSEHNY
£ - BEkRkhRmEE -
ACEREE (B B F 12 G a0 M8
Fied BRERER/RB
Y EEGEMMAENEE - B
AR & - FIEREE
RE{A - nRERTRMN
HE RS - BIERMEER
BRENITESOLTRAERD
Bl

D RERRE
AEBEZABMBEERIER
ERRESEY - YRR -
R - Hamuss - BMA
BB R RIB A BRBIM 5 8
REEEN RN R R -
RipFANREFAEERURE
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HEEERDIBEE 2RE
BEIAAEOAE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Cont’d)

(d)

(e)

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises passenger, cargo and mail
revenues in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in Note 2(e) to the financial
statements. Unused tickets are recognised in
traffic revenues based on current estimates.
Management periodically evaluate the balance
in the SIAC and record any adjustments, which
can be materiat, in the period the evaluation
is completed. These adjustments result from
differences between the estimates of certain
revenue transactions and the timing of
recognising revenue for any unused air tickets
and the related sales price, and are impacted
by various factors, including a complex pricing
structure and interline agreements throughout
the industry, which affect the timing of revenue
recognition.

Overhaul costs

The amount of overhaul costs charged/amartised
to operating profits is impacted by
management’s estimates of the expected flying
hours and overhaul costs, which are largely
based on past experience of overhauls of the
same or similar models of aircraft. Different
judgments or estimates could significantly
affect the estimated overhaul provision and
materially impact the results of operations,

4. BMEGHOERHE ()

(d) WAREEZ

IRIBETIE2 (o) PRI B 5T X
B REEREUEE R
HRARE HEABBEWR
A RBEEROBERNERRE
ZAEREBEAEBREERS
WA - EEETERHREHA
HTEHE - AIHEEEMMIE
A geEAMPE - HYRIRE
FETREHMBERD o It
SRR HRHBAZ SN
H RECHOERERAW
AREE ] R AR SH S BBt
5T B W E A TR A A 8 A
R EREEERENFE £
FEEHENERERREEAZ
MM EERE  HEREYA
E"]ﬁﬁﬁgﬂ%lﬁ °

(e) R¥EEH

REBERTHEINAEERR
fEEr K AR AR TRIT/ ) R B
B RARE - EASNIR
iR iR = AR R SR AL 5 AR
K{!%E’Gﬁﬁi@%ﬁ o R & A BT

st RO REEBEE
ﬁ( E THEEERERR
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Cont’'d)

(f)

142

Retirement benefits

The Group operates and maintains defined
retirement benefit plans which provide retirees
with benefits including transportation subsidies,
social activity subsidies as well as other welfare,
The cost of providing the aforementioned
benefits in the defined retirement benefit plan
is actuarially determined and recognised over
the employees’ service period by utilising
various actuariat assumptions and using the
projected unit credit method in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 2(h) to
the financial statements. These assumptions
include, without limitation, the selection of
discount rate, annual rate of increase of per
capita benefit payment and employees’ turnover
rate. The discount rate is based on
management’s review of local high quality
corporate bonds. The annual rate of increase
of benefit payments is based on the general
local economic conditions. The employees’
turnover rate is based on historical trends of
the Group. Additional information regarding the
retirement benefit plans is disclosed in Note
32 to the financial statements.

4. ERETHEERAE (&

(H BRKER

T EHB R REFHEFEEK
BN EEARKERIER
B - HAEEEMAR
HaER - maE2(n)FAR -
R B FER ARG 8
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Cont'd)

(g) Deferred income tax

In assessing the amount of deferred tax assets
that need to be recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 2(j) to
the financial statements, the Group considers
future taxable income and ongoing prudent and
feasible tax planning strategies. In the event
that the Group's estimates of projected future
taxable income and benefits from available tax
strategies are changed, or changes in current
tax requlations are enacted that would impact
the timing or extent of the Group’s ability to
utilise the tax benefits of net operating loss
carry forwards in the future, adjustments to
the recorded amount of net deferred tax assets
and taxation expense would be made.

(h) Current tax

The Group make provision for current tax based
on the estimated income tax liabilities. The
estimated income tax liabilities are primarily
computed based on the tax filings as prepared
by our Company and based on management’s
interpretation of relevant tax rulings.

(i} Classification of leases

The Group classifies leases into finance leases
or operating leases in accordance with the
accounting policies stated in Note 2{w) to the
financial statements. Whether a lease is a
finance lease or operating lease depends on
the substance of the transactions rather than
the form of the contract. In determining
whether a lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease, significant estimates and
judgment are required. In making these
estimates, and judgment, the Group evaluates
among other factors, if the present value of
the minimum lease payments amounts to at
teast substantially all of the fair value of the
leased asset at the inception of the lease. To
evaluate a lease based on this model, a number
of assumptions, such as the incremental
borrowing rate of interest, interest rate implicit
in the lease and residual values of the aircraft
at the end of the lease period have been made.
Any changes to these assumptions would affect
the classification of the lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BECFENEF - F=+—HIFE

5.

REVENUES

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of
civil aviation, including the provision of passenger,

5 WA

FRET ERERMES - BIEE
- |E - BELEMEMRER

cargo, mail delivery and other extended transportation B -
services.
Group
-4
2006 2005
—BeRE —EFRT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARST R ARET
Revenues WA
Traffic revenues EH WA
- Passenger —FiE 31,229,591 21,367,747
- Cargo and mail ~—HERHE 5,776,671 5,087,244
Ground service income iy I AR A% 4 A 781,130 806,755
Cargo handling income BRI RA 289,530 292,488
Commission income & WA 125,576 185,827
Rental income from operating M@ EEDE
subleases of aircraft W A - 183,260
Others Hib 263,169 198,175
38,465,667 28,121,496
Less: Business tax (Note) o E R (HE) (976,792) (667,053)
37,488,875 27,454,443
Note: iz

Except for traffic revenues derived from inbound
international and regional flights, which are not subject to
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") business tax, the
Group’s traffic revenues, commission income, ground service
income, cargo handling income and other revenues are
subject to PRC business tax levied at rates ranging from 3%
to 5%, pursuant to PRC business tax rules and regutations.

144
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6. OTHER OPERATING INCOME, NET 6. Rp&XRIE - F8
Group
mm
2006 2005
—BRARE C—RB¥ARE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR®TT
Government subsidies (Note) B B (BE ) 462,370 193,069
Net fair value (losses})/gains PEsRMIALR
on financial instruments EFREK) hE
- forward foreign exchange -SHEEBREH
contracts 26,744 25,002
- fuel hedging (losses)/income  —AiAEH (EX) /W (64,849) 27,208
424,265 245,279

Note:

The government subsidies represent (i) subsidies granted
by local government to the Company in consideration of
the relocation of the Company’s international flights and
related facilities from Shanghai Honggiao Airport to Pudong
International Airport; (ii} subsidies granted by various local
municipalities to encourage the Group to operate certain
routes to places where these municipalities are located;
and (iii} other subsidies granted by the Central Government.

g

B AR T R A0 B AR E] SR
PR AR SO R AR hE T ST AR Bt 5 8 B
AR AS TAHRE R (i) & it
F B ASBA B L Emmm
ke T ERERS B2 (iT)P REGATES TR R
fhfRb
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

Primary reporting format by business
segment

Segment infarmation is presented in respect of
the Group's business and geographical segments.
Business segment information is chosen as the
primary reporting format. For the year ended
31 December 2005, the Group principally
operated in one business segment, which was
the operation of civil aviation, including the
provision of passenger, cargo, mail delivery and
other extended transportation services. In view
of the growth of the China cargo and logistic
transportation services, the Group has decided
to report it as a separate business segment.

In the prior year's financial statements, the
Group’s corporate general and administrative
expenses (the “Corporate Expenses”) were
allocated to respective segments. In order to
better reflect the impact of recent business
acquisitions and a rapid increase in business
volumes, Corporate Expenses have not been
allocated on a geographical basis because the
basis of such an allocation cannot be performed
on a non-arbitrary basis. Accordingly, the
analysis of segment results for both 2006 and
2005 has been presented on this basis.

Il widhr ot bl el wd
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7.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7.

{(a) Primary reporting format by business
segment (Cont’d)

(1}  Passenger business segment includes
cargo carried by passenger flights.

(2) Inter-segment transfers or transactions
are entered into under normal commercial
terms and conditions that would also be
available to unrelated third parties.

The segment results for the year ended 31
December 2006 are as follows:

7 BER ()

(a) UxBIHBRETEIHLA
()

(1) BREESBBIEEHIE
He B ERS

(2) PEBEENRZSBEAR
B E= HHERNE
RGERRIE T RRR -

BE-BEXELFEND
EHEWMTHR

(argo and
Passenger logistics Unallocated Total
FE KERNE *98 &t
| RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
I — - — — —
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARSBTR
| Traffic revenues EHWA 13,489,078 2,842,836 - 36,332,814
Other revenues and it AR Rf
| operating income g 308 1,066,206 709,065 140,525 1,915,890
Total segment revenue A FRASH 34,556,274 3,551,905 140,525 38,248,704
Inter-segment revenve 2 EEKA (759,829 - - (759,829)
i Revenues PN 33,796,445 3,551,905 140,525 37,488,875
Operating {loss)/profit (2% (518) /#F|
‘ - segment resulis - %R (2,770,861) (242,526) 21,947 {2.991,440)
Interest income HAERA 112,181 6,247 1,733 120,161
‘ Finance costs HExH (776,647) (93,026) {7,906) (877,579)
Share of results of BRAEELE
associates i3 103,566 - - 103,566
Share of results of jointly Z{EE@EEH
controlled entities ERZH 29,595 - - 29,595
{Lass)/profit befcre Kiai(548)/
income tax =7 (3,302,166) (329,305) 15,774 (3,615,697)
Income tax HE 198,088 (30,262) (4.894) 162,912
(Loss)/profit for the year EE (£1R) /5 (3.104,078) (359,567) 10,880 (3.452,765)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7.

(@) Primary reporting format by business
segment (Cont’d)

The segment results for the year ended 31
December 2005 are as follows:

D EE R (F)

(@) UEEIRBAHEIEITER
(&)
BE_ZZRAFILFEMSEE
BEMT IR

Cargo and
Passenger logistics Unallocated Total
EE HERDR *28 Ak
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR  ARETR  AR®TR  AR%Tn

Traffic revenues BHEBA 23,182,516 2,731,636 - 25,014,152
Other revenuss and Hiplh AR E A

operating income BRuE 1,012,076 574,776 97,911 1,684,763
Totat segment revenue D HBRASBEH 24,194,592 3,306,412 97,911 27,598,915
Inter-seqment revence 7 SRR A (144,472) - - (144,472)
Reventes A 24,050,120 3,306,412 97,911 27,454,443
Operating (loss)/profit B8 (F518) /HH

- seqment results -HHEE (165,559) 167,414 12,393 14,248
Interest income ey A 120,155 6,149 2,396 128,700
Finance costs Hazd (623,536) (83,518) 4 {707,050}
Share of results of Y NG

assaciates -3 (9,030) - - (9,030)
Share of results of jointly B45 2RI

controllad entities n8%4 (4,300) - - (4,300)
{Loss)/profit before (&8 /

income tax #H (682,276) 90,045 14,793 (577,432)
Income tax HE 153,226 {11,415} (3,107) 138,704
(Loss)/profit for the year &% (§H8) /&7 (529,044) 78,630 11,686 (438,728)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7.

(a) Primary reporting format by business
segment (Cont’d)

Other segment items included in the income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2006

AEHER (E)

(a) ¥R BHETEFBEKX
()
HE_ZEF+_A=1+—
BItEEESRMBARPHE

are as follows: it EIEE FIRANT
Cargo and
Passenger logistics Unallocated Total
3 BERNR xR s
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
Depreciation e 3,937,182 524,150 32,240 4,493,572
Amortisation B 72,731 - - 72,137
Revaluation deficits of 1% - B R
property plant and REFR
equipment REAR 1,035,343 - - 1,035,343

Other segment items included in the income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2005

RE-2PEE|-F=+—
AL B AR R P A

are as follows: b ERIEE IR ¢
{argo and
Passenger logistics Unallocated Total
B2 HARYR RO aft
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETT  AR®TR  ARET:R
Depreciation ik 3,434,648 445,501 17,992 3,898,142
Amortisation i 13,580 - - 13,580
149
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(3)

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 7. SEER (B
Primary reporting format by business (a) UAEBRIBRTEFTER
segment (Cont’d) ()
Segment assets and liabilities comprise EBOHEERAESHZSH
operating assets and liabilities that are directly HEEREEENREEERBER
attributable to the segment. pk e
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 BEZZRERFE+-A=1+—
December 2006 and capital expenditure for the AtFEZ7EEE - AR
year then ended are as follows: BAMLZHI|RMOT -
(argo and
Passenger logistics Unallocated Total
%8 HERAR ROK &t
RMB'000 kMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARS TR ARBTR ARETR
Segment assets AHEE 54,778,224 5,185,564 463,188 £0,426,476
Investments in associates {2 E MG 227 498,295 10,760 114,335 623,390
Investments in jointly &R £33
controlled entities 4] 115,549 - - 115,540
Total assets BESH 55,392,059 5,196,324 577,523 61,165,906
Segment liabilities aBRfA (53,632,097) (3.992,814) (64,352)  (57,689,263)
(apital expenditure At
(Note 14 & 15) (B4R 15,566,384 1,170,712 52,623 16,789,719

The segment assets and liabilities at 31
December 2005 and capital expenditure for the

BE_ZERE+_-_A=1+—
BIFEZHHEE - AFR

year then ended are as follows: BEAMZHTIRET -
Cargo and
Passenger togistics Unallocated Total
¥E  EERYR b3:a.) &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RME'000
ARETT  ARETx ARBTT ARETT
Segment assets THEE 52,560,982 5,182,541 425,553 58,169,076
[nvestments in associates & EREE L 510,059 7,187 112,500 629,746
Investments in jointty ~ REREREH
controlled entities il 100,520 - . 100,520
Total assets BRESH 53,171,561 5,189,728 538,053 58,899,342
Seqmant liabilities SHAR (48,461,886) (3,473,228) (45,686)  (51,980,800)
Capital expenditure AT
(Note 14 & 15) (EEWRE) 12,170,540 1,044,973 14,838 13,230,351

4
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(BB R & AR )

For the yeor ended 31 December 2006
HE_BENEFFZA=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7.

(b) Secondary reporting format by geographical
segment

The Group’s two business segments operate in
four main gecgraphical areas, even though they
are managed on a worldwide basis.

The Group's revenues (net of business tax) by
geographical segment are analysed as follows:

o ERE R ()
(b) UBEHS BEXBEHRERN

HBEXRBERRE  FREZ
EENEES a1 QU EES 3001
BREEE -

AEME SR 5 M2 A OB
ZEEBRFE ONET

Group

=W
2006 2005
—E8AE _—_ERAF
RMB'000 RMB000
AR®FR AREBTRT

Domestic {the PRC, W (FE -

excluding Hong Kong) TREEFE) 20,803,441 13,357,972
Hong Kong 5 3,244,846 3,150,123
Japan =] 3,582,962 2,644,372
Other countries HinEHxR 9,857,626 8,301,976
Total B85 37,488,875 27,454,443

The major revenue-earning assets of the Group
are its aircraft, all of which are registered in
the PRC. Since the Group's aircraft are deployed
flexibly acrass its route network, there is no
suitable basis of allocating such assets and the
related liabilities to geographical segments and
hence segment assets and capital expenditure
by geographic segment have not been
presented.

AEEFERARBRRERBE
EOEEREEAMRPEARK
FIEY - AR E 2 RGP ET R
BT BEmER RAEBLEEE
FiERaEERRSHHESESA
MVERE - BRI R IR IR 5 ER
REEERERMEL -
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FEANES_A=+—-HIFE

8.

WAGES, SALARIES AND BENEFITS

8. I&E -HELRER

Group
-3
2006 2005
ZE8RAF —_Z2RF
RMB'C00 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETI
Wages, salaries, bonus TE -4 - f£4
and allowances L 2,476,924 1,579,292
Employee welfare and benefits  {& 8 18 %)}z F| 2§ 295,185 166,267
Defined contribution retirement 8RR K& 5T #I
schemes (Note 32(a)) ($1E32(a)) 298,363 280,218
Post-retirement benefits EERAEENERH
(Note 32(b)) (FEE32(h) 146,968 102,459
Staff housing fund BIFEES
(Note 33(a)) (3E1E33(a) 228,000 195,000
Staff housing allowance BT (T[E gk
{(Note 33(b)} (FE¥E33(h)) 30,656 36,231
3,476,096 2,359,467
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(IZEIETEA T VR & SR R BY)

for the year ended 31 December 2006

BE_FENFF A —HUEFE

8. WAGES, SALARIES AND BENEFITS (Cont’d) 8.

(a) Emoluments of Directors, supervisors and

I& - HEREN &
(a) HB - EBERBATERAR

senior management

Details of the emoluments paid to the
Company’s Directors, supervisors and senijor
management are as follows:

MBS

IR RRIEE BERER
TTHRAEBMMERETHE
I8 .

2006
—BE8XE
Salaries and
allowances Bonus Total
FERmid A R ]
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR TR AR%TR AEMTxR
Executive Directors HITER
Li Fenghua* FYE - - -
Luo Chaogeng* EHE" - - -
Cao Jainxiong* i - - -
Wan Mingwu* SRR - - -
Zhong Xiong* L i - - -
Luo Zhuping BT 157 - 157
Independent non- BUkHRT
executive Directors o o8
Hu Honggao* HEE - - -
Peter Lok * HEE - - -
Wu Baiwang* RAM" - - -
Zhou Ruijin* Bime - - -
Xie Rong* it - - -
Supervisors Es
Li Wenxin* EMEH - - -
Ba Shengji* ol = - - -
Yang Xingen ¥ ETIR 149 - 149
Yang Jie %R 100 - 100
Liu Jiashun* B 2R NE - - -
Vice executive Directors BIBTHESE
Zhang Jianzhong REF 176 - 176
Li Yangmin FEE 156 - 156
Fan Ru B2H 454 - 454
Finance controller B E
Luo Weide miEE 173 - 173
Total &t 1,365 - 1,365
153
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{Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(BB R R & SRR &)

for the year ended 31 December 2006
HE_BENFF-RA=+—HBIFEF

8.  WAGES, SALARIES AND BENEFITS (Cont'd)

(a) Emoluments of Directors, supervisors and

Lo

8. I& HEREF (8
(a) HE - EERERITHRAR

senior management (Cont'd) BRI & (D
2005
—2BEREF
Sataries and
allowances Bonus Total
e Rimas {EHL B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®TIT ARBTE
Executive Directors HITHS
Li Fenghua* FHE - - -
Luo Chaogeng* EPRE - - -
Cao Jainxiong* g - - -
Wan Mingwu* gHER - - -
Zhong Xiong* & - - -
Luo Zhuping R F 103 59 162
Independent non- BIFET
executive Directors ED
Hu Honggao* A& - - -
Peter Lok * g - - -
Wu Baiwang* REH" - - -
Zhou Ruijin* BmE - - -
Xie Rong™ e - - -
Supervisors o3}
Li Wenxin* FEXEh - - -
Ba Shengji* Y - - -
Yang Xingen mETAR 86 55 141
Yang Jie 152 66 49 115
Liu Jiashun* EEN - - -
Vice executive Directors EISi{TH =
Wu Jiuhong RAM 119 231 350
Zhou Liguo B8 & 126 352 478
Zhang Jianzhong KRBT 101 93 194
Tong Guozhao %R 121 352 473
Li Yangmin FER 90 55 145
Finance controller 3% B B
Luo Weide BiREE 111 75 186
Total =11 923 1,321 2,244
* Certain Directors of the (ompany received ARl HERLLAR

emoluments from CEA Holding, the parent
company, part of which is in respect of their
services to the Company and its subsidiaries.
No apportionment has been made as it is
impracticable to apportion this amount
between their services to the Group and their
services to CEA Holding.

HUY B2 BRI - Wik
BLA]F BRI R
BiE e IR FEFRRE
PRIk e P TN
BB EE - Eit
BHREEUR AR -
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(B iR AR E)
For the yeor ended 31 December 2006
HE—TEFSF_A=+—BN¥FE

8. WAGES, SALARIES AND BENEFITS (Cont'd)

(3) Emoluments of Directors, supervisors and
senior management {Cont’d)

During the year ended 31 December 2006, no
Directors and supervisors waived their
emecluments (2005: Nil).

(b} Five highest paid individuals

One (2005: None) of the vice executive
Directors, whose emoluments are reflected in
the above analysis were among the five highest
paid individuals in the Group for the year, The
emoluments payable to the remaining four

8. T¥ ¥R\ EH)

(a)

HHE - EERERITRAR
A& (F)
RBE-ZEZREF+A=T
—HILFE - WEREA—{GE
EREBRRANE (CFF
AF:#|) e

EUBEHFASHNME

AREMUESHFART &
F—RARAITERE(CET
nEF 8 HMEGER|REHE
AEESEMES - 046
(Z22HF  Af)HEFA

(2005: five) highest paid individuals are as THBNEEENT
follows:
Group
-4
2006 2005
ZBRAFE _—ZZRE
RMB'000 RMBQ00
AR®TRE AER®TR
Wages, salaries, bonus IE - %% 4
and allowances LEE L 1,736 1,679
The emoluments fell within the following band: BT

Number of individuals

A
2006 2005
Emolument band [ R gl . 3 58S —Z2REF
Below HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 LA T 4 5

During the year ended 31 December 2006, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the
Directors, supervisors or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group, or as a compensatian for
loss of office {2005: Nil}).

RBE_ZERFT A=
—BILEE - FEIMEEUE
B BRABMMBHETE
T OEFERAURSFART
& (ZEFER &) -

1585

hENFHRERBABLE —28-55H
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(R R e iR RIR )
for the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—EFAFIZRA=—HUEF

9. OPERATING LOSS/PROFIT

Operating loss/profit is stated after charging and

crediting the following items:

REER RN
@RI, RN R R T
BRI :

Group
-4
2006 2005
—R8XE _—_TTAE
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TR
Charging: Eit]
Depreciation of property, ME - SR
plant and equipment A i | 4,493,572 3,898,142
Operating lease rentals REMESE:
- aircraft — TR 2,954,751 1,785,615
- land and buildings -t RiEF 276,715 212,027
Amortisation of EREEHE
intangible assets 72,737 13,580
Amortisation of lease At EER
prepayments i 30,869 25,219
Consumption of flight TR 32 15
equipment spare parts ZHHERE 326,248 239,134
Allowances for obsolescence of REDBTH
flight equipment spare parts PRE AR 31,734 -
Deficits on revaluation of ME - BER
property, plant and BT
equipment WEEB K 1,035,343 -
Provision for impairment of fEU B H fib Ut
trade and other receivables TRERERE 97,805 25,325
Auditors’ remuneration 1% BT B £ 20,120 10,000
Crediting: BEA
Reversal of allowances for S IR TR M RS
obsolescence of flight THHE
equipment spare parts £ - 13,930
Gain on disposals of property, BEYME - B8
plant and equipment K 58 18 F 36,207 8,073
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For the year ended 31 December 2004
BE_FENFT_[=+-AULFE

10.

FINANCE COSTS 10. M2 X H
Group
=41 1
2006 2005
—RR9RE —EETRE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AE%RTR ARBTT
Interest relating to obligations Bt EHEAHE
under finance leases FE
- wholly repayable - ERAFEREEMAE
within five years 244,962 195,764
- not wholly repayable -BERRFASENE
within five years 298,991 128,869
543,953 324,633
Interest on loans from WOTRHEM SR
banks and financial BEERM L
institutions
- wholly repayable - ARTFASHME
within five years 1,387,469 746,788
- not wholly repayable - HARAEFANZHEME
within five years 193,067 243,433
1,580,536 990,221
Interest relating to A EENE
notes payable 91,280 52,639
Amortisation of the discount ZREFEH
on zero coupon debentures i s 25,456 22,944
Interest relating to & H FE 1+ 3R &
long-term payables 4,961 6,999
2,246,186 1,397,436
Less: Amounts capitalised into & - B A{L 3R
advance payments on R0
acquisition of aircraft T (FFE)
(Note 17) (424,316) (279,989)
1,821,870 1,117,447
Net foreign exchange B 4R A
gains (Note) (i) (888,402) (414,640)
Fair value (gains)/losses TEsMITE
on financial instruments (Mz) /%
- transfer from equity in —Fl&kigHl - &
respect of interest rate MEH - #EREA
swaps qualified as cash
flow hedges (55,889) 4,243
877,579 707,050
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(RER RS LIRR)

For the year ended 31 December 2006

HE—RFEANF _A=+—HUEE

10.

11.

FINANCE COSTS (Cont'd)
Note:

The exchange gain for the year ended 31 December 2006
primarily relates to the revaluation of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated borrowings and obligations under
finance leases.

INCOME TAX

Income tax (credited)/charged to the consolidated
income statement is as follows:

FIITRAl Wit o it % P T F R s

10. M2 3 H (8

11.

fe¥

PREE BT E+=-A=+—BLEF
EMERKSEEAREMNEERRR
ERERERME LTS -

HIR

BERESEER GTA) /HIRE TR
mE

Group
Hm
2006 2005
ZReRE —ETHF
RMB'Q00 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR%TR
Provision for PRC income tax FE TG AR 48,072 (81,734)
Deferred taxation {Note 31) EEHTE (EE3) (211,004) (56,970)
(162,932) (138,704)

The Company is subject to PRC income tax at a reduced
rate of 15%, pursuant to the Circular Hu Shui Er Cai
(2001) No. 104 issued by the Shanghai Municipal Tax
Bureau. Developments relating to the reform of the
Corporate Income Tax Law are described in Note 44 to
the financial statements.

Two of the major subsidiaries of the Group, namely
China Cargo Airlines Co. Ltd. and Shanghai Eastern
Flight Training Co., Ltd, are subject to PRC income
tax at a reduced rate of 15%, pursuant to the
preferential tax policy in Pudong, Shanghai. Shanghai
Eastern Logistics Co., Ltd. (“Eastern Logistics”),
another subsidiary of the Group, was exempted from
PRC income tax in 2005 pursuant to the circular Hu
Di Shui Er Shui (2004) No.68 issued by the Shanghai
Municipal Tax Bureau. Eastern Logistics is subject to
PRC income tax at a reduced rate of 15% in 2006.
Other subsidiaries of the Group are generally subject
to the PRC corporate income tax at the standard rate
of 33%.

15§

R Egmi S R BEmEER
ZEf(2001) 104530 E - NAAIH
TR ERMRE15% - BRFD
RFEREN S EF R TE -

ApalmfEEZHBARPREEE
MZEERAA R EBRARITHE
BRATE - HFSHRRERE -8
ARG ERRRERAEL% R
BEBMEARHEEBERR R
(2004) 685RAE - DHRFEMY
mARLE (AR R T
HFMFBH T AR - RZFE
NECEMMREONERBES
15% - AEEMEMFARES
MR AP EZEMREHE3% -
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for the year ended 31 December 2006
HEZFFNF+-RA=+—HUEFE

11.

INCOME TAX (Cont'd)

On 16 March 2007, the National People’s Congress
approved the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China which may impact on the future
income tax rates of the Group. Details refer to Post

Balance Sheet Event {Note 44(b)).

Tax on the Group’s consolidated income statement
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise

11. Bi1| ()

ZERLFZRTARA - 2BAR
RERAGRBT (P EARKNE
EMBHRE LASRERE
MeRRFERR  FREFDR

BIE (FE1244(b)) ©

ARWABRARSERRAPIR - @K
LRRBERERNREMEES

using the taxation rate of the home country of the ZIEmAEBNERNT
Company as follows:
Group
-y
2006 2005
—ge2xF —EFTRE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMT R AR¥TT
| Loss before income tax B 15 A e 1R (3.615,697) (577,432)
Adjusted by: HE -
Share of result of associates and i {h B5 & 22 5] e £ &
jointly controlled entities EHEE RS (133,161) 13,330
(3,748,858) (564,102)
Tax calculated at enacted #15%5H 5t B &Y
tax rate of 15% FBHEH 562,329 84,615
Effect attributable to B BB 2 F117.5%3% 33%
subsidiaries charged FiT 15 A 35 &
at tax rate of 17.5% or 33% HER 27,969 18,334
Effect attributable to subsidiaries Fi B &% 28
with income tax exemptions Frig Bl A - 33,852
Income not subject to taxation AR A A - 4,462
Expenses not deductible AN ER
for tax purposes (13,852) (5,642)
Gain arising from intra-group EERRMERE
property, plant and & E & ERME
equipment disposal B A
subject to taxation (46,578) -
; Reversal of income tax provision HEWMBREREEFEHE
! made in prior years as a e LR E
I result of tax clearance with ZREMAK T HER
f local tax bureau B EE - 81,807
- Utilisation of previously FRAULIEE#ZN
| recognised tax losses HBER (23,130) -
' Unrecognised tax losses RFHEANEEEIE (327,739) (86,074)
Other temporary differences Hit R MARERUEER
not recognised (16,067) -
‘ Others H - 7,350
; Tax credit HWIREHR 162,932 138,704
199
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE_$EAF+-_HB=+—HItFE

11. INCOME TAX (Cont'd)

The Group operates international flights to overseas
destinations. There was no material overseas taxation
for the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005, as
there are double tax treaties between the PRC and
the corresponding jurisdictions (including Hong Kong)
relating to aviation businesses,

12. DIVIDEND

No interim dividend was paid during both the current
and prior years.

The Board of Directors of the Company has not
recommended any dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2006. No final dividend was paid
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2005.

13. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based an
the loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
of RMB3,313,425,000 {(2005: RMB467,307,000) and the
weighted average number of shares of 4,866,950,000
(2005: 4,866,950,000) in issue during the year.

The Company has no potentially dilutive ordinary
shares.

160

11. B8 ()

FEMFEREMER - RER LY
ShE EM - AT BERARRR S BA
HEE (BEER) EMN T HEEER-
Bt  AEEREE_ETR
FRIBRAFT-_H=1+-HL
FREBE RGN -

BB

ERAEAFERER EFEALRE
IEEER RS -

FLAFHEGEOREEE —TEAS
F+ZA=+—BULEFEMNREEET
falfR 2. °

BREBR

SREABBRIIEANGERES
ARG EBBARE
3,313,425,0007L (“BERHE - AR
#467,307,0007C) MERB EITH
DO A% B4,866,950,0000% (—F
LRHE : 4,866,950,00000) 518 -

ARELEBTHEN LB -
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BE—FE FIZA=+—HULEE

tiIlilAlILidl JLidbLwilliviilind

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14 B EE
Group
%8
Sponsorship
Goodwill fees Computer
(Note (a)) (Note (b)) software
[R5 BHR B Total
(ERB{a) {(FERB(b) B R
RMB'000 RMB'0OQO RMB'O00 RMB'000
ABETT ARETI ARBTHL ARBTET
Cost B
At 1 January 2005 R-_E2aF—F—8 79,176 - 46,396 125,572
Additions through E U
business acquisitions &5 609,135 - - 609,135
Other additions HitFRE - - 38,568 38,568
At 31 Decembey 2005 N_FERRE
+-HA=+—H~ 688,311 - 84,964 773,275
At 1 January 2006 HZ_EZXF—HF—B 688,311 - B4,964 773,275
Additions through BHRYRERE AT
the acquisition of B 5l 4 2R
of a controlling B S| 2912
interest in an (19540
associate
{Notes 19 & 40) 304,832 - 28 304,860
Other additions EfRE - 320,000 33,617 353,617
Disposals HE - - (36) (36)
At 31 December 2006 RIZ2TRF
+=-B=+—8 993,143 320,000 118,573 1,431,716
Accumulated amortisation R H#H
At 1 January 2005 R_EERE—-—H—E - - 7,852 7,852
Charge for the year FEHE - - 13,580 13,580
At 31 December 2005 R-_FELRF
+ZH=+—8 - - 21,432 21,432
At 1 January 2006 BRZBZRF—-H—-H - - 21,432 21,432
Charge for the year RFHH - 52,870 19,867 72,737
Disposals & - - N (N
At 31 December 2006 RZBEAF
+-A=+—8 - 52,870 41,292 94,162
Net book amount REFE
At 31 December 2005 RZBZRF
+=R=+—E 688,311 - 63,532 751,843
At 31 December 2006 RIBERE
+=-A=+—8H 993,143 267,130 77,281 1,337,554
161
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont'd) 14. B EE (8
Company
A
Sponsorship
Goodwill fees Computer
(Note (a)) (Note (b)) software
wHe BEH B i Total
(FB(E) (BB bY BH &5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR%TR ARBTRT ARETx
Cost B &
At 1 January 2005 KR-2ZTRF—-F—A8 79,176 - 45,240 124,416
Additions through EBuE
business acquisitions B 609,135 - - 609,135
Other additions HitRE - - 38,568 38,568
At 31 December 2005 R-EERE
+=E=+—H 688,311 - 83,808 772,119
At 1 January 2006 RZZEZRF—H—H 688,311 - 83,808 772,119
Additions B - 320,000 33,617 353,617
Disposals HE - - (36) (36)
At 31 December 2006 R-BZRE
+-—A=+—A1 688,311 320,000 117,389 1,125,700
Accumulated amortisation REF B
At 1 January 2005 R-FFRE—-/F-—H - - 7,171 7,171
Charge for the year FEHE - - 13,357 13,357
At 31 December 2005 MZZ2ZLE
+-A=+—E - - 20,528 20,528
At 1 January 2006 B2 F-HA—8 - - 20,528 20,528
Charge for the year FEME - 52,870 19,630 72,500
Disposals 4 - - (7} £
At 31 December 2006 BR-ZFTA T
+-ZA=+—8 - 52,870 40,151 93,021
Net book amount RERE
At 31 December 2005 RZZTHHE
+-RA=+—H 688,311 - 63,280 751,591
At 31 December 2006 R-ZZEREF
+—HA=+—HR 688,311 267,130 77,238 1,032,679
182
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14, INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont'd)

Notes:

{a) Impairment tests for goodwill
The Group operates in two cash-generating units
("CGU"} which are passenger (including cargo carried
by passenger flights) and cargo and logistics.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use
cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period.
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated
below. The growth rate does not exceed the long-
term average growth rate for the aviation businesses
in which the CGU operates.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations

- Gross margin 14%-17%
- Growth rate 10%-16%
- Discount rate 10%

Management determined budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and its expectations for market
development. The weighted average growth rate used
is consistent with the forecasts included in industry
reports. The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the Company’s business.

(b) Sponsorship fees

In March 2006, the Company entered inte an
agreement (the “Sponsorship Agreement”) with the
Bureau of 2010 Expo Shanghai (the “Bureau”) which
designated the Group as the exclusive airline
passenger carrier in the PRC to sponsor the 2010
Shanghai Expo. The Company will be entitled to a
number of rights, including but not limited to the
use of the Expo logo in the Group’s products, priority
to purchase advertising space at the Expo site etc.
In return, the Company is required to pay a total
sponsorship fee of RMB320 millien, RMB160 million
of which would be paid in cash by installments, the
remaining RMB160 million would be settled by value-
in-kind services (“VIK”) (in the form of goods or
services) to suppert the 2010 Shanghai Expo.
Accordingly, an intangible asset has been recognised
and amortised on straight-line basis over the
beneficial period from the effective date of the
Sponsorship Agreement to the completion of the
Expo. The outstanding sponsorship fee of RMB279
million has also been recognised as other long-term
liabilities (Note 30) in the Group’s balance sheet.

14. BEEE (8)
EHE

(a)

(b)

AR R B B

AR EREREELELS
MATE (BHEERER UER
ERWR -

RGEL B M AR B AR
EREEFH - AHAARBR
AR ERETRE  REEEE
EORFRMEAN - BiBZ0
£ HEY IR &R R A LA T Pl a9
HEr B ERELHEIN - ZBRE
TEEReEEBURENTH
PEEBORBTHIRRE -

CREENENTIERRNT

—EHMR 14%-17%
—gEER 10%-16%
—HRE 10%
FHEEREATRREEHNS

BFRAOABAMERGTENE - ff
RAMMEFORERRITRSR
EMENTANE - - ERA
o R B 2R 25 B AT L 3R 3 IR BR AR
RN ERE

BB

ROBRNFEZA - AQFIEL
EM_R-TEHESERBA
BEIBVHEBIBEEA_F
—2F it e —FERAT
EESERMY - ROFVNEERN
IR (BTRA) FAtEE
MESERrEINERE -85
BEtEegHESTUMNEBR
WS Ao BEBERMARY20
AETHEHE Ll _2—
TEHHNE HRAR¥16088
TASHZNNES  BTHA
R¥1605 ExRNIRSSEDY
H(EESEWXBE) - £EM
ZEAARPHLENBECHESR
ARGEE LhENREETEY
RSB AEH TN TR
MR E S TOARSE LBy
FNeHAARNEET  H
FAEME D EE stk
A GGEE30) -
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
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For the yeor ended 31 December 2006

BE—FFANEF A=+ —AUEE

15,
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L L

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. ¥ % - BBR[HE

Group
N
Aircraft, engines and
flight equipment
RE - -RBARRARE
Held Other
under property,
finance plant and
leases equipment Construction
Owned MR  Buildings HAHHE:  in progress Total
HE HEEH #F HBRIM ERIE &it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRL ARMTR ARBTRE ARBTR ARBTR ARYTR
Valuation or cost FEE/BEE
At 1 January 2005 R_ZEB1%E
—-A-H 26,142,685 13,452,651 2,254,015 2,274,961 188,654 44,312,966
Transfers from construction  {EERTIREAA
in progress - - 33,582 116,985 {150,567) -
Transfers from advance ERBEMAR
payments on acquisition of @A (117)
gircraft (Note 17) 445,949 1,191,187 - - - 1,637,116
Additions through business ¥ FERH
acquisitions 4 4,181,327 2,155,855 12,222 293,429 13,577 7,316,410
Other additions EWFE 1,952,356 991,640 71,451 426,455 189,220 3,629,122
Disposals hE (67,354) - (6,281)  (125,299) - (198,934)
At 31 December 2005 R-2%10%
TZR=+-A 33,2593 17,791,313 2,424,989 2,984,531 240,884 56,696,880
Accumulated depreciation 2ir&
At 1 January 2005 R-FELRF
—R-8 9,638,471 3,264,609 302,209 1,123,681 - 14,418,970
Charge for the year RERHE 2,307,706 1,161,395 87,284 341,757 - 3,898,142
Disposals HE (66,030) - (159)  (79,111) - {145,300)
At 31 December 2005 R-2ELRf
+ZB=+-F 11,880,147 4,426,004 419334 1,386,327 - 18,171,812
Net book amount EOFHE
At 31 Decembder 2005 A-ZERE
+ZB=+-H 21,174,816 13,365,300 1,945,655 1,598,204 240,884 38,524,868
At 1 January 2005 RZZERE
-F-B 16,504,214 10,188,042 1,861,806 1,151,280 188,654 29,893,996
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(Prepared in accordance with International Fingncial Reporting Standards)
(IEEBS B & E AR

for the year ended 31 December 2006
HE_ZFAFF-_A=+—FitFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd) 15. Y035 - M R (#)

Group
-1
Aircraft, engines and
flight equipment
RE- -SHEDNRARE
Held Other
under property,
finance plant and
Leases equipment Construction
Owned PARE Buildin%:s E?ﬁﬁ in 1‘gmgress Total
HE H8kA BF HERIH EIR &it

AMB000  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB000
ARBTn AR®Tn AR®Tn AR¥TI ARMTR AR®TR

Valuation or cost FiEE/KAE
At 1 January 2006 R-EERE
—-F—H 33,254,963 17,791,013 2,424,98¢ 2,984,531 240,884 56,696,680
Reclassification upon AERENE
a purchase 2,011,940 (2,011,940) - - - -
Transfers from constrection  REBRIEAA
in progress - - 52,832 242,669 {295,501) -
Transfers fram advance HRERE
payments on acquisition EECEN
of aircraft (Note 17) (#E17) 3,797,430 2,591,545 - - - 6,388,975
Additions through the BERIRE
acquisitions of BRATEH
contralling interests RAHIE
in associates i
(Note 40) (4w 78,291 305,663 303,084 33,292 2,447 122,157
Other additians A RE 5,612,187 2,724,601 - 384,743 207,679 9,019,510
Valuation deficit FiERERE (939,655}  {95,688) - - - (1,035,343)
Transfer to noa-cerrent AGEE
assets held for sale ”u@]éé
(Note (b) & 37) &&31) (2,108,763}  {202,898) - - - (2,311,661)
Disposals by saie and g {fi@
leaseback (Note (c)) BEGIEQ) (7040164 - - - - (7,940,164)
Other dispasals RfpE (314,615) - (61,639)  (131,322) - {487.576)
At 31 December 2006 RZEEAF
+ZHZ4+—-8 33451614 2,102,596 2,739,246 3513913 245,809 61,053,178
Accumulated depreciation A
At 1 January 2006 gt e
-B-E 11,880,147 4,426,004 479336 1,386,327 - 18,171,812
Reclassification upon RERESE
a purchase 940,464 {940,464) - - - -
Charge for the year RERNE 2,600,331 1,418,781 106,441 368,019 - 4,493,572
Transfer to non-current BBESF
assets hetd for sale RYEE
(Note b & 37) (FEOEN  (1346,228)  {121,049) - - - (1,467,217)
Disposals ek 3 (97,146} - (3,703) (94,546) - (195,395)
At 31 December 2006 R-RERE
+ZRZ4+-8 13,077,568 4,783,272 582,072 1,659,800 - 24,002,712
Net book amount EEFE
At 31 December 2006 R_BERE
FTZH=T—8 19474046 16,319,324 2,157,174 1,854,113 245,809 40,050,466
At 1 January 2006 BZBERE
-A-8 21,374,816 13,365,309 1,045,655 1,598,204 240,884 18,524,868
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(EEE SR ERRA)
For the year ended 31 December 2006

BE-_FFAFF-AZ+HLEFE

15,

il wvivi wih At Ll T s

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

15. ¥ - BEERRE @)

Company
oL
Aircraft, engines and
flight equipment
AY - RBBARRAZS
Held Other
under property,
finance plant and
leases equipment Construction
Owned DA Buildings HMWE . in progress Total
HE HfRA BT HABRRE ERIR &it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARERTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARETH
Valuation or cost FRE/MAE
At 1 January 2005 R-ZERE
—-F-H 20,008,300 13,452,651 1,370,995 1,491,533 71,534 36,461,013
Transfer to a subsidiary BAKEZR {779,895) - - - - (779,895)
Transfers from construction ~ HEEETEEA
in progress - - 18,847 16,582 (35,429) -
Transfers from advance tRER
payments on acquisition NEAC PN
of aircraft (Note 17) (E&1) 445,949 682,020 - - - 1,127,969
Additions through business £ RWER
acquisitions Bin 4,781,327 2,155,855 72,222 293,429 13,577 7,316,410
Other additions ERRE 1,138,394 375,995 14,195 341,339 13,120 1,903,043
Disposals hE (67,354) - {2.836)  (106,801) - (176,991}
At 31 December 2005 R_EZRF
+-A=+—8 25586721 16,666,521 1,473,423 2,036,082 88,802 45,851,549
Accumulated depreciation 2HIE
At 1 January 2005 RZE2RE
-R—-H 6,847,515 3,264,609 264,374 §29,672 - 11,206,170
Transfer to a subsidiary HAMBAR (599,975) - - - - (599,975)
Charge for the year BERHE 1,780,387 1,119,334 53,914 265,721 - 3,219,356
Disposals ik (66,030) - (104)  (69,993) - (136127)
At 31 December 2005 RZFFLE
+ZR=+—-B 7,961,807 4,383,943 318,184 1,025,400 - 13,689,424
Net book amount EEFiE
At 31 December 2005 R_BERF
+-A=+—-HB 17,624,824 12,282,578 1,155,239 1,010,682 88,802 32,162,125
At 1 January 2005 R_ZEI%¥
—-A-d 13,220,785 10,188,042 1,106,621 661,861 71,534 25,254,843
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{Prepared in accardance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(RER M E LR

for the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENF+F_H=+—BUFFE

15.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

15. Y93 - YRR A (B

Company
27
Aireraft, engines and
flight equipment
M- JBEARREBRE
Held Other
under property,
finance plant and
leases equipment Construction
Owned DRE  Buildings HREWE- in progress Total
HE HRES BF HMBRRE ERIE &
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AR¥TR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTx
Valuation or cost HRE/HEE
At 1 January 2006 BRZRERF
-R-18 25,586,721 16,666,521 1,473,423 2,036,082 88,802 45,851,549
Reclassification upon ABRENH
a purchase 2,011,940 (2,011,940} - - - -
Transfer to a subsidiary #gAHELE (482,982) - - - - {482,982)
Transfers from construction  {EERTIEEA
in progress - - 25,507 12,210 (3r.mn -
Transfers from advanced feRER
payments on acquisition of  fIFREA
aircraft (Note 17) H2:3D) 3,744,513 1,843,597 - - - 5,588,000
Other additions EfpRE 4,812,085 2,345,391 40,491 211,479 100,145 7,560,561
Valuation deficit SFiERERR (939,655)  (95,688) - - - (1,035,343
Transfer to non-current assets ¥ A& & JF i &)
held for sale (Note 37) AE(ER) (2108763)  (202,898) - - - {2,311,661)
Disposals by sale and EEERZRZ
leaseback (Note (c)) REGIRE)  (7.940,164) - - - - {7.940,164)
Other disposals HipH e (313.016) - (36,277)  (107,363) - (456,656)
At 31 December 2006 RZIFEARE
TZAZTH—B 24,370,640 18,544,963 1,503,144 2,212,408 151,230 46,782,394
Accumulated depreciation 2itHh &
At 1 January 2006 RZFErE
-R-H 7,961,897 4,383,943 318,184 1,025,400 - 13,689,424
Reclassification upon RERESR
a purchase 940,464 (940,464) - - - -
Transfer to a subsidiary HARBLR (458,832) - - - - (458,832)
Charge for the year REREHE 1,939,393 1,317,355 54,726 274,242 - 3,585,716
Transfer to non-current assets BAFEERH
held for sale (Note 37) BEGEE)  (1,346.228)  (121,049) - - - {1,467,217)
Disposals HE (97,146} - (2,997)  (73,362) - {173,505)
At 31 December 2006 R_BERE
+ZB=+-B  50939,548 4,639,785 369,913 1,226,280 - 15,175,526
Net book amount REFE
At 31 December 2006 RZZEAE
TZAZ+-8 15431101 13,905,178 1,133,231 986,128 151,230 31,606,868
At 1 January 2006 RZTERE
—f-H 17,624,824 12,282,578 1,155,239 1,010,582 8,802

12,162,125
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(R R R 2
For the year ended 31 December 2006
HE_FEAES _A=+—"HULFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

168

0On 31 December 2006, the Group’s aircraft, engines
and flight equipment were revalued by the Directors
of the Company on a market value basis or
replacement cost basis based on the valuations
conducted by independent valuers.

The result of the revaluation revealed a deficit of
RMB1,035 million for certain aircraft and related
equipment which has been charged to the income
statement. Except for the aircraft and related
equipment referred to above, the revalued amounts
of all other assets under revaluation are not
materially different from their carrying amounts.
Accordingly, the carrying values of these assets have
not been adjusted in the consolidated financial
statements as at 31 December 2006.

Had the property, plant and equipment of the Group
and the Company been stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, the

15. Y03 - MR RiE (&)
i

(a)

RZFRANF+-_A=+—8"
ARRIMERATERGAER
AAEN S RBUFEMRNRE
HEGHATE - SBBRERE
ARBIFHES -

FERETREREMSEHE
SR EREIERHARE1,035
BETERERARDPIE - BRH
Lt ey TR R AR RRAE I - H b
BEEMEBEHERREEESAEK
=R Al RIBTRE+
FE=+—-RZEoMBEERE
ZREMEREEAEL ISR -

REAEAPRARRINDE - #
SR B AR SR RETTE R
MEBRINE  ME - BBRR

carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment HEREBNTY
would have been as follows:
Group Company
me 2 H
2006 2005 2006 2005
ZBRAE —#%RTF Z2QF<E —TRIF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTR ARE®TR ARMFTR AR%RTT
At 31 December w+=—A=+—8 40,475,461 37,943,085 32,108,040 31,796,398

In December 2006, the Board of Directors passed a
resolution to dispose the aircraft and the related
equipment with the valuation deficit as described in
the note 15(3) above and have been actively seeking
buyers subsequent to the pass of the resolution.
The assets have been reclassified as “Non-current
assets held for sales” at 31 December 2006 (Note
37).

(b)

R-FBREFZA -BEEH
BEMMEL EARTFRFER
{6 18 2% 1) TR b L FEL B AR O
e ALPEBBRRECTHE
SRUENER - RBERE
tZR=+-H - tEEERN
ANEHERBEE IR -
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(1L BRI B iR & EBR %)

For the year ended 31 December 2006
HE—FFAFEST A=+ —HIFER

15,

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT {Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont’d)

(c)

(d)

During the year, the Group entered into sale and
leaseback transactions for certain newly acquired
aircraft, There leaseback transactions are classified
as operating leases and the related gains arising
from these sates and leaseback transactions have
been recognised in the income statement.

As at 31 December 2006, aircraft owned by the Group
and the Company with an aggregate net book amount
of approximately RMB9,044 million and RMBS,310
million respectively {2005: RMB9,074 million) were
pledged as collateral under certain loan arrangements
(Note 28).

15. 9% - WERREE (B
SR ()

(c) mEHNEEFEMUETHIEDN
BT EECAiBE - AHE
EEBEEREEMES - ZEH
MR EAF IR R DT

(dy R-BE2XF+A=+—8"
REEEALDFREFEELOASA
R¥9,044 5 BT R ARKE 3100
Br(ZFTRE AR%IL048
Br)ARBCRAESETEREE
RIS (HFes) -

LEASE PREPAYMENTS

16. BAHER

Group Company
LY A
2006 2005 2006 2005
Z8RAE —22RE ZREXE —TELF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTR AR¥®TT AR®TR AR%¥Tn
Cost R &
At 1 January —A—B&# 1,134,644 985,462 582,621 486,168
Additions through business 3 J& Ui B 38 i
acquisitions (Note 40) (FF K 40) 75,302 74,339 - 74,339
Other additions E fth 38 A0 37,158 94,843 33,932 22,114
At 31 December +ZA=+—HEH 1,247,104 1,134,644 616,553 582,621
Accumulated amortisation ZRMBHE
At 1 January —R—9&& 161,873 136,654 101,021 89,687
Charge for the year RERE 30,869 25,219 17,864 11,334
At 31 December +ZRA=+—-H&E#&% 192,742 161,873 118,885 101,021
Net book amount BB E
At 31 December +-A=-+—H&% 1,054,362 972,711 497,668 481,600
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(Prepored in accordance with Internotional Financial Reporting Standards)
(R SRS LRIRR)

for the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FEAFS-_A=+—HUTH

16. LEASE PREPAYMENTS (Cont'd) 16. A{SHER (8

Lease prepayments represent unamortised prepayments
for land use rights.

The Group’s land use rights are located in the PRC
and the majority of these tand use rights have terms
of 50 years from the date of grant. As at 31 December
2006, the majority of these land use rights had
remaining terms ranging from 40 to 55 years (2005:
from 41 to 49 years).

BNAEREABHOTER LI
FREEETUR -

FEEHBN LI ERESLRS
+ T AER(D 3 PR R AT 4
RREREHRHA+TF - R2F
ERE+ZF=+—8  AHHOH
T fE RN AR F I AM T
EA+RE(CETRF A+
ZEP+REF) »

17. ADVANCED PAYMENTS ON ACQUISITION OF 17. AT

AIRCRAFT
Group Company
- NG|
2006 2005 2006 2005
Z89XE —TEILF ZR8ARE -TTRF
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARMTR ARBTRT ARMTR ARBTR
At 1 January —A—B&# 9,072,673 2,678,603 8,157,515 2,678,603
Additions 20 4,560,694 7,751,197 4,059,327 6,341,709
Interest capitalised BXRERE
(Note 10) (810 424,316 279,989 378,101 265,172
Transfers to property, HEWME -
plant and equipment B R
(Note 15) (i #15) (6,388,975) (1,637,116) (5,588,090) (1,127,969)
At 31 December +ZA=+—B&#% 7,668,708 9,072,673 7,006,853 8,157,515

Included in the Group’s and the Company's balance as
at 31 December 2006 is accumulated interest
capitalised of RMB516 million (2005: RMB410 million),
at an average interest rate of 5.7% (2005: 4.0%).

170

R-BERFE+-_A=+—8 =&
EEEALBEHIHERERL
FBAHHAARKS165 58T (=
ZTHhE : AR¥410887T) ' F
BHEREFERs 7% (—RFH
5 4.0%) °
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
EZERAFFA=+—RULFE

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

18. RENKBE AT

Company
2 H

2006 2005
—eRRE _—ZTEIF
RMB'000 RMB'000
IREFRT AR%TR
Unlisted shares, at cost FEFTERE K EE 2,831,235 2,163,864
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEUHI B 4 W FRIA 1,051,435 348,626
3,882,670 2,512,490

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and are not repayable before 1 January
2008,

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, all of which
are limited liability companies established and
operating in the PRC or Hong Kong, are as follows:

Place and date Paid-up
Company of establishment capital
NEEH Bt R A M EYEF
2006 2005

Z29AE _TTLF
RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR

B RZCRAARER - &
BRTEREZNFE—A—BH

fBi& o

ARENEEMRBAAASETE
KEERIREENERALEL
A - EARERNT

Attributable
equity interest
BERTRE
2006 2005

Z8%AE -EETRE

Principal activities

IERB

China Eastern Airlines PRC 830,000 880,000
Jiangsu Ce., Ltd. 3 May 1993
PRERFATIE hE
ARAE —ANhZH
TAZzH
China Eastera Airlines PRC 600,000 600,000
Wuhan {o., Ltd. 16 August 2002
("CEA Wuhan") H
DEEAMERE ZERCF
AREERT NR+HAE
(CRAEE])
China Cargo Airlines PRC 500,000 500,000
Co., Ltd, 22 July 1998
CHEENTERAR HE
—hANE
tR=+=H

63% 63%
96% 40%
70% 70%

Provision of airline services

RERTHRH

Provision of zirline services

1R A2 IR A

Provision of cargo
garriage services

RHREDERRE
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financigl Reporting Standards)

(A B iR & R BY)
for the year ended 31 December 2006
BE_FE,NET-A=+—BuEE

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

18. REARKE 2 7 (H)

Place and date Paid-up Attributable
Company of establishment capital equity interest Principal activities
RIER HRYBBRIM 4§ BUEREEE TEEH
2006 2005 20086 2005
ZREAE ZFERF CRRAF —FERE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRTR AR%TR
Shanghai Easiern Flight PRC 473,000 473,000 95% 5%  Provision of flight
Training Co., Lid. 18 December 1995 training services
EERARGTEY hE RERTIRRE
AR AR “MNALF
TZATNE
Shanghai tastern Airlines  PRC 412,500 412,500 99% 99%  Investment holding
Tnvestment Co., Ltd. 8 May 2002 REER
LEEMREERRE PE
—RFCF
LANR
Shanghai Eastern Airtines  PRC 200,000 200,000 70% T0%  Provision of cargo
Logistics Co., Ltd. 23 Avgust 2004 logistics services
LERFERR DR el RUTEDRRE
ARAA —EERF
NE-T=H
Eastern Airlines PRC 10,000 70,000 86% 85%  Provision of hotel
Hotel Co., Ltd. 18 March 1998 services primarily
ERMABEERLR F to crew members
—ARNE TERABRTARRH
ZATNH B IE IR
Shanghai Eastem PRC 25,658 25,658 60% 60%  Provision of aircraft
Maintenance Co., Ltd. 27 November 2002 repair and maintenance
LERFRBEE el services
BER A i 3 a2 BURBEER
+—A=+th RERK
China Eastern Airlines PRC 10,047 10,162 80% 40%  Provision of ticket
Development (HX) Co., Ltd. 20 May 1995 sales and logistics
PHEFNEER P BUHERREB&
(B#ARRA —AAEEF 8 W e 1%
AR=TH
China Eastern Airlines PRC 10,000 10,000 55% 55%  Provision of airline
(Shanteu) Econamics 18 March 1998 equipment sales
Development Co., Ltd. o & SEHENZH®
RARECIE) SR “NANE
ZA+AR

4 EHELH
17
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For the yeor ended 31 December 2006

BE—SFA EF-_A=+—HBUHFE

19, INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 10. IR EREE D T
Group Company
fm A8
2006 2005 2006 2005

—“ReRF _FTRF ZLAF _TTLF
RMB'000 RMB'O00  RMB'00D RMB'000
ARRTRE ARBTR ARMTR ARETR

Unlisted investments, FETREN
at cost 3 S| 544,266 763,240 377,872 620,659
Goodwilt [ - 47,060 - -
Share of post acquisition M {sUiEE1E
results/reserves BB/ 79,124 (180,554) - -
623,390 629,746 377,872 620,659
The movement on investments in associates is as IRERBELRINEETT ¢
follows:
Group Company
4T |
2006 2005 2006 2005
88 ¥ —YBITIFE ZB8SE —TEIE
RMB'000 RMB'O0OO RMB'000 RMB'000
IEMTRT ARETT ARMTR ARETRE
At 1 January —A—a&# 629,746 633,212 620,659 615,095
Cost of additional BNEEN
investment gy - 5,564 - 5,564
Reduction as a result of BRKEBEE AT
the acquisition of a 15 il 4 25 P 5| A2
controlling interest in B 4 (R 40)
an associate (Note 40} (109,922) - (242,787) -
Share of results BiEEE 103,566 (9,030) - -

At 31 December

+-A=+—B&# 623,390 629,746 377,872 620,659
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{Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(1R BREE A R & 2 RilR )
for the year ended 31 December 2006
HBE_FENFF-_A=-+—HitFE

19.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal associates, all of which
are limited liability companies established and

19. RERBE L7 (8)

AR EERERFABTEK

UMEENERBEEIRAE HARE

operating in the PRC, are as foltows: BT
Place and Attributable
date of Paid-up equity
Company establishment capital interest Principal activities
LERE HugBRAM | 18- Bk xdR TERE
RMB'000 2006 2005
ARBTR -BRAF —PPEH
Qingdao Liuting PRC 450,000 25% 25%  Provision of airport
International Airpert 1 December 2000 operation services
Co., Ltd. HnE RUERSEERSK
BRAZEBREY b33
BRALAF +ZA—H
Eastern Air Group PRC 400,000 25% 25%  Provision of financial
Finance Co., Ltd. 6 December 1995 services to group
(“EAGF") f companies of CEA
THAEEEAR —hAEE Holding
RERT +ZARA APERMEAET
{(TRABB] RARERBRE
China Eastern Air PRC 350,000 45% 45%  Provision of air
Catering Investment 17 November 2003 catering services
Co., Ltd. Gl REMZERRE
RARZERLGRE —ZRT=F
BRDE +—-RA++A
Jiangsu Huayu General ~ PRC 110,000 27% 27%  Provision of aviation
Aviation Co., Ltd. 1 De¢ 2004 support services
AKEFHAMT gl RERTZERK
BB DA 3 i3
+-F-R
Eastern Aviation Import PR 80,000 45% 45%  Provision of aviation
& Export Co., Ltd. 9 June 1993 equipment, spare
(“EAIEC") i parts and tools trading
RAREELQ —hWhZ#F ftERE RORER
ARRF ~ANE MITRETHES
(MEfEmO))
Collins Aviation PRC 57,980 35% 35%  Provision of airline

Maintenance Service
Shanghai Ltd.
LEHRERERE

174 BHERAT

27 September 2002

E

_BP-F
AE=t++H

electronic product

maintenance services
REMBEFESR

BERK
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For the year ended 31 December 2006 ’
HE_FFAFEFT-F=+—RUFE

19.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont'd)

19. RENBE Q7] (§)

Place and Attributable
date of Paid-up equity
Company establishment capital interest Principal activities
AR EH HIGBEAR | 18- BiEREAR TERE
RMB'000 2006 2005
ARETR —R%xE —T%a%¥
Shanghai Dongmei PRC 51,369 27.16% 45%  Provision of traveling
Aviation Travel Co., 17 October 2004 and accommodation
Ltd. (“SDATC") th agency services
CTEREMTERE “RENE RREBEREE
ER 27 +HA+tH FERERE
(TRERTFL
Shanghai Hongpu PRC 25,000 30% 30%  Provision of cable and
Civil Airport 18 October 2002 wireless
Communication & communication
Co., Ltd. “FE-F services
LTEUHERRBYS +ATNH REBERRER
BEARAA BARARS
Eastern Aviation PRC 10,000 45% 45%  Provision of aviation
Advertising Services 4 March 1986 advertising agency
{o., Ltd. P services
PERFMTER —WNKREF HERERM
BRAE =ZHAmA BER
Note: AEEE

The Group’s aggregated share of the revenues, results, assets

AEEBERERRNEA - R - &

and liabilities of its associates are as follows: ERABARERATH

Profit/(loss)

Assets  Liabilities Revenues BE

e =N | L (BH)

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARMTI ARBTRT ARETRE

2006 —RRRE 1,728,738 1,105,449 1,221,191 103,566

2005 “ETEF 1,807,387 1,177,641 887,928 (9,030)
17K
<

CEESRERAEMAE —SSAFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE_FFRNESHZ+—HILFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

20. RERARZFIER

ENTITIES
Group Company
Em N
2006 2005 2006 2005
T89AF _ZEEIF ZS9KE _—_ZBEnFE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTR AR¥BTn AR®TR AE%®TR
Unlisted investments, FLITEREN
at cost R A E 59,552 59,552 59,522 59,552
Share of post-acquisition {5 W B8 1&
results/reserves RE 55,988 40,968 - -
115,540 100,520 59,522 59,552

The movement on investments in jointly centrolled

entities is as follows:

AR AR R IR ST -

Group Company
&M |
2006 2005 2006 2005
“REAF _TThE Z88KEF _TEILHF
RMB'000 RMBO00 RMB'Q00 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTRT AR®Tn ARETR
At 1 January —E—HE% 100,520 52,948 59,552 7,680
Cost of additional BHRE MR
investment - 51,872 - 51,872
Dividend received A F g B a2
during the year (14.575) - - -
Share of results Bk EE 29,595 (4,300) - -
At 31 December TZA=+—-RHEH 115,540 100,520 59,552 59,552

1706
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for the year ended 31 December 2006
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal jointly controlled entities,
all of which are limited liability companies established
and operating in the PRC are as follows:

20. RENAEEHER ()

ALEEEEHRRITHTEHAT
BT REENARATAR] A
BRERIT

Place and Attributable
date of Paid-up equity
Company establishment capital interest Principal activities
LR ER BRutBR AR RERE BERAEE TERK
RMB'000 2006 2005
ARBTE —®%A§ —T¥IF

Shanghai Technologies ~ PRC 113,843 51% 51%  Provision of repair and
Aerospace Co., Ltd. 28 September 2004 maintenance services
(“STA") (Note {a)} F RERBERR

LEHEFRERAE —STNF BEkRH
(THFml) ARZTNAB(EREE)

(FEE(a))

Shanghai Eastern PRC 17,484 40% 40%  Provision of spare parts
Union Aviation 28 December 1995 repair and
Wheels & Brakes f maintenance services
Overhaul Engineering —ANEF REUTHELRE
{o., Ltd +TZAZTAE
("Wheels & Brakes")

IERBRTRENE
AETEFERLA
{(BgiE])

Eastern China Kaiya PRC 10,000 41% 41%  Provision of computer
System Integration 21 May 1999 systems development
{o., Ltd. 1 B REHEEER

LERRERATER —-AANE EERH
ERFERRF EE-+—-8H

Notes: TR

(a) Under a Joint Venture Agreement dated 10 March
2003, the Company has agreed to share control over
the economic activities of STA. Any strategic
financial and operating decisions relating to the
activities of STA require the unanimous consent of
the Company and the other joint venture partner.

(a) BMERLFABHEFRA—&F
WEAR_TP=F=A+0%
ENBAREGE - FARRE
F—&IEFREH AREABET
MG ER ST ik o (E{A B
EFEMEDABNMERERR
RBERACEHEBEFNE—
BEIREARR - BNEE -
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE_FEAFT_A=+—HILEE

20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 20. RERHREEFIER (8)
ENTITIES (Cont'd)

Notes: {Cont'd) abiE ()
{b)  The Group's aggregated share of the revenues, results, (b) AEEBEHRIEHBAMA -
assets and liabilities of its jointly controlled entities RiE - EERAAIATER:

is as follows:

Profit/(loss)
Assets  Liabilities Revenues A
BRE i=F -| N (A5 8)
RMB’O0O RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AE%¥TI AR®TR ARBTT
2006 ZR9RE 314,348 125,479 171,471 29,595
2005 ZBRaF 142,667 42,147 133,570 {4,300)
21. OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS 1. RthRHIEE
Group Company
-4 VNN
2006 2005 2006 2005

88 RE —_ETHE ZB%RAE —_FTETRF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFR ARBTIT AR®FR ARETE

Deposits relating to HfEEEn

aircraft under operating HERHE

leases (Note (a)) NERGIE@Q) 532,878 446,323 449,055 425,850
Held-to-maturity financial HAZEE|EM

assets (Note (b)) SREE GEE®D) 389,871 2,026,220 389,871 2,026,220
Prepaid staff benefits BNBIREWM

(Note {c)) (FE(«) 54,898 62,096 44,524 54,178
Rental and renovation BRERBETS

deposits 31,338 34,7177 31,338 34,777
Prepaid customs duty and  FE {3 A K2

value added tax H2ER - 4,756 - 4,756
Other long-term receivables X fb & HA 7 M 2018 90,280 131,386 79,941 50,740

1,099,265 2,705,558 994,729 2,596,521

1178
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21. OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS (Cont'd) 21. At RHEE ()
Notes: T
(a)  The fair value of deposits relating to aircraft under (a) FEARFLFEARBEEMHE
operating leases of both the Group and the Company ERBNERZAABEINA
are RMB480 million and RMB414 millien (2005: ARE4BOEE AR ARKL148
RMB446 million and RMB426 million), which are B (Z2TRF  AE¥4eE
determined using the expected future payments BRRAR®s6EEIL) WA
discounted at market interest rates prevailing at NHABERREBEASMNRER
the year end of 2.5%-4.0% (2005: 4.4%). EREBFIZHR2.5%E4.0%5T
H(ZBTRF - 4.4%) °
(b)  Held-to-maturity financial assets comprise long-term (b) HEIHANMBEERERY
bank deposits which are pledged as collateral under RTERARERAERA TR
certain finance lease arrangements (Note 27). The Ra(RiFE27) « REBWRTER
deposits have maturities of 1-2 years. The fair value MEESHRA—EME - AEH
of long-term bank deposits of both the Group and BEAa REBETFRZOAHE
the Company are RMB1,249 million {2005: RMB2,114 AAR®1, 240887 (ZFFR
million), which are determined using the expected £ AR%2,1488n) HAR
future payments discounted at market interest rates EREFHENENRERFRE
prevailing at the year end of 2.6% (2005: 2.5% to EmBRIRLe%TEN (ZFFTR
6.5%). F 1 2.5%E6.5%) °
Group Company
40 NG
2006 2005 2006 2005
—®8ARE _—BITRF ZREAREF CTTIF
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRFR AR¥Tni ARMTR ARETR
Held-to-maturity financial R R
assets RE 1,199,250 2,026,220 1,195,650 2,026,220
Less: Held-to-maturity B REINHAN
fiancial assets - current HHEEE-RY
portion (Mate 23) #i5 (EFE2) (809,379) - (805,779) -
Held-to-maturity finacial HEHBENHRE
asets - Long term portion gF - R 389,871 2,026,220 389,871 2,026,220
(¢)  Prepaid staff benefits represent subsidies to certain () ANBIEMASMEBITREN

employees as an encouragement to purchase motor
vehicles. The employees are required to serve the
Group for six years from the date of receipt of the
subsidies. If the employee leaves before the end of
the six-year period, a refund by the employee is
required calculated on a pro-rata basis. These
subsidies are amartised over six years on the straight-
line basis.

B MATEER o R
MBIRESEEZBEERSF
SR AR G 7R DA TR EE AR AR
ZMwe - ERIEAFHRZ
MR ERE - ZRLHREEMR
AR 1654 HARYLL BIE R FH RS © bl
RECAESES N -
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{Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(R EIRR R PR & A RAR )

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE_FFSFFT-A=+—HU#E

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND NOTES RECEIVABLE

The credit terms given to trade customers are
determined on an individual basis, with the credit
periods generally ranging from half a month to three
months.

The aging analysis of trade receivables and notes
receivable is as follows:

22. R IR B B R I8

AT AT NERETBEET
BRET  BEOYEAE=R@A
T o

PR AR R FE U SRR R RRER 20 AT 40

T
Group Company
4L NG|
2006 2005 2006 2005

—R3,F —_TTHE Z8BANF —EITEF
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABRMTR ARMTR AR®FIR ARETR

Less than 31 days PR=+—8 1,556,144 1,580,082 955,992 1,031,946
31 to 60 days —t+—EZXt+B 147,439 134,095 83,669 56,918
61 to 90 days ~T—EATE 44,602 122,377 24,300 108,014
91 to 180 days At—BE
—BATH 132,977 34,097 90,573 14,603
181 to 365 days —aN+—BE
—®|;THER 102,534 13,302 87,187 11,523
QOver 365 days BAZANTRE 112,934 127,466 108,403 118,986
2,096,630 2,011,419 1,350,124 1,341,990
Less: provision for W EWERR
impairment of HAEAER
receivables (93,775) (93,010) (89,552) (81,707)
Trade receivables and FE 1 B 0 R FE
notes receivable, net ZREE 2,002,855 1,918,409 1,260,572 1,260,283

180
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For the year ended 31 December 2006

BE_FR F+-_A=T—RUFE

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23. B

s FRR A At fE R

RECEIVABLES
Group Company
=4 ) 248
2006 2005 2006 2005
=98 —TRIF Z8V%AF —BETRE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'Q00 RMB'000
AR TR ARETnt AER®TR AER®TR
Held-to-maturity financial ##5 2F R LR

assets - current portion EE-RBHH

(Note 21(h)) (FE21(b) 809,379 - 805,779 -
Rebates receivable on BB REW

aircraft acquisitions B3R 627,641 102,582 593,202 78,314
Prepaid aircraft operating T RBEEHY

lease rentals HEHES 315,470 191,211 270,998 174,248
Prepayment for acquisition HBEMITEER

of flight equipment and HihBER

other assets DR 178,577 179,206 162,749 179,206
Custom duties and FEWRRE

value added BEH

tax recoverable REN (GLEa)

(Note (a)) 87,684 124,917 24,550 66,887
Rental deposits HET& 86,822 49,303 71,159 37,116
Deposits with banks and HB=@A

a financial institution EBln—%F

with original maturity i) 52 HTE K

over three months (i Eb)

but tess than a year

(Note (b)) 38,343 175,332 20,143 8,888
Others Hi 332,076 174,720 225,324 143,884

2,475,992 997,271 2,173,904 688,543
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For the year ended 31 December 2006

gE-

23.

24.

182

PREPAYMENTS,

PENFF R —HUFE

DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

Notes:

(2)

(b}

Pursuant to the Caiguanshui [2004] No. 63 issued
by the Ministry of Finance on 29 December 2004,
PRC airlines (including the Company, China Cargo
Airlines Co., Ltd. and China Eastern Airlines Jiangsu
Co., Ltd.} are subject to reduced custom duties and
value added tax on imported flight equipment and
overseas repair costs in relation to those aircraft
flying on international and regicnal routes with
effect from 1 January 2005, During the period from
1 January 2005 to 31 October 2006, the Group had
been continuing to pay duties and value added tax
at the standard rates and hence is entitled to a
refund for over payment in excess of the reduced
rates. From 1 November 2006 onwards, the Group
started to pay the custom and duties and value
added tax at the reduced rates. As at 31 December
2006, the Group’s related refundable amount of the
custom duties and value added tax amounted to
RMBB8 million (2005: RMB125 million}.

As at 31 December 2006, the effective interest rate
on deposits with banks with original maturity over
three months but less than a year was 0.7% (2005:
0.7%).

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and Company's

23. AR - ERREMERE
(18)

PTIE -

(a)

(b)

BB -ERNE A=
THEHBEMBEB[2004])635%
X - EBEARTEAE(EEER
A - FEEEMERRARRFE
HEAMETIERGR ) B R
HEAE ERITRRS S O R
ITHRBEEARNMKEHER - It
—ETRFE—FR—-A#EHEME
BIgEE A -_2RnF—A—
BE-FE E+H=1+BH
fl - AEMBIREERESE
RARRE RIS ET - NEZTARE
RS EEBR - A T8N
E£+—A—Qi  FEERRBIE
SRE KR F 8 B TR R EURRIE
BISHEM  H-_B®~€+=A
=+—H AEEEWEHEE
EHEERHAARKSEST
(ZZZAF: AR¥1258E
o) -

ROZERNE+ZA=+—08"
REMBEE=BARETEBE—
FRITFRNBRMER.7%(=
BEAF :0.7%) °

24 RERREEHEY
ARARARARERASEED

cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the MREEEHEIIRAT
following currencies:
Group Company
£H |
2006 2005 2006 2005
ZBE8SRE —TRRTF ZRBRE —ZETLRF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARBTRE AR®TH AR%TR AR¥Tx
Renminbi AR® 1,251,901 1,281,206 426,705 415,462
US Dollars Er 435,944 333,099 412,160 306,254
Japanese Yen BTt 68,950 76,591 54,871 55,803
Euro BT 66,454 37,420 61,029 28,163
Pounds Sterling B 17,416 22,979 17,416 22,979
Canadian Dollars mnr 14,525 14,187 14,525 14,187
Singapore Dollars Hng 13,032 15,943 13,032 15,943
Australian Dollars P 7,563 18,969 7,563 18,969
Others Ht 111,701 63,607 102,533 62,849
1,987,486 1,864,001 1,109,834 940,609
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE_EFAFT-AZ+—HIFE

25. TRADE PAYABLES AND NOTES PAYABLE
The aging analysis of trade payables and notes payable

25 BARRREMNRE
A R 30 R B 11 B 5 O R 3 47 40

is as follows: T
Group Company
-1 | N
2006 2005 2006 2005
—895F —BTHEF CZRRAEFE —TEIF
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB 000
ARMTIR AR¥TR ARMTR AR®TRE
Less than 31 days PIHR=+—8 1,374,386 1,416,293 1,146,144 1,593,009
31 to 60 days Zt+—%27~+RH 577,883 397,187 493,877 364,480
61 to 90 days AT—EALTE 781,666 195,869 745,800 163,058
91 to 180 days At—%
—BATH 2,030,629 846,775 1,980,677 605,039
181 to 365 days —BENT—E
-BA~TEHR 243,296 212,025 226,510 212,025
QOver 365 days BB=a,1thA 82,352 45,749 81,293 18,216
5,090,210 3,113,898 4,674,301 2,975,827

As at 31 December 2006, all notes payable totaling
RMB3,471 million (2005: RMB1,775 million) were
unsecured. Discount rates ranged from 2.4% to 3.3%
(2005: 2.9% to 3.2%) and all notes are repayable
within six months,

ROBBNE+-A=1t—8"
BEMEBAT AR 7188T
(ZFTHE  AR¥1,77588T)
BEEE WHRE2.4%E3.3%
(CBERRE:2.9%F3.2%)  Fi
AREAEBRERABRARER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE-FENF+AZ+—HUYTFE

26.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

26 Htt BRI RRARER

Group Company
e NG
2006 2005 2006 2005
—88XE —2TRE ZY8AE —PEIF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AER® TR ARBTR AR%® TR AR%¥Tx
Accrued fuel cost ERREBHER 1,824,714 1,415,797 1,636,726 1,262,586
Duties and levies payable — FE{IBEH REMBIE 1,227,450 755,373 1,045,405 707,060
Other accrued operating HREMEEEA
expenses 1,036,090 739,415 850,401 605,902
Accrued take-off and RRERBLEER
landing charges 1,022,127 810,226 755,936 607,370
Accrued aircraft overhaul TEIRREBABER
expenses 834,075 745,627 697,149 587,400
Deposits received from RERHERE
ticketing agents WERME R 448,176 353,805 318,568 299,218
Accrued salaries, wages BRIA ¥¢&
and benefits R 343,560 271,963 271,477 238,234
Staff welfare payable BB ITEAZK 142,703 39,433 107,082 31,915
Staff housing fund payable B EI{FTRES
(Note 33(a)) (FE/33(a)) 123,277 136,510 123,277 136,510
Current portion of other Hin R B F
long-term liabilities ook b )
{Note 30) (3t#830) 62,000 66,029 62,000 66,029
Current portion of BRERAILRE
post-retirement benefit Eop kR
obligations (Note 32({h)) (3 E32(b)) 30,724 35,825 28,727 34,528
Current postion of TS HAR
operating lease payables B B ER 1% - 52,268 - 52,268
QOthers Hith 891,455 573,480 786,291 503,858
7,986,351 5,995,751 6,683,039 5,132,878
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(EEERERERUER)
For the year ended 31 December 2000
HE-FENFF_A=1T—BuUFE

27. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 27. MEHEER/R
At 31 December 2006, the Group and the Company RIBEXRE+-_A=+—RA &K
had 46 and 40 aircraft (2005: 36 and 33 aircraft) EBRARFARBEEETNTR
respectively under finance leases. Under the terms of HAE MM RRE(CF
the leases, the Group/the Company has the option to TRE: Z+ABNM=+Z=8) -
purchase, at or near the end of the lease terms, certain BEAEGR  AEBREAQTE
aircraft at fair market value and others at either fair EREE R ETERE - MR
market value or a percentage of the respective lessors’ EhigEEKBEREEAREN
defined cost of the aircraft. The obligations under RABEEPEER - REHE
finance leases are principally denominated in US BETBUETABMEME -
Dollars.
The future minimum lease payments (including REAE (2R 8 REEERA
interest), and the present value of the minimum lease RESFWAT
payments under finance leases are as follows:
Group
R
2006 2005
Z8BARE “¥E1%
Present Present
value of value of
minimun minimum
Minimum lease Minimum lease
lease payments lease paymenis
payments Interest ~ BEBE  payments interest  REHEE
AEdS HE 2R BEEE HE ZBE
RHB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RM8'000 RMB'000 RMB00G
ARBTR ARNTR ARNTR ARETR AR%Tn ARYTr
Within cne year -ER 3,447,738 546,304 2,900,834 2,885,047 457,010 2,428,031
In the second year F_F 2,371,076 430,139 1,940,937 2,870,162 300,106 2,570,056
In the third to fifth F-EZELE
year inclusive (REEREEF) 3514758 912,607 2,602,151 3487110 4291 3,014,196
After the fifth year AFNE 5,173,152 667,598 4,505,554 2,913,057 331,192 2,575,265
Total By 14,506,724 2,857,248 11,949,476 12,155,376 1,567,822 10,587,5%4
Less: amount repayable B -ERAR
within gne year B (3,348,000)  (546,084) (2,803,956)  (2.885,047)  (457,010)  (2.428,037)
amount reclassified BARE
to non-current assets FnBEE
held for sale {Note 37) Bt (RN (99,718} (2,860)  (96,878) - - -
Long-term portion LEY 11,058,986 2,010,344 9,048,642 927032 1110812 8159517
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(B R RS ERIE R
for the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FEAF _A=+—-0iUFF

27. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 27 MEBEERE (B
(Cont’d)
(ompany
249
2006 2005
—REAE “TERE
Present Present
value of value of
minimum minimum
Minimum lease Minimum lease
lease payments ease payments
payments Interest ~ BREEE  payments Inerest  REHE
BEES il 2BE sEdEe e ZBE
RMB000 RMB000 RME'000 RMB000 RM3000 RMB'000
AERTR ARNTR AR%TR ARETR ARE®IR AR%TR
Within ane year —FH 3,195,142 459,367 2,735,775 2,779,448 44T 2,361,974
Tn the second year - Juki 2,146,228 351,312 1,794,916 2,764,563 263,806 2,500,757
In the third to fifth E-EZERE
year inclusive (BRERME) 2,903,681 722,981 2,180,700 3,170,314 384,958 2,785,356
After the fifth year BN 4,033,038 497,281 35535757 2,347,5Q1 0,326 2,007,105
Total ag 12,218,089 2,030,941 10,247,148 11061846  1,336564 9,725,282
Less: amount repayable B -FANEE
within one year 36 (3,002,584)  (456,527) (2.636,057) (2779448}  (417.474)  (2,361,974)
amount transferred AL
to non-current assets FRBAE
held for sale {Note 37) B (R (102,558) (2.840)  (99,718) - - -
Loag-term portion EEBG 0,082,947 1,571,574 1511373 3,282.398 918,000 7,363,308

The fair value of obligations under finance leases of
the Group and the Company are RMB11,550 million
and RMB9,833 million (2005: RMB10,432 million and
RMB9,690 million), which are determined using the
expected future payments discounted at market
interest rates prevailing at the year end of 2.5% to
7.0% (2005: 2.5% to 7.0%).

At 31 December 2006, the Group and the Company
had long-term bank deposits totaling RMB1,199 million
(2005: RMB2,026 miltion) pledged as collateral under
certain finance lease arrangements (Note 21(b)). In
addition, the finance lease obligations are guaranteed
by certain international and PRC banks in the PRC.

Certain leases that were entered into during the first
quarter of 2006 and initially classified as finance
leases, have been reassessed and reclassified as
operating leases since the announcement of the
unaudited 2006 interim results. The resulting impact
increased the Group’s consolidated net assets at 30
June 2006 by RMB113 million and decreased its
consolidated loss for the six-month period ended 30
June 2006 by the same amount. The consolidated
financial statements as at and for the year ended 31

1 8 BDecember 2006 are not affected.
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for the year ended 31 December 2006
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28.
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BORROWINGS 28. B
Group Company
£m NG
2006 2005 2006 2005
“BRAE —_BTIH Z8VAE _TIZiF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTR AR¥TR AR%FTR AR®TR
Non-current JEm AR5
Long-term bank RERITER
borrowings (Note (a)) (&)
- secured -BER 5,028,836 5,809,678 4,413,836 5,526,998
- unsecured -ZER 7,062,577 3,980,438 6,428,079 3,930,438
12,091,413 9,790,116 10,841,915 9,457,436
Current BN ER D
Long-term bank EHBRITER
borrowings (Note (a)) (518 (a))
- secured -HEH 773,494 1,555,313 773,494 1,516,173
- unsecured -BER 2,067,200 1,313,917 1,476,740 1,313,917
Short-term bank BEHRGTER
borrowings (Note (b)) (3B (b))
- secured -HER - 33,000 - -
- unsecured —®iER 13,175,633 13,677,856 10,754,644 10,571,230
Debentures (Note (c)) fE % (FE () - 1,974,544 - 1,974,544
16,016,327 18,554,630 13,004,878 15,375,864
Total borrowings (Note {d)) fHZ 8% (3 18(d)) 28,107,740 28,344,746 23,846,793 24,833,300
The borrowings are RITERERTH
repayable as follows: M AREE
Within one year —ER 16,016,327 18,554,630 13,004,878 15,375,864
In the second year E-F 3,053,315 2,663,434 2,953,315 2,631,154
In the third to fifth EZFEFLF
year inclusive (RIEEER®RE) 7,560,389 5,517,473 7,020,801 5,217,073
After the fifth year AF LA 1,477,709 1,609,209 867,709 1,609,209
28,107,740 28,344,746 23,846,793 24,833,300
Notes: B

(a) The fair value of long-term borrowings of the Group
and the Company are RMB15,397 wmillion and
RMB13,546 million (2005: RMB12,044 million and
RMB11,696 million), which are determined using the
expected future payments discounted at market
interest rates prevailing at the year end of 4.5%

(2005: 4.5%).

(a) FEZERARRRBRITERZ
DNRESHBAR1539788 7T
BAR¥13,5468 8B (Z8FR
£ ARM1R,04B8TEARYE
11,696 B ET) MELAERR
BHEEYAREREATEDNS
FlEs st EMN( TR

4.5%) * 187
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
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28. BORROWINGS (Cont’'d)

188

As at 31 December 2006, the secured bank borrowings
of the Group and the Company for the purchases of
aircraft were secured by the related aircraft with an
aggregate net book amount of RMBY,044 million and
RMBE,310 million respectively (2005: RMB9,074
million) (Note 15). Certain secured bank borrowings
with an aggregate net book amount of RMB186
million (2005: RMB837 million} were also guaranteed
by Export-Import Bank of the United States, China
Industrial and Commercial Bank and China
Construction Bank.

Certain unsecured bank borrowings of the Group and
the Company totaling of RMB695 million and RMB100
million {2005: RMB1,282 mitlion and RMB200 million}
were guaranteed by CEA Helding {Note 41},

The terms of the long-term bank loans are
summarised as follows:

LA

28 B (1)
RIFBRE+=-R=+—8 "
AEEARARAFIAREERES
IR E B A G R R AR (0
mh o HEEMEEA AR 0448
BLREARESINBEEL (BT
i ARE9074EEL) (BB
15) = ¢boh - ARM186 BT (=
ZERE ARMSIIESET)H
ERMRTEROAER#EEOE
17 - PEIFRITEPBERLIE
TTERR -

REBE AR ARG IEERERTT
Bt ARSesEERTRARY
100EBLT(ZETRE - ARE
1,282 BB TR ARK 2005 ET)
A RESRERRGEE) -

RHRITE A R IE T -

Group Company
-1, | |
Interest rate and final maturities 2006 2005 2006 2005
HERBAHAE IR9AE _—FFL¥ CZ9¥AE C-FTIF
RMB'000 RMB'00) RMB'000 RME'000
ARBTR ARMTR AR®TR ARBTR
RMB denominated bank loans:
HARBHENGTER:
Loans for Fixed interest rates ranging from 5.18% to 5.76% 3,785,000 3,253,500 3,710,000 3,153,500
working per annum as at 31 December 2008; 1 to 4-year loans
capital with final maturity through to 2010,
BiEYERE 2R FtoACH-AERNRATEE518ERST6E
HER TE FHA-ENEHERT-F-BEREHS
Loans for the Fixed interest rates ranging from 5.18% to 6.16% 1,777,500 1,455,000 767,500 1,455,000
purchases of per annym as at 31 December 2006; 2 to 11-year loans
aircraft* with final maturities through to 2017
RERERE —SRAETZAZ+-ABTHENTERS 18EE6.16E
NER FE FHACET-EMERE-Z-+FR5HE
Loans for Fixed interest rates ranging from 5.30% to 5.76% 245,000 200,000 100,000 200,000
construction per annum as at 31 December 2006; 1 to 5-year loans
projects with final maturities through to 2011
AEERER —PRAEt-ASt-HERNZAFRS0EFRNE
MER TEFHA-ZHETHNERZ-F-—-+BHEHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
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28. BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

28. B (8)

Group Company
M /8
Interest rate and final maturities 2006 2005 2006 2005
HERR&NME “ReAE C“PFRE CRRAE -2ERF
RMB'000 RME'000 RMB'000 RMB000
AR®TRE ARNMTR ARMTR ARSTR
U.5. dollar denominated bank loans:
RETHENBTAN:
Laans far the Fixed interest rates ranging from 5.90% to 6.20% 1,008,982 296,120 546,609 296,120
purchases of per annum as at 31 Oecember 2006; 2 to 3-year loans
aireraft with final maturities through to 2009
BHEBERE —FERETZAZH-HBEHMERATERINE
HED E5.0B7E  EHACESTHRIAZCFINAFREHYE
Loans for the floating interest rates ranging from 3 months LIBOR+0.25% 6,017,637 7295480 6,017,637 7,135,480
purchases of to 6 months LIBOR+0.75% as at 31 December 2006;
aireraft * 2 to 9-year loans with final maturities through to 2015
AfBESRR CREAFT_RST-BRENEA-ERMLBR0.2E
mER EXBANUBCRO.TSETE - FHAZEAEHAN
E_E-nFRRAY
Loans for the Floating interest rates of 6 months LIBOR +0.6% 147,585 111,820 - -
purchase of as at 31 December 2005; 3 to 5-year loans with
an aircraft final maturities in 2011
simulator ZREAEt AT -RERNEERAAN
BEBESER  UB0R06E - FHACEZRFAHAZE - -FRIUENS
o858
Loans for Floating interest rates ranging from 3 months LIBOR+).55% 866,287 - 866,287 -
working to 6 months LIBOR+0.75% as at 31 December 2006;
capital 2 to 3-year lpans with final maturities through to 2003
REdEEE —FERFTZAZT-B39HESZ (@ AMLIBOR0.55E
)¢ ERERNUBRO.BETE - FHAZZZFHHN
E_EPAERENS
Loans for Floating interest rates of & months LIBOR +0.75% 927,942 47,426 927,942 41,426
finance leases  as at 31 December 2006; 3-year loans with final
of aircraft maturity in 2009
AEREREA Z29AFT-RAZT-BEBNEASEAN
RANET  UBRAME  FRAZFNERZ-TIATREHNM
Loans for Floating interest rates of 6 months LIBOR +0.75% 156,174 - 156,174 -
construction as at 31 December 2006; 1-year loans with final
projects maturity in 2007
REEEREE  Z22AFT-A-+-BEBNEARHEARN
HER LBOR+0.75E - FMA-FHRRE-FELTREEIS
Total long-term bank loans 16,932,107 12,659,346 13,092,140 12,287,526
REANHTAR
* These loans are secured by the related * AERBERRBAER -
aircraft.
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE_FFNNFF_A=1+—HIFE
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28. BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

{b) Short-term borrowings of the Group and the Company
are repayable within one year with interest charged
at the prevailing market rates based on the rates
quoted by the People’s Bank of China. As at 31
December 2006, the interest rates relating to such
borrowings ranged from 4.39% to 6.12% per annum
{2005: 2.22% to 5.04% per annum). During the year
ended 31 December 2006, the weighted average
interest rate on short-ferm bank loans was 5.60%
per annum {2005: 4.62% per annum),

{c) On 5 August 2005, the Company issued debentures
with a face value of RMB1,000,000,000 at an issue
price of RMB971,600,000, being 97.16% of the face
value, and repayable on 4 August 2006. On 23 August
2005, the Company issued additional debentures with
a face value of RMB1,000 million at an issue price
of RMBY80 million, being 98% of the face value,
and repayable on 22 May 2006. During 2006, all
debentures were repaid at face value on the
respective due dates.

The zero coupon debentures are accounted for in
the balance sheets of the Group and the Company as

28. BEX (|
(by ABEARFQFMNEHRITHER

(c)

HAR—FEMME - FLFAA
REFTAHGHMBRE aRET
HFB - R-BEBARE+-R=
+—B - HEEZHRENFE
B430BE6 122 (ZZ2FRE:
TEFER2.22EES.04F) - HE
HRoBRRNE+-A=+—081t
FEAMETSTREF25.60E
(CZEF0F - FR462E) -

R-BZFAFTNRRAB  ZLQT
A971,600,000/CHIR4E T T &
{BA5 ARY%1,000,000,0007CAYE
% (Bl97.16%M{H) - ¥R -FF
AEAAERABIE - - Bz
EERAFANEZ-+=8 - &A2F
X LA980E &t (BN9s% &) M
BT SIEESARE1,000
BETHES TR _TEAE
FEAZ-+T=ZBEH - R-FFA
£ FAASHULCAREET
HAZL -

AEMEFLRIAERMARNAS)
ZEAHFIIRMOT :

follows:
2006 2005
ot 3 38 - —FEFnF
RMB'000 RMB'Q00
AR®TR AR¥TR
Nominal value GE - 2,000,000
Less: Unamortised discount & : R HMITH - {25,456)
- 1,974,544

(d) The carrying amounts of the borrowings are
denominated in the following currencies:

(d)

ERMEEMAEREESN TS
T

Group Company
£ &8

2006 2005 2006 2005
—R9AE —RTIFE Z¥RAFE _TFRIFE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000
ARBFR AEWTE AE®TR AR¥TR
Renminbi AR 11,408,006 13,112,485 7,836,006 10,521,485
US Dollars =T 16,698,734 15,232,261 16,010,787 14,311,815
28,107,740 28,344,746 23,846,793 24,833,300
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for the year ended 31 December 2006

HE—

29,

EEAFT-R=+—HUER

PROVISION FOR AIRCRAFT OVERHAUL
EXPENSES

20. R KIS EHER

Group Company
g | 29
2006 2005 2006 2005
-89 & -—92LE Z/eSF —TEILF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARE®TT AR Tn AER%TR
At 1 January —A—B&& 403,999 254,009 348,835 200,725
Additions through business %7 4 i 18 in
acquisitions - 196,122 - 196,122
Additions through the B AR R &
acquisition of a NGB
controlling interest in ¥ 24 P S| i
an associate ) 38
(Note 40(a)) (31 40(a)) 23,994 - - -
Additional provisions RERRE 150,390 64,700 134,697 54,767
Reversal resulting from Hit st B ELE
change in estimate (Note)  B9¥ [E (&%) - (58,577) - (58,577)
Utilisation FHEAXRE (67,762) {52,255) (53,942) (44,202)
At 31 December TZR=Z+—HEE 510,621 403,999 429,590 348,835
Less: current portion A ks (20,900) {15,589) (20,900) (15,589)
Long-term portion EHEHG 489,721 388,410 408,690 333,246

Provision of aircraft overhaul expenses represents the
present value of estimated costs of major overhauls
for aircraft under operating leases as the Group has
the responsibility to fulfill certain return conditions
under relevant leases. '

Note:

Prior to 2005, overhauls for certain aircraft models under
operating leases were performed by overseas service
providers. In 2005, the Company identified domestic
facilities to carry out overhauts for certain aircraft models
at lower cost. Accordingly, the Company changed its estimate
for provision for aircraft overhauls relating to those aircraft
models.

HRREAERAAFEHEHEAR
BRI RERRNRE - Wit
EMRAEOEETREAMEE
IRTE RSB IR -

iEHE

ZETHELA - ALRERIRRNE
BRI RARIX BB M) M I IR EHE T
Kig - RZBBRRF  ARFIEIIE
B A AR R B bA TR FELL R SRS
Kig - BRERREERAGBEMMER
ﬁ?.%f%ir o AUt AR RIRBERABRA
RfEET
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
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30. OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

0. ERBAME

Group and Company

=R R
2006 2005
—EgRE —EEREF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR®Tic
Long-term payable to the Bureau —R—FF [t H &
of 2010 Expe Shanghai & HAFE 5 3R
(Note 14(b}) (FEIE14(b)) 278,680 -
Long-term payable to PRREMEMRT SR
Aviation China Civil REIEA R (G (a))
Flight Institute (Note (a)) 90,000 120,000
Deferred credit on government B 3 4 BY ¥ L BF 18
grants {Note (b)) (38 (b)) 70,410 70,410
Deferred gains on sale and BREERBREREE
leaseback transactions
of aircraft 33,605 46,673
Other long-term payable Hib R HI AR 27,766 30,848
500,461 267,931
Less: Current portion (Note 26) & : iR BIEB{N (RX ¢ 26) (62,000) (66,029)
Long-term portion R ERER {7 438,461 201,902
Notes: i

(a) The balance is unsecured, bearing interest at an
effective rate of 6.21% per ansum and is repayable
by annual instalments of RMB30 million up to year
2009.

(b} Deferred credit on government grants represents
government grants received for construction and
acquisition of safety and security facilities. As at
31 December 2006, the related facilities have not
been constructed or purchased.

192

(a) ZESHFIAHER ANENR
Be.21 B WHEFSHIBERA
R¥ENBHETHEE-_EThE-

(b) HFWMEEEREIHEEMS
ARBEEBELTE RETRIE
MR BE-FBRANE+ A
=+—8 - AEREEA R SR
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31.

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right of offset
and when the deferred income taxes relate to the
same authority. The following amounts, determined
after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the balance

31 EEEH IR

BHEEEMNTTRHEAEERRA
BB REES - METHMRTER
F—E W - B0 $RIEP S
AERBLEMEHABETRR-
EEERIEEE - THEREEE

sheets: BEXRNIIR -
Group Company
Em |
2006 2005 2006 2005
—BRAE ~—ZEIE ZRRAE _BEREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®TR AR%TRE AR®TR AR%TR
Deferred tax assets BREHEEE
- Deferred tax asset to —12{E A LA £7]
be utilised after FIHAERL
12 months HEEE 81,010 8,892 - -
- Deferred tax asset to —1218 A LA A]
be utilised within BRAERIE
12 months HMEAE 1,136 3,432 - -
82,146 12,324 - _
Deferred tax liabilities F LR TE B
- Deferred tax liability to  — 12{8 A A £ 7]
be realised after BRI
12 months MIEBE (68.459) (144,302) - -
- Deferred tax liability to  —12{@ B AR A
be realised within BIRAEIE
12 months mIARE - (34,523) - (160,067)
(68,459)  {178,825) - (160,067)
Deferred tax assets/ BEHEEE/
(liabilities), net (Rfa) - FHE 13,687 (166,501) - (160,067)
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
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31. DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd) 31 BRI ()
Mavements in the net deferred taxation asset/ RIERIE R EE / (AE) MEEm
(liability) are as follows: T
Group Company
£w N
2006 2005 2006 2005

“REAE —FFLEF —¥¥AEFE ZFTIF
RMB°000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTRL AR®TR AR®TR

At 1 January —A—H&# (166,501)  (292,385)  (160,067)  (278,942)
Additions through business % 7% 14 3 1% A0
acquisitions (Note 40(a)) (¥ 40(a)) (29,326) 93,017 {29,326) 93,017
Credited to income RREER
statement (Note 11) (rrEE11) 211,004 56,970 190,883 49,961
Charged/(credited) to equity #5518, (B 1)
- gain/(losses) on - xEEMNAE
cashflow hedges mBEEH
(Note 36) B (K
(i 36) (1,490) (24,103) (1,490) (24,103)
At 31 December +=—RA=+—R#&&% 13,687 {166,501) - {160,067)
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
HE—FEAFF-_A=+—BULFE

31. DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd) 31 EEEBLIE (&)

The deferred tax assets and liabilities {prior to the
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction)
were made up of the taxation effects of the following:

RoBTEXE+-A=+—H &
EHEEERBEER—BZERE
TIEERIMEHE A TAREEE
#EAK

Group Company
-4 |
2006 2005 2006 2005
—89RE ZZTHF Z8%AF —TRIF
RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMFRE AR¥TR AR®TA AR%TR
Deferred tax assets: BERBEE
Tax losses carried forward B S IBEH 972,778 451,659 667,648 414,529
Provision for obsolete REFBETHH
flight equipment PR A
spare parts 68,574 33,192 66,008 32,748
Provision for receivables MR A EER 57,467 12,474 28,092 12,213
Provision for RREENES
post-retirement benefits 216,570 185,102 176,007 168,842
Other accrued expenses HhEREZER
and provisions H 97,823 48,412 67,191 34,682
1,413,212 730,839 1,004,946 663,014
Less: unrecognised assets  if @ REEBEE (882,443)  (338,194)  (594,326)  (301,064)
530,769 392,645 410,620 361,950
Deferred tax liabilities: BHEBEBAAMR
Depreciation and HERBH
amortisation (517,082) (559,146)  (410,620) (522,017)
(517,082)  (559,146)  (410,620)  (522,017)
Net deferred tax assets/y  BEHBERE/ 13,687 (166,501) - (160,067)
(liabilities) (RiE)FHR
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31.

el el e W e e F I S ¥V wrf

DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd) 31 EEHIE ()
Movements of the net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) FREREEESNF_RA=+
of the Group for the year: —BILFEREREEE, (B
AREEEEERET
Additions
through
{Charged)/ business
credited {Charged)/  acquisitions
At the to income credited (Note 40) At the
beginning of statement to equity E$] end of
the year BE% 3] HEam the year
FOH (FE)/RE (FE) /88 (E840) FXB
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARMTR AERMTR ARMTR AR%TR
For the year ended HE_88AE
31 December 2006 +=A=t-H
Tax losses carried forward B EREH 113,465 (23,130) - - 80,335
Provision for obsolete flight RBREIHH
equipment spare parts REER 33,192 35,382 - - 68,574
Provision for receivables EYHREER 12,474 44,993 - - 57,467
Provision for post-retirement BHETHEMHE
benefits 185,102 31,458 - - 216,570
Other accrued expenses and R ERTER
provisions L2 48,412 50,901 (1,490) - 97,823
392,645 130,614 (1,490) - 530,769
Dapreciation and amertisation 3 & R & (359,146) 71,300 - {29,326) (517,082)
(559,146) 1,390 - (29,326)  (517,082)
Net deferred tax assets/ BEBERE/
(liabilities) (A 38 {166,501) 211,004 (1,490) (29,326) 13,687
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For the year ended 31 December 2006

pravy

EoRENFST A=A+ FR

31. DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd) 31 ETEBE ()
Additions
through
(Charged)/ business
credited (Charged)/  acquisitions
At the to income credited (Note 40) At the
beginaing of statement to equity 3 end of
the year BEE A REEgin the year
ENE (B8 /HE (BE)/ER (3 840) FRE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'GOC RME’000
ARETR AR%TT ARETR ARETR AR¥T:H
For the year ended RE-ZE1F
31 December 2005 +ZR=t+-H
Tax losses carried forward HEEBES 97,442 16,023 - - 113,465
Provision for obsclete flight ~ RERETHH
equipment spare parts BEERE 54,014 (20,628) - {194) 33,192
Provision for receivables WA AL 10,146 2.328 - - 12,474
Provision for post-retirement B R EHEE
benefits 95,252 12,066 - 77,784 185,102
Other accrued expenses and  EBRETHE
provisions £ 123,469 (16,647) (24,103) (34,307) 48,412
380,323 (6,858) (24,103) 43,283 392,645
Depreciation and amortisation 7 8§ Jt B & (672,708) 63,828 - 49,734 {559,146)
(672,708) £3,828 - 49,734 (559,146}
Net deferred tax tiabilities ~ ERBEREFE (292,385) 56,970 (24,103) 93,017 (166,501)

In accordance with the PRC tax law, tax losses can be
carried forward to offset against future taxable income
for a period of five years. As at 31 December 2006,
the Group and the Company had tax lesses carried
forward of approximately RMB5,782 million and
RMB4,451 million respectively (2005: RMB3,011 million
and RMB2,764 million respectively) which will expire
between 2007 and 2011, and which are available te
set off against the Group and the Company's future
taxable income. As at 31 December 2006, the Group
and the Company did not recognise RMB882 million
and RMB594 million respectively (2005: RMB338
million and RMB301 million respectively) of deferred
tax assets arising from tax losses available as
management did not consider it probable that such
tax losses would be realised before they expire.

BEPRBE - BEEBIEIRESF
RS A R ERBIMA - RZTT
AETZA=+—H  ZREELEAK
RENBEERESRDNHNARYE
5782B R TRARE441RET
(Z2ERE ARB3,011E87T
RARY2 76488  AIRZE
E+EE —F——FHHRFEE
M AR D R AR R FERIRARA -
BE-ZZXF+-_R=+—8
IF - BREAEREREHEENE
& ESIRTE BB HAAT AT 4 0 A e o] Bk
M AR E AL B R R
FLIELHEEE » B ARKSS2
BSETEARESsaE@T(ZFF
RE: AR¥3BEELRARY
01BETT) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
HE—FERE+_F=+—HBuHEE

32. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS AND POST-
RETIREMENT BENEFITS

{a) Defined contribution retirement schemes
(i)  Pension

The Group companies participate in
defined contribution retirement schemes
organised by municipal governments of
the various provinces in which the Group
companies operate, and substantially all
of the Group's PRC employees are eligible
to participate in the Group companies’
retirement schemes. The Group companies
are required to make annual
contributions to the schemes at rates
ranging from 20% to 22% on the
employees’ prior year salary and
allowances. Employees are required to
contribute to the schemes at rates
ranging from 7% to 8% of their basic
salaries. The Group has no other material
obligation for the payment of retirement
benefits heyond the annual contributions
under these schemes. For the year ended
31 December 2006, the Group’s pension
cost charged to the consolidated income
statement amounted to RMB238 million
(2005: RMB228 million}.

(it}  Medical insurance

The majority of the Group’s PRC
employees participate in the medical
insurance schemes organised hy the
municipal governments, under which the
Group and its employees are required to
contribute to the scheme approximately
12% and 2%, respectively, of the
employee’s basic salaries. For those
employees who participate in these
schemes, the Group has no other
obligation for the payment of medical
expense beyond the annual
contributions. For the year ended 31
December 2006, the Group’s medical
insurance contributions charged to the
income statement amounted to RMB60
million (2005: RMB52 million).
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for the year ended 31 December 2006
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32. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS AND POST-
RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Cont’d)

(b) Post-retirement benefits

In addition to the above retirement schemes,
the Group provides retirees with other post-
retirement benefits including transportation
subsidies, social function activities subsidies
and others. The expected cost of providing these
post-retirement benefits is actuarially

2. BB RERSRAKEN

= (&)
(b) BEBRZRER

B B EAEEBIS - AR
iR R EEBFIEERA
RAL - HREBRA A B
& - i BIRIKIERFIPRESE
)% A R [TREF B R IR AR %
@z RERERE I

UBRMRBLGEHBEE B
hEERRER - TRRLER

determined and recognised by using the
projected unit credit method, which involves a

number of assumptions and estimates, including MKEF o

inflation rate, discount rate and employees’

turnover ratio.

The post-retirement benefit obligations EEERBERPAMEZNES

RRBRENRRERAE

recognised in the balance sheets are as follows:

Group Company
B2 NG|
2006 2005 2006 2005
ZR8RE ZETILE Z8BEAFE —_2TIF
RMB000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARWMTT ARMTR AR%TrH
Present value of TREEHNESR
unfunded RKEREF
post-retirement ERERDN
benefit obligations HE 1,892,926 1,970,292 1,650,889 1,792,522
Unrecognised ARBOFEE
actuarial losses Bx (569,242)  (731,590)  (477,509)  (672,357)
Post-retirement ERREERT
benefit obligations ERES 1,323,684 1,238,702 1,173,380 1,120,165
Less: current postion R EEBn
(Note 26) (sF%26) (30,724) (35,825) (28,727) (34,528)
Long-term portion SHEH 1,292,960 1,202,877 1,144,653 1,085,637
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32,

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS AND POST-

RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Cont’d)

(b)

200

Post-retirement benefits {Cont'd)

2. EREsrEREERKEN
1= (#8)

(b) ERIRAENEHN ()

Changes in post-retirement benefit obligations EEBERKERMERERERSE
are as follows: FENBEWT -
Group Company
HE AN
2006 2005 2006 2005
ZRERE —_ITTLE Z8®%AE —TEILF
RMB'00¢ RMB'0Q0 RMB'Q00 RMB'000
AR®Tn ARETR AR%TR ARETR
At 1 January —A—B&# 1,238,702 645,732 1,120,165 539,945
Additions through HT5 s 18 A
business acquisition - 519,881 - 519,881
Total expenses charged FTAZAIBHERN
in the income BHMBH
statement 146,968 102,459 114,422 89,467
Payments AEEINR (61,986) (29,370) (61,207) (27,778)
Others H fiir - - - (1,350)
At 31 December +=ZA=+—8
& 1,323,684 1,238,702 1,173,380 1,120,165
The costs of post-retirement benefits are AEFNEKERMNBERET
recagnised under wages, salaries and benefits ALE - #E2EEJNBHS
in the income statement as follows: WERAFELFSBRRTR
Bh
Group Company
- 3. YN
2006 2005 2006 2005
ZR¥AF —_TTIFE ZREAF —_TEREF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT ARMTR AR®TR
Current service cost HHREER 63,957 56,436 51,964 50,775
Interest cost REMMNERA 72,435 45,200 54,175 38,009
Actuarial losses BaRMBEEX
recognised 10,576 823 8,283 683
Total (Note 8) B (GHiEe) 146,968 102,459 114,422 89,467
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32.

33.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS AND POST-
RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Cont'd)

The principal actuarial assumptions at the balance
sheet date are as follows:

32. BREG B RESRKEN
B (3

REEAERAZEREHGARER
T

Group and Company

EME LT
2006 2005
—BRAF —“EEREF
Discount rate R &E 3.75% 3.5%
Annual rate of increase of T AHE B R @
per capita benefit payment BEBERR 1.5% 1.5%
Employee turnover rate EBERESR 3.0% 3.0%
STAFF HOUSING BENEFITS B RIEEMHR
(a) Staff housing fund (a) BIRERES

In accordance with the PRC housing reform
regulations, the Group is required to contribute
to the State-sponscred housing fund at rates
ranging from 1% to 15% (2005: 1% to 15%) of
the specified salary amount of its PRC
employees. At the same time, the employees
are required to contribute an amount equal to
the Group’s contribution. The employees are
entitled to elaim the entire sum of the fund
contributed under certain specified withdrawal
circumstances. For the year ended 31 December
2006, the Group's contributions to the housing
funds amounted to RMB228 million {2005:
RMB195 million) which has been charged to
the income statement. The staff housing fund
payable as at 31 December 2006 amounted to
RMB123 million (2005: RMB137 million) (Note
26). The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods.

RBEETENFREEFBEE -
FEETRERNEIHEM1%
Z15%(—EFTAF 1% E
15%) R EBRRTEHNTRE
S o [E - B TIAREE
£ BRLAERSENE
ReEETHEBEEIARE
REZEER - R_BTREF
+_R=+—BLtFEA &
EEGABRRNBIERE
SRHEETARB2288E T
(ZB2HF : ARB1958H
T BE_BEEARF+T_A
=+ XEEBTEFEE
SEEHREAARKEL123GE
T(CTERE  ARE137A
Bt) (sE1826) - EEHEMNE
EA R 18 B IR ARG 0
B EI R ATHA R ey - AREEY
EApMETENEEEE
HTE e
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
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33. STAFF HOUSING BENEFITS (Cont’d)
{b) Staff housing allowances

The Company also provides staff housing
allowances to eligible employees who joined
the Group prior to 1998 according to the Group's
staff housing allowance policy introduced in
October 2003 (the “Staff Housing Allowance
Policy").

Under the Staff Housing Allowance Policy,
employees who have not been allocated with
any housing gquarters or who have not been
allocated with a quarter above the minimum
area as set out in the Staff Housing Allowance
Policy, are entitled to a cash allowance based
on the area of quarter to which they are entitled
and the unit price as set out in the Staff
Housing Allowance Policy. The total entitlement
is principally vested over a period of 20 years.
Upon an employee’s resignation, his or her
entitlement will cease and any unpaid
entitlement related to past service up to the
date of resignation will be paid. Upon the
establishment of the Staff Housing Allowance
Policy, employees are entitled to a portion of
the total entitlement already accrued based on
his or her past service period. Such entitlement
is paid over a period of 4 to 5 years. As at 31
December 2006, the present obligation of the
provision for employee's staff housing
entitlement is RMB439 million (2005: RMB457
million),

For the year ended 31 December 2006, the staff
housing benefit provided under the Staff
Housing Allowance Policy amounted to RMB31
million (2005: RMB36 million) which has been
charged to the income statement.

202

33. BT {EEHERL ()
(b) BIXEHN

RE_BT=F+ AHMHNE
THEFEHRECE (B TR
BAEER]) - ARBA—AAN
FERIMAR TILL & R0
THRHETERHA -

EZHET  FeEHERE
SidiEEREEA R ERER
ERENB IO LERRERE
8 o B IR ERLMEALAZHR
PEINESERAEERERE
BREMEE - FHHBRLER
ZHFE - B THER 28
A= LR - A EEE
B AR ST RS AS TE R
Bt BB LEREEA
s - BETIRBAETHEES
Birme st YIRMER
FEEW - BB XFHAES
EERERMBAIREAENE
THEHERBAARKLI0OEE
T(ZZZHF  AR¥47H
BT -

HE_TE F+_-_RA=1+—
HILFE - £BT(FFEHHE
TiHEMBIEFEREAAR
W3IEETL(ZEZTRHE 36
BERX) YRGS BERPY
ﬁ o

198

o -

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited Annual Report 2006




YU LGCD LU Ll

MR RERE

I 1TIUUlTwiviL ULl TS

(Prepared in accordance with Internotional Financial Reporting Stondards)

(RERR R S L RIEED

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE-BF E+_A=+—HIFF

34. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

34 TMOTETR

Group and Company

Assets Liabilities
BRE =% |
2006 2005 2006 2005
—EBAE —ZTRE Z98AF —_¥RLE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFR AR®TI ARMTR AR%TR
. At 31 December +-A=+-0&#%
Interest rate swaps fl2g &
(Note (a)) (58 () 118,689 71,260 36,392 19,821
Forward foreign exchange SEEMEH
contracts {Note (b)) (S (b)) 8,290 2,469 4,962 17,808
Fuel option contracts PhEES Y
(Note {c)) (HE () 59,822 50,193 97,464 22,985
Total =E 186,801 123,922 138,818 60,614
Less: non-current portion i - REAED (A
Interest rate swaps FRFH (73.269) (70,292) (14,096) (2,731)
Forward foreign exchange WNEEBE K
contracts - (594) - (10,380)
Fuel option contracts WRih EES & - - - (12,659)
(73,269)  (70,886)  (14,096)  (25,770)
Current portion mEnEb s 113,532 53,036 124,722 34,844
Notes: ot &
(a)  Interest rate swaps (a) MBRERA
The Group uses interest rate swaps to reduce the FEMBRFETRRET SR

risk of changes in market interest rates (Note
3(a)(iii}). The interest rate swaps entered into by
the Group are generally for swapping variable rates,
usually referenced to LIBOR, into fixed rates. The
Group’s interest rate swaps gualify for hedge
accounting and are accounted for as cashflow hedges.
As at 31 December 2006, the notional amount of
the outstanding interest rate swap agreements was
approximately US$631 million (2005: US$661
millien). These agreements will expire between 2007
and 2016. For the year ended 31 December 2006, a
net gain of RMB4 million (2005: RMB79 million)
arising from changes in the fair value of the interest
rate swaps subsequent to initial recognition has been
recognised directly in the hedging reserve (Note 36).

BB R GEIE3(a)(i) o K
SEES ET A TR TR BALIBOR
HRNESHM R HAZEER
R ZENNETHBREARE
HAgsrER - YHRERRENY
B - R TEXFEFZA=T
—B - BB RRZHHF R
THEESRENAIIBEEET
(CBERE 661BHET) - ¥
R _-_BREL+EE_FT—AFH
B e MBZE_TZTAFTA
=+—-BItFE  £AAREIE
BEMEHBRENREHHEA
HR(ZEZHT : ARBIEE
7o) (FEHE3e) -
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34, DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Cont’d)
Notes:
(b}  Forward foreign exchange contracts

(<

2C4

The Group uses currency forward contracts to reduce
risk of changes in currency exchange rates in respect
of ticket sales and expenses denominated in foreign
currencies (Note 3(a){vi)). These contracts are
generally for selling Japanese Yen and purchasing
U.S. dollars at fixed exchange rates. As at 31
December 2006, the notional amount of the
outstanding currency forward contracts was
approximately US$33 million (2005: US$92 million),
which will expire between 2006 and 2010. For the
year ended 31 December 2006, a net gain of RMB6
million {2005: a net loss of RMB82Z million} arising
from changes in the fair value of these foreign
currency forwards has been recognised directly in
the hedging reserve (Note 36},

Fuel option contracts

The Group uses fuel option contracts to reduce the
risk of changes in market oil/petroleum prices in
connection with aircraft fuel costs. As at 31
December 2006, the Group had ocutstanding fuel
option contracts to buy approximately 10,690,000
barrels of crude oil at prices which ranged from
US354.75 to US395 per barrel and to sell
approximately 23,310,000 barrels of crude oil at
prices which ranged from US$40 to US$115 per barrel,
all of which will expire between 2007 and 2009.
Management did not designate these fuel option
contracts for hedge accounting and changes in fair
values have been recognised directly in the income
statement.

4. ERITELA (8])

iraE

(b)

(c)

SEEHESH
FEESMEE IS RRER
MEHEEREERBRAMAR
HEE R E B (FEIB3(a)(vi)) ° IME
EMTEALErREEEAT
HTBAET —BEXF+-R
=+—B  BHEAERZ SN
EEHEHNNEBEERNAE
BEIT(CRERE 0288
T WEHCEBRAREER—
FEMPH - RZEFEANE+Z
A=t+—BLFE  GHEMNK
BAFARBeEEITHERW
SMEREEARR(ZFER
. ARBaHELBER)
1B36) -

prpp R

A EE B S R
TR MR EEEE R RS
RAEMSRGER BE—FT
AETZAZT—B - BELEg
MR BNERESE - A
BLASH54.75F T E95E LM
TERE B phiH #910,690,0004 - 1A
FROETENSETNEREES
PRI £923,310,00048  BEEH O
ARBLEH_TRNEEH
W AEEORBIESHTE
AREREEER - EoAES
BUHHECRSBRERD LU

7
e
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35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. =&
2006 2005
—R2XE ~"BZHEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TRE AREBTR
Registered, issued and fully paid §Fffl - B @7 RE8HA
of RMB1.00 each BRARM1.00T
Unlisted shares held by CEA TEEMEEREEET
Holding and employees BEIERBR 3,000,000 3,000,000
A shares listed on The Shanghai 7E L/@BHFRX BN
Stock Exchange Ehmalk 300,000 300,000
H shares listed on The Stock EEEEHTEM
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited _ETTHIHAR 1,566,950 1,566,950
4,866,950 4,866,950

Pursuant to articles 49 and 50 of the Company's
Articles of Association, each of the unlisted shares,
the listed A shares and the listed H shares are all
registered ordinary shares and carry equal rights.

On 18 December 2006, the Company convened the
Relevant Shareholder's Meeting of A Share Shareholders
in which the Company's share reform plan was
approved. Details please refer to Post Balance Sheet
Event (Note 44).

RERRANDABEELT IR
At - SEIERER - ARRLAKH
REAIMEAREZERASHE

Fl| -

AARR-_BEAET=-A+NAB
BERES B NFARTISIER
IR EHEREBEA T ROIARED
BENENFR  HEREHOEER
(3¥#244) ©
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36. RESERVES 36. f#
Group
L.
Retained
Statutory and profits/
discretionary {accumulated
Share  reserves Revaluation Capital  Hedging  losses)
premium  XER  reserve  reseve reserve SENE/ Tatal
BXi GEABE HiEE REER ERER (RHER ait
{Hate {a}) {Note (b))  (Note 34)
(#R() (R (EEW)
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'OCO  RMB'000 RMBOOC  RMEODO  RME'000
AEBTL ARMTR ARETR ARSTR ARMTR ARETR AR®Tn
At 1 January 2005 ZERRF-B-BEE 1006455 LI 490888 (720057)  (91861) 590078 1657174
Unrealised gains on cashflow REEHHARR
hedges (Note 34) K ()
- gross -85 - - - 181,449 181,449
- tax -HE - - - - ) (27,17)
Realised gains on casiflow REELNERA
hedges (Note 34) f% (R
- gross -#E - - (20,759) - (20,159)
- tax -H3 - - 310 3116
Dividend relating to 2004 “EIEERRE - - - - - e (97.339)
Loss attributable to equity holders AR FAFLERA
of the Compzny il - - - (462307)  (467,307)
Transfer from retained profits to (R HAHHBE
reserves (Note (3)) BEERE) - %N - (26.,671) -
At 31 December 2005 ZERRETCA
ZT-0Eg 100645 407,842 490,688  (720,057) 44,72 (539) 1,229,315
At 1 January 2006 ZERAT-F-DEH 1006455 407,842 490,688  {720,057) 44,726 (539) 1,229,115
Unreatised gains on cashflow ~ HEEEHARE
hedges (Note 34} B & (R
- gross -8§ - - - - R - 1%
- tax -§§ - - - - {1,916) - {1916)
Realised gains on cashflow REEENZRR
hedges (Note 34) BHERM
- gross -84 - - - - (2843) - {2,843
- tax -§R - - - - 426 - 426
Revaluation reserve, net of tax, DREBREALR
arising from acquisition of s  BRHBEFIE
tontrolling interest in REREE
an associate Il 3 - - BAt6 - - - 3816
Loss attributable to equity holders 2R FBHEBE A
of the (ompany EeEA - - - - - (3,313,425) (3,313,425)
Transfer from retained profits to  §RE XA E
reserves (Note (a)) BREEDE) - 20,966 - - - (20966) -
At 31 December 2006 k1 7% e
St-AkH 1,006,455 428,808 514504 (720,057} 53,167 (3,334,930) (2,052,03)
206
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36. RESERVES (Cont'd) 36. f&fE (18)
Company
28
Retained
Statutory and profits/
discretionary {accumulated

Shere  reserves Revaluation Capital  Hedging  losses)
premium  EER Reseve  reserve  reseve REEH/ Total
BAAR fEARE HEHA BABR  ERAH (RHER At
(Note (2)) (Note (b)) {Note 34)
(8 () (@) (R
RMBT0C  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMEDOO  RMB'O00  RME'DD0
AESTn AEETRT ARYTR ARSTR ARMTR ARBTR AB%Tn

At 1 January 2005 Z§%1F-R-B
i85 1006455 182,336 435,007 (T20.057) (9,861 232917 1044867
Unrealised gains on cashflow FEEEMARR
hedges (Note 3¢) W& (3Ef34)
- gross -8E - - - - 181449 - 1B
- ta -HE - - - - @ - (o)
Realised gains an cashflow REEEMNCEA
hedges (Note 34) H# (R
- gross -2% - - - - {20,759 - (0,159
- tax -#a - - - - 3114 - 3114
Dividend relating to 2004 “IPMERRE - - - - - (7,339)  (97,339)
Loss for the year EEREE . - - - - (406,362)  (406,362)
At 31 December 2005 “ERRESC
S+-HE# 100645 182,336 435017 (T20057) 426 (BI0784) 61173
At 1 January 2006 ZRRAF-A-H
Bh SER 1,006,455 182,336 435,077 (720,057) 44726 (270,784} 677,753
Unreatised gains on cashflow LY §)
hedges {Note 34) g (A3
- gross -28 - - - - 1N - 1
- tax -RH - - - - [L916) - [1916)
Realised gains on cashflow BEEMNCERE
hedges (Note 34) W (M)
- gross -45 - - - - {2843 - (2883
- tax -HE - - - - 426 - 426
Loss for the year FERES - - - - - {2,663,713) (2,663,743)
At 31 December 2006 ZRRAETCA
St-2&4 1,006,456 182,336 435017 (720,087) 53,167 (2,936,497} (1977,519)
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36. RESERVES (Cont'd)

Notes:

(a)

208
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36. {5 (38)

B

Statutory and Discretionary Reserves EERERLRE
Group Company
nm 48
2006 2005 2006 2005
ZR%AE ZFRnF ZBERF ZERRF
RMB’'C00 RMB‘000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEMTR AR¥ETR ARWMTR AE%Ta
Statutory comman EEAHE
reserve fund 400,819 196,746 154,428 17,214
Statutory common EERES
welfare fund - 183,107 - 77,214
Discretionary common FELHE
reserve fund 27,989 27,989 27,908 27,908
428,808 407,842 182,336 182,334

Pursuant to the PRC regulations and the Group
companies’ Articles of Association, each of the Group
companies is required to transfer 10% of its profit
for the year, as determined under the PRC Accounting
Regulations, to a statutory common reserve fund
until the fund balance exceeds 50% of the Group
company's registered capital. The statutory common
reserve fund can be used to make good previous
years’ losses, if any, and to issue new shares to
shareholders in proportion to their existing
shareholdings or to increase the par value of the
shares currently held by them, provided that the
balance after such issue is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Pursuant to the PRC regulations and the Group
companies’ Articles of Association, each of the
companies was required to transfer 5% to 10% of its
profit for the year, as determined under the PRC
Accounting Regulations, to the statutory common
welfare fund. This fund can only be used to provide
staff welfare facilities and other collective benefits
to the Group companies’ employees. This fund is
non-distributable othar than on liquidation. From 1
January 2006 onward, the Group companies are
prohibited from providing further appropriations out
of their profit for the year to the statutory common
welfare fund pursuant to the revised Company Law.
The balance of the statutory common welfare fund
as at 1 January 2006 was converted into the statutory
common reserve fund.

BiEPEFERERARTNL
AEER  FREEAEETRESH
LRIETEHE A EE AT R A 10%58
AFELHE  HEE#RLMESH
BREHEMAE ENS0% <« EED
He i ARBHATEERR -
AR AR FIRTFER T
BRI AR HIR R A RE AR 1D 1)
HE  EgBEnEn T oRn
SERRG A E) 25% ©

BEFENFHATEEARFN
AFER ZLFEERTRE
R FTETE M E R F)B5%
Z10%BAATELRE - BHLHS
HARARE LRI LAENE
PRt b EMALRRIN
BEAER c BHEOBSERIEN
TESE - BREBEGETMHLA
% mZFERE—A—B# -
RACETRBUEET AR
THEELNEE ROBENE—
A—BEERAHENEBREEE
FEELHSE -
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
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for the year ended 31 December 2006
BE_FENEFEI A= +—HUHER

36.

RESERVES (Cont'd)
Notes: {Cont’d)

(2)

(b}

Statutory and Discretionary Reserves (Cont'd)
Each of the Group companies is permitted to transfer
5% of its profit for the year as determined under
the PRC Accounting Regulations, to a discretionary
common reserve fund. The transfer to this reserve is
subject te approval at shareholders’ meetings.

For the year ended 31 December 2006, under the
PRC Accounting Regulations, the Company recorded
a loss for the year. Accordingly, no profit
appropriation by the Company to the discretionary
common reserve fund has been made for the year
ended 31 December 2006 {2005: nil). The transfer
from retained profits to reserves for the year
represents the profit appropriation to reserves of
certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the difference between
the fair value of the net assets injected and the
nominal amount of the Company’s share capital issued
in respect of a group restructuring in June 1996.

I 1liAafiwivAL el L 1T LS

36. fi# f ()
=2 G

{a)

(b}

TEREELORE ()

KA RPRGHERFTE
0 FE AR 5% AEE LR
& o BOREHRERRAERGE
A e

FLRRBE-BESE+=ZA
=t+—-8utFEETEETE]
FEEEALGE « L AQFR
BE_TTARE+A=T-H
IFEEREEITRAEER (CFER
T ) AEFRRBENE
E A D T B O e e F)E
ol o)

B
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Far the year ended 31 December 2006
BE_FEAEFF_A=+—HIFE

37. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

On 27 December 2006, the Board of Directors passed
a resolution to dispose certain aged aircraft and
related flight equipment in the forthcoming 12-months
in consideration of the poor market reception and the
high maintenance cost of these aircraft. Subsequent
to the pass of the resolution, the Company has taken
active programme to locate potential buyers no
agreement has been reached as of the date of this
report. These aircraft together with the related flight
equipment and spare parts with an agqregate carrying
amount of RMB882 million has been classified as non-
current asset held for sale as at 31 December 2006.
Prior to the reclassification, a valuation deficit of
RMB1,035 million for these assets was recognised in
the income statement as a result of the asset
revaluation (Note 15). The liabilities directly
associated with these assets held for sale amounted
to RMB443 million as at 31 December 2006, comprising
finance lease obligation of RMB97 million with interest
rates of 6.24% and final maturities through to 2007
and bank loans of RMB346 million with interest rates
ranging from 5.79% to 6.32% and final maturities
through to 2008. The hank loans are secured by the
related aircraft at net carrying amount of RMB586
million.

37. GEFRBEE

RoBBXNFE+-A_++A &
NEHMBEHAMIBHE EBER
ERENEIHETERBISH AR
EmiRBE R R 12{EA AR EEER
BRI REMM AR - £33
BEEARHE - AoeiRiEEmS L
SEXRTEMER - BIEARER
s R A B BT 155 -
R RSN RERGORE
BEAEARK2BBTIEEN_F
EAFTZAZ+—ARELHE
JERBVEE - EERMHAT - 18HE
EEFEmMEERNFGRERAA
R¥1,0358 B BEESERRE
(sEf15) - RZBEXF+ A=
T8 BESERAnEERRIE
ANAaEAAREH3EET H
PEIEHEAERFEAREEE
TC (L8 6.24% » RIETHHAR &
ZEE+E)RERARE6ER
7L (B FE B5.79%%E6.32% - Rik
FEHEA-EEBNE) - ttERTT
BRZaAMMEETR - MRk
HEBEEEARKESSsGE T ©
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{Prepared in occordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BRE-_FRNF+-_A=+—BUHEER

38. NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT

(a) Cash generated from operations

38 BEELXMNREME

(a) BREZHELNRERE

2006 2005
ZRRRE —E2FhHEF
RMB'000 RMB000
ARMTR AR®TR
Loss before income tax F G (EE) (3,615,697) (577.432)
Adjustments for: JEFEE
Depreciation of property, WE - #Heak
plant and equipment wEiTE 4,566,309 3,911,722
Gains on disposals of property, H@¥E - #BK
plant and equipment 5% 8 B 4 i A (36,207) (8,073)
Share of results of associates {5 B & 02 B3R 4R (103,566) 9,030
Share of results of jointly B EEHTER
controlled entities R (29.595) 4,300
Amortisation of lease BEAEER
prepayments B 30,869 25,219
Net foreign exchange gains BE 534 F (888,402) {414,640)
Amortisation of deferred R AL M 2R B 4R
revenue (13,068) -
Fair value gains on financial BB EEDN
assets at fair value through nHE
profit or loss W 58 (17,784) (30,877)
Consumption of flight L L Rk
equipment spare parts 2 HE 326,248 239,134
{Reversal of allowance)/ R eHETY
allowance for obsolescence (B 1 A
of flight equipment spare (8@~
parts iR 31,734 (13,930)
Provision for impairment of FE W IR ZRL (A
trade and other receivables £ 98,156 25,325
Provision for post-retirement iR {K{& & F
benefits £ 146,968 102,459
Provision for staff housing EEEREEAU
allowance £ 30,656 36,231
Provision for aircraft overhaul T#EEXKEER
expenses £ 150,390 64,700
Revaluation deficit FlERE 1,035,343 -
Interest income FyE M A (120,161) {128,700)
Interest expenses FEHRE 1,821,870 1,100,357
Operating profit befare BEEAEEHN
working capital changes FEET 3,414,063 4,344,825
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for the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—SBFAFI-_A=+—HBuUFE

38. NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 38 MEESMWEHESME (E
STATEMENT (Cont'd)

(a) Cash generated from operations (Cont'd) (a) FEZDEENRERA
()
2006 2005
ZR8XE ZBE¥IEF
RMB'C00 RMB'000Q
ARMTR ARE TR
Changes in working capital CEEEEE
Flight equipment spare parts REEHEEMN (583,027) (294,969)
Trade receivables FE L5 B 3% 14,273 (112,027)
Amount due from related fE & RS 1 )
companies IR (147,007) (83,459)
Prepayments, deposits and ~ TEft & - TR R
other receivables H & H 3% (538,347) (306,283)
Sales in advance of carriage TEE#{ 68,510 101,490
Trade payables and notes FE 5 BR 3k B FE )
payables i (182,383) 821,222
Amounts due to related FE 15 # BR B 2 8]
companies IR 125,327 156,062
Other payables and accrued  EffE {5 K
expenses ERER 1,515,138 {(1,030,806)
Other long-term liabilities HibtREAE 23,627 (67,764)
Provision for aircraft overhaul TR XIE & H
expenses EE (67,762) (110,832)
Post-retirement benefit RIKIE
obligations B (61,986) (29,370)
Staff housing allowances BT EZEMAEE (35,361) (18,306)
Operating lease deposits BEMHEEES (86,555) -
44,447 (975,042)
Cash generated from operations &EE4AMBE 3,458,510 3,369,783
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for the year ended 31 December 2006
HE-FENFH+_A=+—BUFE

38. NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (Cont'd)

38. BEE £ MVIR S L (1)

(b) Non-cash transactions (b) REXB
2006 2005
—88xE _BELF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR®TRT
Investing activities not FEESHNERE
affecting cash: =25
Sale and leaseback Mg EiL
of aircrraft [0 8 7,940,164 -
Financing activities not REIHHIERE
affecting cash: &
Finance lease obligations BERBESD
incurred for acquisition of MEBRE
aircraft afE 2,350,978 991,640
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE-FENFF-A=+—HIUEFE

39. COMMITMENTS

(a)

Capital commitments

The Group and the Company had the following

39. &:H

(a) BAEX AR
AREEARREATHER

capital commitments: AR
Group Company
4] 47
2006 2005 2006 2005
Z8%AE —ZELE ZB%AF —_FTILHF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
AR®TR ARMTR AR®MTR AR%ETR
Authorised and ERER
contracted for: HEIL:cE
- Aircraft, engines and — R - BE®
flight equipment BRTHEEG 61,763,771 47,259,446 60,222,477 44,408,107
- Other property, plant —E &b -
and equipment BRELEE 567,582 96,827 561,220 70,170
- Acquisition of — ¥ B2 R
a subsidiary A E - 390,000 - 390,000
62,331,353 47,746,273 60,783,697 44,868,277
Authorised but not EFEER
contracted for: HEzL:oE
- Aircraft, engines and — R - BEH
flight equipment BRITEME 723,000 723,000 - -
- Other property, plant — H b4 -
and equipment BERBHE 7,772,639 13,424,055 7,268,631 13,281,864
8,495,639 14,147,055 7,268,631 13,281,864
70,826,992 61,893,328 68,052,328 58,150,141
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE_FFNFFI A=+ HIL¥E

39.

COMMITMENTS (Cont’d)

(2)

Capital commitments (Cont'd)

Contracted expenditures for the abave aircraft
and flight equipment, including depesits prior
to delivery, subject to future inflation increases
built into the contracts and any discounts
available upon delivery of the aircraft, if any,

were expected to be paid as follows:

39. A& ()

(a) BEX LA ()

LA R R ARATRBEIEHE
AIRS AR - BF
A REE A K0P AR AT IRAR A
B3 R B RAEES PRSI0

2% - FRES|IFMT

Group Company
£m a

2006 2005 2006 2005
Z8%5E _T¥RF —¥8AE _FTEIF
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARSTR ARMTR ARMTRE AERBTR
Within one year —fFR 14,894,068 9,006,906 13,352,744 7,301,334
In the second year FF 18,844,893 12,703,578 18,844,893 11,557,811
In the third year FZF 15,591,463 13,523,589 15,581,463 13,523,589
In the fourth year EMF 12,433,347 6,256,592 12,433,347 6,256,592
In the fifth year ERF - 5768781 - 5,768,781
61,763,771 47,259,446 60,222,447 44,408,107
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
HE_FENT+A=+—HiuFE

39. 7k ()
(b) BEHERAS
AR B 25 2 R ARG S T A

39. COMMITMENTS (Cont'd)
(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group and the Company had commitments

under operating leases to pay future minimum EEEMT -
lease rentals as follows:
Group Company
£W NG|
2006 2005 2006 2005
ZRERE _ERRF Z88XE —_FTEIF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARTRn AR¥ TR AR%®TR AR®TR
Aircraft, enginesand TR - REBHEB
flight equipment ROKE
Within one year —ER 2,984,137 1,633,301 2,609,673 1,444,458
in the second year FE-fF 2,961,023 1,550,209 2,596,944 1,361,362
In the third to F-FEF
fifth year inclusive FRF
(BIEBREME) 6,524,538 4,075,691 6,050,572 3,632,279
After the fifth year EFEUE 12,737,377 2,015,670 12,661,592 2,015,670
25,207,075 9,274,871 23,918,781 8,453,769
Land and buildings TwEEF
Within one year —FR 153,487 68,739 133,775 67,799
In the second year E_F 42,362 60,330 40,366 59,190
In the third to BE=FF
fifth year inclusive FRE
(BiEEERE) 71,587 44,951 69,590 44,463
After the fifth year TETE 54,535 2,846 54,535 2,846
321,971 176,866 298,266 174,298
25,529,046 9,451,737 24,217,047 8,628,067
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For the yeor ended 31 December 2006
HBE_FEAFEI A=+ BuHEF

40. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS 40. ¥ W B

(a)

Acquisition of CEA Wuhan

CEA Wuhan was an associate of the Company in
which the Company had 40% equity interests.

On 8 December 2005, the Company entered into
agreements with each of Wuhan Municipality
State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission (“Wuhan SASAC")
and Shanghai Junyao Aviation Investment
Company Limited (“Shanghai Junyao”) to
acquire (i) equity interests of 38% in CEA Wuhan
from Wuhan SASAC for a consideration of
RMB278 million, and (ii) equity interests of
18% in CEA Wuhan from Shanghai Junyao for a
consideration of RMB140 million, totaling
RMB418 million, respectively. The acquisition
was completed in January 2006. Proferma
financial information to reflect the acquisition
as if it had occurred on 1 January 2006 is not
presented as the impact would not have been
material to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of net assets acquired and related
goodwill are as follows:

(a) WBRMEZE
BEMREELRQRANBEDR
8]+ DR HA0%AE °

R_ETRF+-ANR ' &
ARIBARERAEEEEEIE
LZEE((RNEBREBEZE))  UR
EBERGEEAR A
([_EE95E]) 32 F M - BAG)
ARE273 8B EEKRE
Bl & 25 W B B AR 38% B
o G)AR¥ 0B EITIER
# N R AR 18%
MR HE - i AREW4188 8
7T e LERIMIBERZETRE
— BFERK o BRERI RN
BEANGE—F-HERZHZE
B ERIEAREE - AR
AMEBRYBEATE -

et 9 A E S ARRAR B R
BIERIIREAT

2006
—R8~EF
RMB'000
AR®T R
Purchase consideration: Y EE
- Cash —-BE 418,000
- Direct costs relating to — B s A EN
the acquisition EERRE -
Total purchase consideration WHEEiREE 418,000
Fair value of net assets acquired  FTWIEE EFEMN
- shown as below DHRE-WTERIF (160,229)
Goodwill (Note 14) mR (g 257,771
The goodwill is attributable to an increase in ELTREEA R BB NE

the Company's competitiveness as a result of
its increased size and the extension of its
business scope geographically to the central
regions of the PRC.

D R E BE e — iR
BB S - FE D
MEBEEA  EMIREERD
SMBE S -
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for the year ended 31 December 2006
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40.
(2)

218

BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (Cont'd)

Acquisition of CEA Wuhan (Cont'd)
The assets and liabilities arising from the

acquisition are as follows:

40. FIEWE (&)
(a) WOBRMEE (B

R EERRFEIIRET

Acquiree’s
carrying
Fair value amount
DAE IREE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTR
Property, plant and equipment % - BB 5 & 677,465 588,599
Lease prepayments BERAEER 75,302 75,302
Other long-term and HitRBHARGRDHEE
current assets 189,456 189,456
Trade receivables FE Wy % 3K 256,808 104,808
Cash and cash equivalents REEBREERY 19,266 19,266
Other long-term and HiRBHEGEBHAMG
current liabilities (868,797) (868,797)
Provision for aircraft R XEcRAEE
overhaul expenses {23,994) {23,994)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHERE (29,326) -
Minority interests in CEA ERRERBLAN
Wunan's subsidiaries LIS EEBEEER (10,056) (10.056)
Net assets AEEE 286,124 74,584
Share acquired Wi S A 4 56%
Net assets acquired WRAEZHE 160,229
Purchase consideration Wi B8 418,000
Goodwill [k 257,771
Cash outflow on business BRWHEEEZR e :
acquisition;
Purchase consideration BeEXmKEER
settled in cash 418,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & : FIREERED RS
acquired RREEED (19,266)
Purchase consideration paid EFEIFHKEERE
in prior year (28,000)
Cash outflow on business RSB Re RS
acquisition 370,734
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40.

BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (Cont'd)

(b)

Acgquisition of China Eastern Airlines
Development (HK) Co., Ltd. (“CEA
Development (HK)")

In March 2006, the Company acquired additional
40% equity interests in CEA Development (HK},
a former associate of the Company in which
the Company had 40% interests, for HK$4
million. After the acquisition of the additional
interests, the Company’s shares in CEA
Development (HK) has increased from 40% to
80%, CEA Development (HK) become a
subsidiary of the Company.

The assets and liabilities arising from the
acquisition are as follows:

T1% 1 THTRAT T iA e v G B BT R §F s

40. U8 ()

(b) WBRMBRE (FB)/RA
ARMBRE (FB)D

AATIRTERNFEZAMA
RENEETHUBENER
(B 40%HRE - RMERE
(BE)EX DTN 2 A2 H
AT H40%AEH) — KA
HBATIEE - T AWK
2% - BRMEE (FE) niRE
H40%BINEL0% - EMER
BAADTISHELE -

Fri g EERARIIRAT

Acquiree’s
carrying
Fair value amount
DR{E REE
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥TIT ARBTR
Property, plant and equipment 1% - #E R RMH 45,292 45,292
Cash and cash equivalents ReREEEEY 8,341 8,341
Other long-term and HitRERRB AR
current liabilities (38,363) (38,363)
Net assets BEEEE 15,270 15,270
Share acquired U B8 ARt 40%
Net assets acquired WEEEEE 6,108
Purchase consideration W BE B 48 (4,136)
Negative goodwill B 1,972
Cash inflow on business BEBaAEzRERE -
acquisition:
Purchase consideration Be&T N EBER
settled in cash 4,136
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 3 : FRIBEEFRE
acquired RESEED (8,341)
ash inflow on business HUY BB ZRERA
acquisition (4,205)
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group is controlled by CEA Holding, which owns
approximately 61.64% of the Company’s shares as at
31 December 2006. The aviation industry in the PRC
is administrated by the CAAC. CEA Holding and the
Graup is ultimately controlled by the PRC government,
which also controls a significant portion of the
productive assets and entities in the PRC (collectively
referred as the “SOEs”).

(2)

220

Related party transactions

The Group sells air tickets through sales agents
and is therefare likely to have extensive
transactions with other state-controlled
enterprises, and the employees and their close
family members of SOEs while such employees
are on corporate business. These transactions
are carried out on normal commercial terms
that are consistently applied to all of the
Group’s customers. Due to the large volume and
the pervasiveness of these transactions,
management is unable to determine the
aggregate amount of the transactions for
disclosure. Therefeore, retail transactions with
these related parties are not disclosed herein.
The Directors of the Company believe that
meaningful related party disclosures on these
retail transactions have been adequately made.

41 FREEALRS

REFERAEDITS - BE-F
BRE+ZA=Z+HI - PEE
FREEEEE AR R161.64%2 % o
TEEANTRREEEAMEEG
£NTEREN - PEEMEMER
EMghh BT - @i ¢
BT ietieE BN T B
(BRAIEELED -

(a) BREALXZR
AEBERBHERBELE#R
R-BaBEeosmnES - &
RERARRE2MEFRREE D
B FER BIE R R 5B
BADRIRERZNGZS - it
ﬁx%mmﬁmﬁﬁ%%Aﬁ
17 - BIZIGREE R, ER
MRS — 20 - BER AR S
HERERERY %ﬁ@ﬁ
EERLRBIARSNE
B At Mﬁ@ﬁfgﬁ%
WRAERE - FNEBEERER
ERER S AMMAERER
BRI -
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(a) Related party transactions (Cont'd)

N EBEALRS @)
(a) AREALRS (8)

The other related party transactions are: HibGEEALRS
Income/
(expenses or payments)
WA/ (RARZEEH)
Nature of transaction Related party 2006 2005
XRHE EHEBEAL ZRBAEF ZEERF
RMB 000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETR
With CEA Holding or companies directly
or indirectly held by CEA Holding:
BRERAEMEIORENEENER
EREEHNAF
Interest income on deposits at an EAGF** 8,036 5,341
average rate of 0.72% per annum HMM
(2005: 0.72% per annum)
FRASWA - FEHHRT2E
(ZE22HE: FEHFER0.72E)
Interest expense on loans at rate of 5.01% EAGF** (23,393) {14,855)
per annum (2005: 4.50% per annum) LR E A
HRAEEH  FHEs5.01E
(ZZT0LH  FRFEL0E)
Commission expense on air tickets sold on SDATC** {6,085) {7.402)
behalf of the Group, at rates ranging from HERKE
3% to 9% of the value of tickets sold Shanghai Tourism (1,491) (21,819)
EREMMELAREREHNBERE (KK} Co., Ltd
BEEDREBEZEENI%E% TERE(FER)ERQT
ZENETFLERHE
Handling charges of 0.1% to 2% for purchase EAIEC** (40,971) {40,590}
of aircraft, flight equipment, flight ERAMmEgBOER
equipment spare parts, other property, R
plant and equipment
BERE  RITRE ROKBEM
REMME - BB RRAFR A
B0.1%ZE2%F AR E
Repairs and maintenance expense for Wheels & Brakes (60,066) (63,972)
aircraft and engines LEEBATHGEHE
EARERBEYHNGERRELR AEBRITEARDF
STA (126,114) (104,853)
BHEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
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41, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd) 41. EREALRS (H)
(a) Related party transactions (Cont’d) (a) BEREALRS (D
Income/
(expenses or payments)
KA/ (RAREMEH)
Nature of transaction Related party 2006 2005
¥EEH AHEAL ZB8REF —ETRF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AR T
Supply of food and beverages Shanghai Eastern Air {213,360) (184,306)
BERBRUEROHER {atering Co., Ltd
FERFRER®
AR A
Qingdao Eastern Air (16,082) {15,055)
Catering Investment
{o., Ltd.
BSERTMER®
FRAA
Xian Eastern Air (22,821) (15,079)
Catering Investment
Co.,Ltd.
BREARTRM
AR 2R
Yunnan Eastern Air (31,977) (17,451)
Catering Investment
Co.,Ltd.
EERTMERM
R LA
Advertising expense CAASC (11,583) (8.612)
BEHEA FERAMEYR
BR LA
Purchase of aviation equipment Shanghai Eastern (11,303) (8,987)
RERBEHE Aviation Equipment

Manufacturing

Corporation
FERAMERE

RERA

995
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(Prepared in gccordance with Internotionel Financial Reporting Standards)

(IEERE M IR &R AR )
for the year ended 31 December 2006
BE_FFAFH-_A=+-GiLFE

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)
{a) Related party transactions {Cont’d)

*

* &

The Group acquired the aviation business of
CEA Northwest and CEA Yunnan and an
additional equity interest of 56% in CEA
Wuhan with effect from June 2005 and
January 2006 respectively. Transactions with
CEA Northwest and CEA Yunnan up to 30 June
2005 and with CEA Wuhan up to 31 December
2005 are regarded as related party
transactions.

EAGF is also a 25% owned associate of the
Group; SDATC and EAIEC are both a 45%
owned associates of the Group.

4. BHEALXRS @)
(a) EREALTRS (4

*  AEEREARMGEILLEH
EMEEQTOMEER
AR ERME #R56%FINRE
EH - PR _BRREFR
AR-BB FE—R4&m-
R-FTRESRBE=TRZ
HEEMRELLANERE
HLTINES  UBER-F
SBRE+TZA=Z+—HZH
HEMRENZS - 9ER
BEREALTRS -

= FEREEAARHEBER25%
B s B 0 m - RERM
EEMELEOARAREE
AOERA4LIEYBE

NG
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MBHRERE

{Prepared in accordance with Internationg! Financial Reporting Standards)
(HEBR A R 3R & R &)

For the yeor ended 31 December 2006
HE—FENEF—A=1+—HBUFE

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(a)

224

Related party transactions (Cont'd)

A EREALRS (@
(a) EREALRS (B)

Income/
(expenses or payments)
KA/ (REERXG&EH)
Nature of transaction Related party 2006 2005
XENtH BEREAL —28XE —BZTRF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETR
With CAAC and its affiliates:
BYERARZAR
(ERERREHNEHE
Civil aviation infrastructure levies paid to CAAL 696,428 466,191
REMBEBUNMEMEVERES TREERER
Aircraft insurance premiums paid through CAAC 168,972 201,653
CAAC which entered into the insurance HTERERER
policy on behalf of the Group
BARMAEYARERR
With other SOE:
RAMGBEAERK:
Take-off and landing fee charges State-controlled airports 3,876,737 2,461,858
Fe# B R BE S
Purchase of aircraft fuel State-controlled fuel 10,242,349 4,571,155
BREMM suppliers
BEmAEREY
Ticket reservation service charges for Fravel Sky Technology {209,572) (124,677}
utilisation of computer reservation system Limited
BB RRRRS R hEREMERBIE QA
Interest income on deposits at an average State-controlled banks 18,701 30,948
rates of 0.72% per annum RERT
{2005: 0.72% per annum)
ERASERA  FEHNELTAE
(Z22nF - FTHME2E)
Interest expense on loans at an average State-controlled banks 1,227,278 790,478

rate of 5.53% per annum

(2005: 4.54% per annum)
ERUBER FRHHNEs53E

(Z2FEF  FXENRL54E)

A RT
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(EEERU B R EREE)

for the year ended 31 December 2006
BE-_FFNF+-R=+—HUHEE

41.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Related party transactions (Cont'd)

ITTIRAT T W itAl wiheld L 150 T et

41. BREALRE (H)

(a) FEREALXS ()

Income/
(expenses or payments)
WA/ (BRRXNEHE)
Nature of transaction Related party 2006 2005
o8 B3 EREAL —BRAE —EFRE
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBTT
Commission expense on air tickets sold on other PRC airlines 89,977 153,528
behalf of the Group at rates ranging from P EAKMEME QR
3% to 9% of the value of tickets sold
ENHEANELARARELAEHBR
e A2HBREBREEEDI%
ZensfNBEEL RHE
Supply of food and beverages other state-control 469,255 368,120

EARBBEERNER

Balances with related companies

(i)  Amounts due from related companies

enterprises

HibBHEX

(b) FBAE QTR

() BUEBERAAGRE

Group Company
Em NG
2006 2005 2006 2005
Company TR ERE —REAE —RRIF —285F —EZLE
RMB’000 RMB000 RMEB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETR AR®TR ARETR
CEA Holding PRBEREH 298,287 57,773 298,287 57,773
SDATC EEME 30,908 43,223 30,908 43,223
Shanghai Tourism & ik i (%)
(HK) Co., Ltd el TN 5,001 23,177 5,001 23,177
CEA Development M ER
(HK) (FE) AR
N - 66,457 - 66,457
CEA Wuhan R E - 3,541 - 3,541
EAIEC HAHMREEHD
HRRE " 5,090 4,956 5,090 2,357
Other related Hit A8
companies AL 13,343 6,585 11,833 6,585
Total &5t 352,719 205,712 351,209 203,113
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

R EF RN RN e F W -

(I EIRR RS 2R e L RIiR )
For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE_FEAFF-_A=+—H14FF

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(b) Balances with related companies (Cont’d)

(1)

(i)

226

Amounts due from reloted companies
(Cont'd)

Except for the amount due from CEA
Holding, which is reimbursement in
nature, all other amounts due from
related companies are trade in nature,
interest free and payable within normal
credit terms given to trade customers.

Amounts due to related companies

T et e e B R WS W

4. EBREALRE (@B

(b) HERE A T ()
() BIKEBEATHE

()

B S B A MR
I BT ERPRERERE
BRESN - 2HE SN
H THBRIBTRES
BE— R R ER o

(i) B EHELARKE

Group Company
£m 248
2006 2005 2006 2005
Company tREMH ZRRAE —RFLF —VE8AE ZFRIAF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTR AR¥TR ARMTR AR®TR
EAIEC RAMTEED
ARAT (270,514)  (371,123)  (179,582) (289,773}
CEA Holding TERMER (40,338) (94,216) (40,338) (94,216)
Shanghai Eastern FERHMET (7.261) - (7.261) -
Airlines Catering R @& AR L 7
Co. Ltd.
Yunnan Eastern EFEAIMRE
Air Catering BRBERAT
Investment
Co., Ltd. (11,036) - (11,036) -
CAASC LERAMEME
BB A (101) (2,285) (101) (2,285)
Other related HibERE LA
companies (19,227) {108,406) (8,044) {99,915)
Totat A% (348,477)  (576,030)  (246,362)  {486,189)

Except for amounts due to EAGF and CEA
Holding, which are reimbursement in
nature, all other amounts due to related
companies are trade in nature, interest
free and payable within normal credit
terms given by trade creditors.

PRAERMNERELTR
HRTREMNRRMBER
TEIRMREEKEN - 2
REZEYE - THERE
TRESEF—HNES
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(IR B AR LR iR )
For the year ended 31 December 2006
HE—FENFTZAZS+HUFE

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

M EBEREALRE (8

(b) Balances with related companies (Cont'd) (b) BREQFIRE ()
(iii) Short-term deposits and short-term (iii) B & 2 TEEER
foans with an associate LUREHER
Average interest rite Group Company
PaAE 11} 29
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Company 29 CQRAE CPIIE QAR C¥TRE CRWAR CEEAS
RMB'000 RMB'000 RME'000 EME000
ARSTR ARMTT ARNTR AR%TR
Short-term deposits {included  MER (BH
in Prepayments, Deposits ERAR BR
and Other Receivables) RREEESRRA)
“LAGF™ EE Y 0.7% 07 755665 4707 59,637 1,238
Short-term loans (included ~ HEAEE
in Borrowings) (aERARRA)
"EAGF"* L E 5.1% 45% 788,991 213,702 182,000 180,702
. EAGF is a 25% owned associate of *  HERMELEIREEAR
the Group; 25% AR 2 B R )
(iv) State-controlled banks and other (iv) BERITHURRME
financial institutions BEE
Average interest rate Group Company
THH2 &3 A
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2085
Company 23 CQRAE CRTRE CRYAE C-P9RF  C9EAE CFRRE
RMB'000 RMB'C00 ENB'000 RHB'QOD
ABBTR ARSTR ARBTR ARMTR
Bank deposits (included 81nEZ
in cash and cash (BERER
gquivalents) REE/H) 0% 0.7% 759,110 1,196,963 571,863 755,225
long-term bank borrowings  REAETER  5.5% 3.0% 12,825,763 10438483 11,230,805 10,066,664
(¢) Guarantees by holding company (c) R LQTELMER

As at 31 December 2006, bank loans of the
Group and the Company with an aggregate
amount of RMB695 million and 100 million
respectively (2005: RMB1,282 million and 200
million} were guaranteed by CEA Holding (Note

28).

R_BERE+-_RAR=1+—
H - ZEMEERQTERITHER
P ARK6SEETRARSE
108 BT(CEERE : AR
#1282 BB TR AR 2008
BAL)RTREMEEEDE
R (F¥¥Ees) -
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MBHRLE

(Prepared in accordance with Internotional Financial Reparting Standards)

(RS B ELREY)
For the year ended 31 December 2006
HE _FFAFLI-A=+—HIER

41.

42,

43.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)
(d)

Key management compensation

e w8 W e §W

e

41,

AREALXS (&)
(d) BRITRASMS

2006 2005
—ERAE -—ETEF
RMB'000Q RMB'000
AR®TR AR%FIT
Salaries, bonus, By - JEEL -
allowances and benefits e RER 1,365 1,825
ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 42 SRER AT

The Directors regard CEA Holding, a state-owned
enterprise established in the PRC, as being the ultimate
holding company.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In 2005, the Company received a legal claim in the
United States of America for unspecified damages by
family members of certain victims in the air crash of
an aircraft of CEA Yunnan which occurred on 21
November 2004 in Baotou, Neimonggol, the PRC.

Management has engaged legal representatives to
vigorously contest the proceedings. The proceedings
are still in an early stage and in the opinion of the
Directors, based on professional advice, it is unlikely
that there will be any significant adverse effect to
the financial position of the Group.

229

43.

ADENEBAR NS E R
RMENARA TN ERERAR
RIRAT -

HARAE

R-ZRRE  FATEEDEE
o BEARN-REmEL— A
=+ — BEAER A A — R
NSRS BEEN D TRER
BERART S HOBMN -

BIEEERAAR RN LiREa
fRHEEAR o v DERIZE
PEER - MEERCREEALREER
A RFRAHESE BRMIHR
AT EERERNTRRE -
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(EER B B & R 3

For the yeor ended 31 December 2006
HE—FRAEf-A=1T—HIFF

44, POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT
(a) Share Reform

On 18 December 2006, the Company convened
the Relevant Shareholder’s Meeting of A Share
Shareholders in which the Company’'s share
reform plan {the “Share Reform Plan”) was
approved. According to the Share Reform Plan,
each holder of circulating A shares of the
Company whose name appeared on the
shareholders’ register on the register date of
the Share Reform Plan (i.e. 10 January 2007)
would be offered 3.2 shares as a consideration
by CEA Holding, the only holder of the unlisted
and non-circulating shares of the Company, for
every 10 circulating A shares held by it. The
original non-circulating shares held by CEA
Holding would be granted the status of listing
after implementation of the Share Reform Plan.
The Share Reform Plan was approved by the
Ministry of Commerce on 4 January 2007 and
implemented on 9 January 2007. In this
connection, CEA Holding granted 96 million
shares in total to the holders of the circulating
shares and the original non-circulating shares
held by CEA Holding were granted the status of
listing subject to certain circulating conditions
on 12 January 2007,

44 HERBKRER
(a) RESEXEFRR

ARRRZEEARET A+
NBEERTREDENEAR
MSEERREE  FRA6
TRBEAMEROGERA
TIRESENEAR) ([BRK
FR]) - REBERNSZE - HEfL
E=EEAR QR —IERD
ARARE - AR A RE
EARES LR R E—
A+ BEIameRaae)iiiE
ARIRE Z 100 13,2086
Z . LEAEMEEMEEN
RRRZEFRBRHES EhiR
REMEELH - B A #ER
—BREE-AMARGRE
ARETEEBEHBEIL R
FRH-E—-ANBER - Tt
R TR - M ERAGR
96,000,000R8 8217 - =T
TrHE—F+-R - REE
1BH A D B IER BN R
AR S IEER LT REE -
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(R EIR Rl R iR & SRR )

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE-FEAFEF A=+ —OiIL%E

44. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT (Cont'd)
{a) Share Reform (Cont’d)

After the implementation of Share Reform Plan,
the share structure of the Company will be as

St St Vet St Nt BN R N B0 e

44 ZFHBEEE (#)

(a) RESBEREFRE

ARER TR ITRER - AR RAIAR
EBREBINT

follows:

Prior to Share Reform

After Share Reform

BOTHEZSN BITHERE®
% of total % of total
No. of no. of No. of no. of
shares held shares shares held shares
rRE(R) HERG BREK) GARS
b B it
Unlisted and &1 7R i 38 A%
non-circulating shares
Shares held by KiFAR
the PRC Government 3,000,000,000 61.64 - -
Circulating shares EBERHT
with restricted o i B AR
transfer held by B R#FHAR
the PRC Government - - 2,504,000,000 59.67
Circulating shares ERSHETM
without restricted i R
transfer
RMB Common bl i 0
shares listed AREERE
within the PRC 300,000,000 6.16 396,000,000 8.13
Foreign shares BAN LT
listed outside ShE RR
the PRC 1,566,950,000 32.20 1,566,950,000 32.20
Girculating mEA A
shares total 1,866,950,000 38.16 1,962,950,000 40.33
Total number Bir@eE

of shares

4,866,950,000 100

4,866,950,000 100
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{Prepared in accordance with International financial Reporting Standards)

(IR B R 3 & SR AR )
For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE —BENFF+_A=+—81HEE

44.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT {Cont’'d)

(b)

Tax reform

On 16 March 2007, the National People's
Congress approved the Corporate Income Tax
Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “new
CIT Law”}. This legislation reduces the corporate
income tax rate for domestic enterprises from
33% to 25% with effect from 1 January 2008.
In addition, certain preferential and reduced
tax rates may be withdrawn, subject to
grandfathering provisiens.

Since deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled, the
change in the applicable tax rate will affect
the determination of the carrying values of
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
of the Group. As at the date that these financial
statements are approved for issue, detailed
measures of the new CIT Law have yet to be
issued, specific provisions concerning the
applicable income tax rates, computation of
taxable income, as well as specific preferential
tax treatments and their related transitional
provisions for the periods from 2008 and
onwards have not been clarified. Consequently,
the Group is not in a position to reasonably
assess the impact, if any, to the carrying values
of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liahilities
as the result of the implementation of the new
CIT Law. The Group will further evaluate the
impact to its operating results and financiat
positions of future periods as more detailed
measures and other related regulations are
announced.

44 HEEHBEBE (E)
(b) BiEME

—ZEZLF=A+7H - 2E
ABRRKRRSHRATPEA
REMBCEMEHZ ([H
TEMBUED - FEHRZE
BRZISETNEHREN  KE
BERFBRIERADEEAME
ERMEHERUIIRMEE
25% ° th5h - REE B ATEA
NS EBRHETEEHER
E e

BB AT TR A E TR R
REZERERAYZEERRRK
BEEMEERNREGE
At =R e B A RE
BRERAEENRELHRAR
FIRREEE - EFMBHRERM
oS 2 A1 - BRI EA
FRAMTRARERAM -
PlanE RFT ISR &R a4 E R
A ERRM ARG E IS
R R o 2 HE R TE 2008
Ko LA T8 e R ERGR » Bt -
AREEA AT T RE R D F AR
SRR E AR MAIEE
HREEMRERAR RErE
HROMBEE LS EF
f o AR HEER
B AME B ERFRE LT
i 9 2 S I £ SRR SR A0 B B9551R
praick 2
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BiteasERER

{Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Requlations)
(EPEARHMBERHERIGR)

For the yeor ended 31 December 2006
BE—FFNFV_A=F+—HUEER

2006 2005

—82XxFg _—_TEREF

RMB'000 RMB’'000

ARMTR ARETR

Revenue from main Operations: TEEBRA 36,805,731 26,392,028
Less: Main Operating Cost W TRERIER K 34,052,721 22,847,511
Business Taxes and levies FEXEHE RH M 932,748 643,285

Profit from Main Operations FTEHEFE 1,820,262 2,901,232
Add: Other operating income mn: EmEERNE 777,745 617,208
Less: Operating Expense WEERA 2,554,296 1,951,059
General & Administrative Expense EEHEA 1,907,583 1,302,743
Financial cost - net MR- 558 761,678 570,698

Loss from Operations BXEER (2,625,550) (306,060)
Add: Investment Income o AW 26,700 6,405
Subsidy Income iRl A 461,869 175,422
Non-operating Income il A 175,345 228,265

Less: Non-operating Expenses o EEME W (885,866) (1,526)
Total Loss SRR (2,847,502) 105,558
Less: Income Tax o FRig (13,234) (9,549)
Minority Interests L ERR B2 (80,757) (35,535)

Net Loss RER (2,779,979) 60,474
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BtGReEERER

{Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

(1GR i A B HME &5 ERIERD
As at 31 December 2006
RoBENEF-FAZ+—H8

lLAaltldl IV T

2006 2005
—RBeRE —EETE
RMB‘000 RMB’000
ARMFR AEETT
Assets BE
Total Current Assets REIAEAS 9,357,524 8,948,963
Long-term Investment RECEER 1,198,053 761,722
Total Fixed Assets BTE&EESR 46,955,260 45,543,930
Total Intangible assets BEREER
& Other Assets HiEESE 2,500,752 2,175,576
Deferred Tax Debits i R R T 117,741 128,482
Total Assets BEES&& 60,129,330 57,558,673
Liabilities & Shareholder's Equity EMBERRESR
Total Current Liabilities mEBAEES 33,382,775 30,715,495
Total long-term Liabilities EHEESS 22,608,827 19,746,733
Deferred Tax Credits B REE 363,577 417,049
Total Liabilities afest 56,355,179 50,879,277
Minority Interests A AR BAE AR 738,682 864,827
Total Shareholder's Equity MEEREST 3,035,469 5,814,569
Total Liabilities & BfERRE
Shareholder’s Equity HMZas 60,129,330 57,558,673
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Pt on B 35 & R

31 December 2006
ZPENELZHAEF—F

(A) SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) AND PRC ACCOUNTING
REGULATIONS

The Group's accounting policies, which conform with
IFRS, differ in certain aspects from PRC Accounting
Regulations. Differences between IFRS and PRC
Accounting Regulations which have a significant effect
on the consolidated (loss)/profit attributable to equity

(A) BRI REEEARETES

SFERINEAREZER

A RER AR SRS EN R P
HEETREE T ENER - &
PREF TSRS E R R E &R 280
ZRUTLFERSEE ARGES
(E18) /#rRAEREEEESR

holders and consolidated net assets of the Group are EMNEAEBBIENT -
summarised as follows:
2006 2005
ZRE¥AF ZEEhHF
Note RMB'000 RMB000
iR AR®TR AR®T
Consolidated (loss)/profit attributable 2 ARMEHE AME
to equity halders of the Company 54 (R /HH
As stated in accordance with PRC BETBATERE
Accounting Regulations | (2.779,979) 60,474
Impact of IFRS and other ERHBRERRNYE R
adjustments: EMSFE -
Difference in depreciation charges BRI R ERAER
for flight equipment due to i &k R 1T
different depreciation lives REFENER (a) 239,467 115,086
Difference in depreciation charges HRTEITEHER -
for aircraft due to different EERBHEER
depreciation lives, revaluation RBOTBEHER
and component accounting (b} {(676,820) (611,368)
Provision for post-retirement benefits R K& B FI M0 M f (c) (84,982) (133,417
Unsealised (losses)/gains on derivatives $TE BT EMATR
(B%) /2 (d) (42,344) 27,779
Deficit on revaluation of property, WmEx -BELRSHE _
plant and equipment FEHE (e} (235,046) -
Recognition af gain on sales & GHREARRaNE
leaseback (f 74,207 -
Equity investment difference PEETENTRERE
amortisation under PRC GAAP EEOBE (9) 42,010 -
Goodwill on acquisition of a subsidiary WEHEBLFEELANER] () {85,119} -
Reversal of revaluation surplus BT E
relating to land use right TiEEE G} 8,420 8,420
Others Hi {k) (7.988) (89,488)
Minority interests PR EIER ) 58,585 6,957
Current and deferred tax adjustments HRERELHERARE (m) 176,164 148,250
As stated in accordance with IFRS REERUMBERSERR (3,313,425) (467,307)
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31 December 2006
—EFNFF-A=—H

‘ (A)

SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) AND PRC ACCOUNTING
REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

ER RS ERRDEE

HERMERER (B

2006 2005
—88XE ZEThE
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
gE ARBTR ARSI
Consolidated net assets GARERE
As stated in accordance with PRC REFEZTRA
Accounting Regulations PN 3,774,151 6,679,397
Impact of IFRS and other EEHBERSEANFEER
adjustments: Hin§ % -
Difference in depreciation charges for AR TRAIFEHAER
flight equipment due to different MiERRITRE
depreciation lives iR L0ES 3 (a) 1,536,627 1,297,160
Difference in depreciation charges for ~ BIRTRAERFR -
aircraft due to different depreciation EffRASGHEX
lives, revaluation and component REHENZR
accounting (b) {997,831) (321,011)
Provision for post-retirement benefits Rk R T MEH (c) (1,325,358} {1,240,376)
Unrealised gains on derivatives FASBTAMAERYSE (d) 47,983 72,505
Deficit on revaluation of property, W BERSETG
plant and equipment i {E (e) (235,046) -
Recognition of gain on sales and EhERERN YR
leaseback (f) 74,207 -
Equity investment difference hEAEERTRIERE
amortisation under PRC GAAP ERmAEH (9) 42,010 -
Goodwill on acquisition Iy B2 fit B 2 7]
of a subsidiary Eznmy {h (85,119} -
Goodwilt and negative goodwill BREREERNEN (i) 688,311 688,311
Reversal of revaluation surplus hiETRERE
relating to land use right FfhiEE (i) (340,931) (349,351)
Others Hith {k) 11,718 (3,232)
Minority interests LY HER ) (18,351) (42,350)
Current and deferred tax adjustments ~ RBREERAIE (m) 304,272 137,489
As stated in accordance with IFRS REBRBUBEHEERIIR 3,676,643 6,918,542
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31 Pecember 2006
ZREAFEL+ZRA=+—H

(A) SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN (A) BV BREERNEPEHE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING sTEANEXRER (H)
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) AND PRC ACCOUNTING
REGULATIONS (Cont'd)

{a) Under IFRS, rotables are accounted for as (a) RIEFEEIMBREED  SE
property, plant and equipment and is FEHEREEEESRR - I
depreciated on a straight-line basis to write ETIRITE o TEE 2 EETIARK
off the cost or revalued amount to their residual A EEEREETRE I
value over their estimated useful lives. Under ABESREIRIARME 2 a5t
PRC Accounting Regulations, rotables are 8 2 PR B 8 00 B R JR AR RE
classified as current assets and the costs are A - BEPESELY T
amortised on a straight-line basis over a period EESEIRRBEE - B
of 5 years. SR AR T AR -

{b)  Under IFRS, depreciation of aircraft is calculated (b) RIEEFRIFRELER - el
to write off their costs or revalued amounts on ZIESUER A ERER
a straight-line basis over their expected useful EfLFHREEE - ZHE20EZ
lives to their residual values. Under PRC M EAERIZERESE
Accounting Requlations, on or before 30 June e RIBPEETER - B
2001, depreciation of aircraft was calculated BE-FRA=+P51 - mE
to write off their costs on a straight-line basis BB BRI 8 AL A AR A
over their expected useful lives of 10 to 15 3% EEL10E 15 2 Tt
years to their residual values of 3%. With effect AERFRAEREHE - @
from 1 July 2001, depreciation of aircraft under —EE—#+HA—Bi#  RiE
PRC Accounting Regulations is calculated to PRI L REREDE
write off their costs on a straight-line basis BT & TH LA B A AR R 5% B (E
over their expected useful lives of 20 years to & - 20 2 R RIE A ER
their residual values of 5% of costs and the ABLBRUABEE - MUteBIET
change is applied prospectively. RAERENRE -
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31 December 2006
—RENEF A=A

(A) SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN (A)

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) AND PRC ACCOUNTING
REGULATIONS (Cont'd)

In addition, under IFRS, for owned aircraft and
aircraft under finance leases, costs of overhaul
are capitalised as a component of property,
plant and equipment and are depreciated over
the estimated period between overhauls, on a
straight-line basis. Upon completion of an
overhaul, any remaining carrying amount of the
cost of the previous overhaul is derecognised
and charged to the income statement.

Under PRC Accounting Regulations, prior to
2003, major overhaul costs for owned aircraft
and aircraft under finance leases were provided
at specific rates applicable to the related models
of aircraft. Effective from January 2003,
gverhaul costs for owned aircraft and aircraft
under finance lease were firstly offset against
the provision brought forward as incurred.
Overhaul costs are directly charged to the
income statement after the provision is fully
utilised.

ERUEREENRPES
AEAIMERER (8)

o RIEERMEHESE
8l - aERABEHERBNAN
BEREFARBERAMHT
BB XL - WA AR
PAESREFHESTE - E—BX
ETTARE - BAEEREaIKR
&AM PRI LA
ISR o IREDESHER
RZZZ=FNH - AEER
BHERENAEERIRHEE
AR ELLRER - BZFF=
F— ARG - HREaERRE
HERENAEBBAERE
R E TR A R R IR AL
EREERE  SEBRED
iy AXERRELHEE
BRI

REFEGEHER] R2FF
ZFLAR - FFARBAKIER
AR ELLRER - B
—ET=F—- AL SIRE
SR EREAKE RRAER
RILASFELL R TRER
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(A) SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) AND PRC ACCOUNTING
REGULATIONS (Cont'd)

(c)

(d)

238

Under IFRS, employees’ post-retirement benefits
under defined benefit schemes are required to
be recognised over the employees’ service
period. Under PRC Accounting Regulatiens, such
benefits are recognised upon payment.

Under IFRS, change in fair value of the
derivative financial instruments is recorded in
reserve when the derivative financial
instruments qualify for hedging accounting and
such a change in fair value of the derivative
financial instruments are recognised in the
income statement if the derivative financial
instruments do not qualify for hedging
accounting. Under PRC Accounting Regulations,
the gains and losses on derivative financial
instruments are recognised in the income
statement upon their maturities.

(A) SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES
BETWEEN INTERNATIONAL

FINANCIAL

REPORTING

STANDARDS (“IFRS”) AND

PRC

ACCOUNTING

REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

()

(d)

REBERGFHREER  EF
BENEEIT - BTRIKER
FFmAER IREFHAELE
e REBPESFTEN - BT
RIRBEMH B TERKRAR
B AR

RIBERM B HREER] - 14
TRTAAAHEDEENE
HEEHS AR - TEAR
EWGSMERMITELA - R
ERAHEBEREARETT
e RIBPEGH LR - 74
TR T A0 M SR KA EIH
B R RT -
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31 December 2006
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(A) SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) AND PRC ACCOUNTING
REGULATIONS (Cont'd)

(e}  Under IFRS, non-current assets held for sale
{including aircraft, engines and flight
equipment) are stated at lower of carrying
amount or fair value. Under PRC Accounting
Regulations, impairment is provided against
these assets after making reference te the net
realisable values. In view of items (a) and (b)
above, carrying amount of aircraft, engines and
rotables under IFRS and PRC Accounting
Regulations are different because of different
useful lives applied and valuation. As a result,
valuation deficit and impairment loss accounted
for under IFRS and PRC Accounting Regulations
respectively are different.

() In 2006, the Company entered into sale and
leaseback transactions for certain aircraft
resulting in operating leases. The sales proceeds
less selling expenses was higher than the
existing carrying cost. Under IFRS, the
difference has been recognised immediately in
the income statement. Under PRC Accounting
Regulations, such a difference is deferred and
amortised over the lease period.

(A) B BHREENRDES
AERNERER (§)

(e) RIREBBXEATEIRE R - FiH

ERE - FPRESERAFH
BARBEAE - rEETE
AT RS EERKRIRRZEE
SHEREZR - AR il
BE—(a)R(b)Fridl - R EIR
B REER T HPRgE
Bl - BB ESERE
HETREATHETRARE
s RBUE % F A EMREF
B E - R_TERFTHA
=+—B  ZFEELERH
B s A QI 2 fo (B IR B
SEEAT - RTERFEN
i - M HERS RS
AT R EERETEE
FATHEAREEFES T
A o

RIBTREH - FAFRE
FRABDERAEEERSE
ARER - AEEERLEE
ENRARELAEHLEERR
LR - RIBERPHERS
HA REBRRARSHBEEN
ftAEE - RiEEP B R E
] - ZEERRESHREE -
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(A) SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) AND PRC ACCOUNTING
REGULATIONS (Cont'd)

{9} Under IFRS, the excess of the cost of the
acquisition of an additional equity interests in
China Eastern Airlines Wuhan Co., Ltd ("CEA
Wuhan”) over the fair value of the Group’s share
of the acquired net identifiable assets is
recognised as goodwill. Goodwill is not
amortised but tested annually for impairment.
Under PRC Accounting Regulations, the excess
of the cost of the acquisition over the carrying
amount of the acquired net identifiable assets
of CEA Wuhan is recognised as a long-term
equity investment difference and amortised over
1Q years.

In addition, the fair value of the acquired net
identifiabte assets under IFRS is different from
the carrying amount under PRC Accounting
Regulations. As a result, goodwill recognised
under IFRS and the long-term equity investment
difference recognised under PRC Accounting
Regulations is different.

{h)  Under IFRS, the goodwill on acquisition of
additional CEA Wuhan's interests represent the
difference between the purchase consideration
and the fair value of net asset acquired. Under
PRC GAAP, the goodwill on the acquisition is
the difference between the purchase
consideration and the carrying amount of the
net asset acquired. As the fair value and
carrying amount of the net asset acquired under
IFRS and PRC GAAP respectively are different,
hence the goodwill on the acquisition under
IFRS and PRC GAAP are different.
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(A) I RREEARDES
STEAIMBEARER (H)

(9)

REBRVBEREER - Ko
RS A A — B A R B
RAMEREFR AR (MRE
Mzl b - WEESRERAR(E TR
MR EERABEMAE
DRBBEE - YRFERE
TTRIEEIS, - B - ]
BRI TR - WEEREL
PGB TIREF A E 2
MIERS BERR AR BIEIRE
AR A E W IRI0F B -

s - R E AR VR ZE
fr EIRR B 75 3RS 4 2 T AT ER A
MR A EEEFREFERT
MFEERTR A MFEE
R RBRERTE L VR B MR
BREEEFEER -

TEBIBR I TSR E LR T - i —
IR R A EURARIE B A A7
BRAVRBEERIBBUETE
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(A) SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS {“IFRS”) AND PRC ACCOUNTING
REGULATIONS (Cont'd)

(1)

(k)

(1)

(m)

The basis of recognising the value of the
consideration payable for acquisitions and the
underlying assets and liabilities is different
under IFRS and PRC Accounting Regulations.
Accordingly the amount of goodwill and
negative goodwill is different. Moreover, under
PRC Accounting Regulations, goodwill and
negative goodwill are not presented as separate
items but are allocated among the carrying
value of assets and liabilities acquired.
Accordingly part of the adjustments under
goodwill and negative goodwill in the Net Asset
analysis are offset by difference of the same
amounts in other categories of assets or
liabilities presented in the analysis.

Under IFRS, land use rights are recorded as
prepaid operating leases at historical cost which
was nil at the time of listing. Under PRC
Accounting Regulations, land use rights injected
by the parent company as capital contribution
are stated at valuation less accumutated
amortisation,

In addition to the above, the application of
IFRS differs in certain other respects from PRC
Accounting Regulations.

This represents the corresponding impact a

minority interest related to the items above,

This represents the corresponding deferred tax
effects related to the items above.

(A) IR RS M EERRPEE
TTERANEARER ()

(i)

0)

(k)

EEEYHREEN T EE
FHERT - HREERUARREER
RIEFEERARNZETH
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ENREFRAR - Uboh - RIEF
Ee:tEl  HEREEHRS
HEEEABRERAFENER
BELE HTEIHIITR - B
i EESEERESTT
BorEmBraFENPESHR
HiP| RESHPEBLEER
AfENHFRIEH -

IRIRERE RG] - L
ERREABEMAERMNK
SARE LR ATIR « ARl EA
TR A A o 8 PR A SR A
AT SRERHBERSEE
RIT iz D REREESR
T o BEREGER - A0
AEE TR SORRFAEA
AR IZ AR AR Lt {E A AE -
CASY ik ER B AT B S 51188

BRUA RS - a5 BRBR B
WEED RPE G RR
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Luo Zhuping (Director, Company Secretary)
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Zhou Ruijin (Independent Non-executive Director)
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CHANGE OF BUSINESS LICENSE REGISTRATION MEHBRIMBERER
There is no change in the Company's business registration HEBRPARBREEERATMEES
during the period covered by this report i
Registered capital of the Company is RMB4.86695 billion BREHALCRRIMELABARYE
as of the date of this report 48.6695 BT
Business License Registration Number of the SREAEEYRIMR - HEESL
Corporation Legal Person: Qi Gu Hu Zong Zi F$032138 K (H )

No. 032138 (Municipal Administration)

Tax Registration Number: 310042741602981 BIEHETER © 310042741602981

Shareholders can obtain a copy of the Company’s annual report for the year 2006 through the
Internet addresses shown below:
REALRBREVATELE THAR - EEAFEREE TR :

http://www.ce-air.com http://www.firstcall.com  http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/chinaeast
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SIGNATURES .

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized. :

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited
(Registrant) -

Date Ha}f 3. 703,7 By

NameVLpo Z}Hﬂing
Title: Company Secretary
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